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Small Industries Development Bank of India

HRA o7g, e oo do SAfertam, 1989 & arT
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B IRl

Report of the Board of Directors for the year
ended March 31, 2016 submitted to the Central
Government on July 19, 2016 in terms of Section
30 (5) of the Small Industries Development Bank
of India Act, 1989.
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Letter of Transmittal

19 [eTTs, 2016

gfaa
ICEREINE]
WRA TRAR
3 feoen
fira 78,

Toeat & foaxia af 2015-16 & F-o1 Faet af¥s
o 71 e Wea o Rard

AR<ia oy T fawr do siftftrm 1989 & e
30(5) & FrEEHl & FPER ¥ e s
vaeERT 3y &R @ -

(1) 31 AR 2016 B WA q¥ & folE AR TG
F foer d6 & affe o & ufa

(2) 31 AT 2016 B WA ¥ & foTe ARG @Y
3 fare o & Fm-oraT & Jag # FRvs-
Hsa & R &t ufa

yaaqg,

(&F. armmfer fEmamst)
eqeT vd yaer fFevs

HerH®: AR

July 19, 2016

The Secretary,
Ministry of Finance,
Government of India,
New Delhi.

Dear Sir,

Annual Accounts and Report of the Board on
the working of SIDBI - FY 2015-16

In accordance with the Provisions of Section
30 (5) of the Small Industries Development
Bank of India Act, 1989, I forward herewith the
following documents :

(1) Copy of Annual Accounts of Small
Industries Development Bank of India for
the year ended March 31, 2016 and

(2) A copy of the Report of the Board on the
working of Small Industries Development
Bank of India during the year ended March
31, 2016.

Yours faithfully,

y

(Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji)
Chairman & Managing Director

Encl.: as above



Annual Report 201516 [N

fsdl &1 e wsa (T 31 aref 2016)

Board of Directors of SIDBI (As on March 31, 2016)

1. gAufa Rrash
Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji

A 35T FAR TR oA wrsT Rerer
Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur Shri Manoj Mittal

.‘N

At weare fas it e Bardt i 3. TR it 9o
Shri Satyananda Mishra Shri Surendra Nath Tripathi Shri J. Chandrasekaran Shri Pankaj Jain

AN a3 8. MAfEr= 2 va.aRe= et Reren wRaTst AN AR, IFTEEA
Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan Shri S. Hariharan Smt. Smita Bharadwaj Shri R. Ramachandran



TR TY-YEEie (AU | A 2016 T)

Our Leaders (Since inception till 2016)

@. A TF T TS (3neaw)
(a8t 02, 1990 - faamaw 18, 1993)
Late Shri S S Nadkarni (Chairman)

(April 02, 1990 — September 18, 1993)

ot w8 uw @ ()

St AR U SPETe (e fRYE)
(3t 02, 1990 - 79 03, 1995)
Shri R S Agrawal (Managing Director)

(April 02, 1990 — March 03, 1995)

7. Yo% TR (v freyres)
(fegmaT 02, 1993 — S 30, 1998) (T 08, 1995 ~ [T 20, 1995) Dr. Sailendra Narain (Managing Director)
Shri S H Khan (Chairman) Shri K R Pillai (Managing Director) (37T 03, 1995 - AT 26, 2000)
(December 02, 1993 — June 30, 1998) (March 08, 1995 — July 20, 1995) (3T T X T

(Chairman & Managing Director)

@ 27, 2000 - aangax, 2000)
ot St &t e (7o) ot T TH wied! (3799 T NAY )
(J=T$ 01, 1998 - AT 26, 2000) (37T 01, 2000 - SET 30, 2001)
Shri G P Gupta (Chairman) Shri S S Kohli (Chairman & Managing Director)

(July 01, 1998 — March 26, 2000)

(August 01, 2000 — January 30, 2001)



AR UY-YSEie (AT ¥ A 2016 T)
Our Leaders (Since inception till 2016)

o
1

-

At Ft #t Frearere (v wF vy Frv)
(Sat 31, 2001 - BIEL 28, 2003)

Shri P B Nimbalkar (Chairman & Managing Director)

(January 31, 2001 — February 28, 2003)

ot 7 ArergEAT (T T A )

(femmaT 30, 2004 - fa@wT 30, 2006)
Shri N Balasubramanian
(Chairman & Managing Director)
(December 30, 2004 — September 30, 2006)

4t T WRT (37 vay FrRv)
(TR 23, 2006 - 12, 2007)
(STe$ 26, 2010 ~ 37T 03, 2011)

Shri Rakesh Rewari (Deputy Managing Director)
(October 23, 2006 — July 12, 2007)
(Tuly 26, 2010 April 03, 2011)

ot 3t % <er (rerg @ v FrRer)

(S 16, 2003 - feww=T 08, 2004)

At AR T Hewr (3T g 5y fRee)

(ST 11, 2007 - o 08, 2010)

Shri R. M. Malla
(Chairman & Managing Director)
(July 11, 2007 — Jully 08, 2010)

it @7 & AR (37 v Fve)
(59T 22, 2013 - AR 11, 2014)
Shri N. K. Maini (Deputy Managing Director)
(November 22, 2013 — March 11, 2014)

Shri V K Chopra (Chairman & Managing Director)
(July 16, 2003 — December 08, 2004)

&
A gefer F9R Jeeia (g & wa Fier)
(a7 04, 2011 - Fa%=T 08, 2013)
Shri Sushil Kumar Muhnot
(Chairman & Managing Director)
(April 04, 2011 — November 08, 2013)

3. gauf Rt (sreng we vy i)
(= 02, 2015 ¥ Ferfafy)
Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji (Chairman & Managing
Director) (March 02, 2015 — til date)



- i gftrdes 2015-16

et o wfufear (@em 31 A 2016)

Committees of Directors (As on March 31, 2016)

FrduEe aff

of. emfe e, sreas
Al 31510 PAR T

Y 7T Fee

N . TEREA

N v EReEA

N Fearie s
arar-udar afif

N Teare s, eme
A 35T FAR B

2 7eraT firee

Y Gbat 31

£ 9. $. a1 AfarT

Y va. gReA
Y FR. IS

e ye=e= wfufa
A R e, e

Bt FTT PAR DY
A 7 e

%Y v ®. 91 Afar=
Y 3. TeRNERA

Fear Y &t erarers) B FaRE 2 faey iy
gf. eufa feramen, seas

Al T HAR BYX

A 7St Tl

A Gebol ot

2 v &. ). Mfar=

AN 3. TERrER

v, eRea

Executive Committee

Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman
Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur

Shri Manoj Mittal

Shri J. Chandrasekaran

Shri S. Hariharan

Shri Satyananda Mishra

Audit Committee

Shri Satyananda Mishra, Chairman
Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur

Shri Manoj Mittal

Shri Pankaj Jain

Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan

Shri S. Hariharan

Shri R. Ramachandran

Risk Management Committee

Shri R. Ramachandran, Chairman
Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur

Shri Manoj Mittal

Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan

Shri J. Chandrasekaran

Special Committee to Monitor Large Value Frauds
Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman

Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur

Shri Manoj Mittal

Shri Pankaj Jain

Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan

Shri J. Chandrasekaran

Shri S. Hariharan



Annual Report 201516 [N

et o wfufer (@em 31 A 2016)

Committees of Directors (As on March 31, 2016)

o wtenfie) xoFifa afify

A wae s, weas

A FTT PAR DI
A 7=t et

A o9, 3.4 Afvar=

Ft gitiex g (amer faers)
UTES dar |fife

7. et e, sreas
At 35T TR B

#t 7=veT Tt

N . TEIEA
2 v 8RE=

HHa e S |t
&f. grufe framen, seas
A FTT PAR I

At w=reT Tieier

A Gebol ot

AN . TERrEH

Y geae T

1. T g (amer fomds)

ael weten wfafy
7. emufa R

A 1T FAR T

2 TS e

A GpaT 3t

S v . Y. e
&Y AR AT

Information Technology Strategy Committee

Shri Satyananda Mishra, Chairman

Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur

Shri Manoj Mittal

Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan

Shri Pushpinder Singh (External Expert)

Customer Service Committee

Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman
Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur

Shri Manoj Mittal

Shri J. Chandrasekaran

Shri S. Hariharan

HR Steering Committee

Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman
Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur

Shri Manoj Mittal

Shri Pankaj Jain

Shri J. Chandrasekaran

Shri Satyananda Mishra

Dr. Chitra Rao (External Expert)

Recovery Review Committee

Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman
Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur

Shri Manoj Mittal

Shri Pankaj Jain

Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan

Shri R. Ramachandran

vii




-—m”ﬂﬁ'ﬁﬁ 2015-16

et o wfufear (@em 31 A 2016)

Committees of Directors (As on March 31, 2016)

I YDl TU1 FHEAN JURSAT3A 2
aitem afifa

gf. eufa RBraen, s

Y Geare s

&Y HR. TS

aiisifte afify
Y G T

%Y v eRe=
Y o< fas

viii

Review Committee on Wilful defaulters &
Non-cooperative borrowers

Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman

Shri Satyananda Mishra

Shri R. Ramachandran

Remuneration Committee
Shri Pankaj Jain

Shri S. Hariharan

Shri Satyananda Mishra



Annual Report 201516 [N

THUHUAS & To1E FHUT-YdTE gHagge s To facilitate and strengthen credit

e P flow to MSMEs and address both
3R > L " financial and developmental gaps in

AT IBR & IR D gfed BRAT the MSME eco-system.

yafel es gfte &

Progress at a Glance

® =T / crore)

T 31 91 / As on March 31 1991 2013 2014 2015 2016

F@raT |G / Outstanding Portfolio 5176.8 | 56,059.8 | 61270.7 | 55342.6 | 65632.1

437 / Capital - 3iftrgxt / Authorised 500.0 | 1,000.0 | 1,000.0 | 1,000.0 | 1,000.0

- Y& | Paid-up 4500 | 4500 | 4500 | 4500 | 487.0

FRfaferdt vg fftrit / Reserves and Funds 449 | 7,053.3 | 80423 | 9329.6 | 11108.3

BT AT (FaET-ggE) / Total Income (Net of provisions) 4251 | 4,557.6 | 5186.0 | 59385 | 5559.5

foraet @ / Net Profit 356 | 8374 | 1,1183 | 14171 | 11775

SRUR®! @ @I / Dividend to Shareholders 50 | 1125 | 1125 | 1125 94.7

ﬁEAmjmglﬁoﬁo i 07| 23 27 38 29

E::dTMEtﬂ;ﬁ::&Tﬂg portfolio 1o e 240 e St
0 0,

a;mfﬁiﬁg (( o/’i’; 139 | 281| 3075 | 3669| 2986




Chairman and Managing Director’s Statement

i af 2015-16 & fore & & affe RAd swqa
axa ge Redl &1 Fevre-avee 3R yewee-ae w@d
@ TiRaT-aa 3g+a ax <@l & | # g¥-yde ghua axar
g & foxira af 2015-16 3mues §& & fore HHr v
YO @1 39 ARM §ga-9 IRAIID AEHIID
yarg fou me, Jem-u7 o AEaias a-feme
# FReER fE g% 3R 3Mud §& & Tga-3 [RBR G
FHE T gEl

forirar af 2015-16 @ v weayf Juefer a7 @ 5
3 S & JEIA & HBR H 25.7% B Jhex g AR
g8 T75,000 3RIE & GHM B UR IRl g 1A
2016 B X 76,478 FIg TR o1 ugan| Tawira adf 2015-16
& 2R ¥ 3 saua & O g gfe <fd | i
a¥ 2015-16 & SR el CHUHEHS 0T THAT 18.6%
qGax % 65,632 A B T, Safes foriar af 2014-15
# gg 55,343 g &1 AT

Ie g WRa & vATaeHs 87 & Hag, fammor sk
T & fore e e st & sgqat ot S aRoT &

The Board of Directors and the Management
team of SIDBI are privileged to present the
Bank’s Annual Report for the financial year
2015-16. It is my pleasure to inform that the year
2015-16 was quite eventful in terms of a number
of strategic business initiatives taken by your
Bank, followed by strong balance sheet growth
and business performance and number of
awards and accolades to your Bank.

An important milestone during FY 2015-16 is
that the balance-sheet size of your Bank crossed
the ¥75,000 crore mark by registering 25.7%
growth to reach ¥76,478 crore as on March 31,
2016. The Bank also showed strong business
growth during FY 2015-16. The total MSME
credit outstanding increased by 18.6% during FY
2015-16 to ¥ 65,632 crore as against ¥ 55,343 crore
in FY 2014-15.

Such growth could be possible due to
multifarious functions performed by SIDBI for



HHa a1 uTs | Fasel & ‘tofse-©r’ ghedior § vauaeHs
@ dact TerayoT e fear ST & wnfie w8 |,
Fereex fasry anfe & # 378 faeraaRe weraa fear
ST Y Tt &1 39 “Fset-wrr gitedior # swer
Hed @ TEs GX3! & RC THeEeEs 89 |
Uabigl ae T ST SniHet 8 | A | &:-UHesuHs
@ FW Y3 JeM aRA & foe-fasdt dex e
foifies (Tadiiee); T100 &M@ do & TUde
fea/gara vg-TRer fea #oOl @ FOT TR Fa
o & foe-gew vd @y 3w =1 RE Y g
(Hreicenuys); THeaeHs @ tise T & foe-wrr
ey fofies: gl weme ik wmef Jast &
fere- SfEar voens Saatsn afdds 1o, ; eveausd
& B 3T SRl & ot & FaTens & fere-gfsar
THUHs PRie g ae Sl for. (3mgend); sk dur
& Sif-iTtigT, TERIGAIR-Xd vd oY awml & farae
¥ fease i daamic vs dwee Tord
(Fe0) | 39 IBR, HRAIT FFeawn & FR<R ggg d
Stia= & o e & S wdwmaeh veeeaita
& Fike faedt =7 e dot 3k foxiva weensit, sfes
IRd IR W IIa TR 3R FrdHa B 9
ufRgfef it sl axar 21

WRara Frfeaen & faora & 3k sifte wmaeh
e fes aXics ¥ ggrar &9 & 3B¥T ¥ &1 & ant
# HRA WOR 7 Tga-9 Ja e &, 3- 7 7
sfear, widam $fear, Reom $fEar, yamwEA
SHE Ara, SerEAr gar araen, e gt
Rt g5, 3IRY sthae SIRT fothae anfe| AR WIS
IR @9 dik ¥ vaeEens @ 3R st Fueal |
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the promotion, financing and development of
the MSME sector of India. Its ‘Credit Plus’
approach spans to cover not only financing
support but also developmental assistance to
MSMEs in the areas of advisory services, skill
development, marketing assistance, cluster
development, etc. Its ‘SIDBI Plus’ approach
covers integrated thrust to MSME sector
through its associates and subsidiaries such as,
SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL) for
providing Venture Capital (VC) assistance to
MSMEs, Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro
and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE) to provide
credit guarantee coverage to collateral free /
third-party guarantee free loans up to Y100
lakh, SMERA Ratings Limited (SMERA) for
credit rating of MSMEs, India SME Technology
Services Limited (ISTSL) for technology advisory
and consultancy services, India SME Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited (ISARC) for
speedier resolution of non-performing assets
(NPAs) in MSME sector and Micro Units
Development & Refinance Agency (MUDRA) to
fund the unfunded, self-employed and small
businesses in the country. Thus, through its
holistic interventions, SIDBI supplements and
complements not only the banks and financial
institutions, but also the Government of India in
their support and programmes to make the
Indian economy stronger and vibrant.

During the recent years, the Government of
India has come out with various initiatives like
Make in India, Start-up India, Stand-up India,
Pradhan Mantri Jan-Dhan Yojana (PM]DY),
Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana (PMMY), Digital
India, Skill India, Zero Effect Zero Defect, etc.,
to boost the Indian economic growth in a more
inclusive and sustainable manner. Your Bank is
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o S B femm & AP S YRT TR D ST
aRA H TR e XET 1 39 I ¥ IS 86 A
T TRE o AEANUD TeAidaitd! 3 8, 3 59 JHR
&:

= %1,000 313 B Tosdl A 37 gfaar i o
R, difes refemawr & 25 &3 & Bbiad
R g, THEHEHs o fave-wrra fafemfor o
g2 s 31 || 39 Aty & siata fufema
THEEEHS &3 o Ramaet fow yam foar smar
gl

= 10,000 35 & ‘ot A5 39 sfEar dive
A e BR AIgHl, Wil Us Nfeaq tewgad
(wTser)’ @ wmeen, arfe snfda oSt
I o gl & eHeweng @ ref-3fdact &
w0 GaAW HOT AR T CHUEUAS @ R
AR arr &, Hisger vaeaeas @ faaon & saast
@ 9 IS B /I A V&G A 9l W
TTaTer F0T I HRIAT 1T T |

» W3 §iEar & YU oraiag @ ggiar an
F 3237 I fa=dt 7 www.standupmitra.in smH®
d-urda fomhaa fosar &1 39 smaes o T
@R 3R YA Y& aRA, TSR0 R+, 9d-
yee= & fore foish a7, #ee oA AR gfbn @
Aifeef & foe dar fear mar 1 g9 ofa
d% e B A BH TP LA S FIET
Faa Fatt UREA! iR 79 | T v
Afget IURSAT DY Ugel TR I WU aR &
fore 310 A | 31 IS TF B §P HOT 2 B
ghea 3ewa o e o & gar feh oaaeen
P! Aeg fhentt | 39 Oda W= 1.07 ar § 3
d® gt 3l 17,000 Anfesis waifar € sit
g foell Tyl -9 & TRE & X

continuously support  the
Government of India in taking our nation and
MSMEs, in particular, to greater heights. In that
direction, your Bank has come out with a
number of business initiatives as mentioned
below:

striving  to

= Setting up a ¥1,000 crore ‘SIDBI Make in
India” fund to make MSMEs a world-class
manufacturing hub with focus on 25 sectors
of the economy. Under this Fund,
concessional finance is provided to
identified MSME sectors.

= Creating a ¥10,000 crore ‘SIDBI Make in
India Soft Loan Fund for Micro, Small &
Medium Enterprises (SMILE)’ to make
available soft loan to MSMEs, in the nature
of quasi-equity to meet the required debt-
equity ratio and term loan on relatively soft
terms for establishment of new MSMEs, as
also for pursuing opportunities for growth
for existing MSMEs.

* In order to foster smooth implementation of
“Stand-Up India” Scheme, SIDBI developed
a web-portal “www.standupmitra.in” which is
designed
provide information, enable registrations,
provide links for handholding, tracking and
monitoring. This will enable our banking
system to fulfil the intended objective of
providing bank loans between Y10 lakh
and X 1 crore to at least one Scheduled Caste
(SC) or Scheduled Tribe (ST) borrower and
at least one woman borrower per bank
branch for setting up a green-field
enterprise. This portal, with more than 1.07
lakh bank branches and 17,000 handholding
agencies, is functioning as a virtual loan

to obtain application forms,



TET &, STRT 7T °Te aral & fere wat-ud #a-
Afep Famw e £

Frefoavr & sfaer samar & o snfde faem
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Sew d IR foar 2, S wid-aw 3afit o
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ek g B @ 8|

3 3R I & S & 3T T www. venturefund.
sidbi.in s vP 5 JevEe fastha & TE,
difes 3aw Yot Tt & areaw & vroaeas o
FEfe 7o 3R $faad) werar & w9 # yaE
SiREw Yo7 WerIaT Ja o 31 6ol

TeIE-a31 o fere % 10,000 aRig o wig Fiftr (@R
gy o 3rafer § ufa af 22,500 axrg) fia foe
I & R A AT FEFEA GRT 16 A
2016 B! 718 Teoe A & TS VYU & IR ST
Teraar & &7 A foxia af 2016 & M 500
RIS D MY W1 &3 &1
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market place offering pre-sanction match-
making services for loan seekers.

Economics history indicates that any new
wave of economic growth is preceded by
disruptive innovations led by start-ups.
Indian economy is poised for such an
innovation-based  structural progression,
triggered by the “Start-up India” programme
of the Government of India. To help our
MSME start-ups, your Bank created a 2,000
crore India Aspiration Fund (IAF) to be
utilized as a Fund of Funds for making
investments in Venture Capital Funds
(VCFs) which would, in turn, make
investments in MSMEs to the extent of twice
the commitment of SIDBI or 50% of the
corpus of the VCF, whichever is more.

SIDBI also prepared an on-line platform
“wwuw.sidbistartupmitra.in”, which enables
start-up entrepreneurs to get connected with
various stake-holders namely incubators,
mentors, angel networks, venture capital
funds, etc.

To take it further, a new website "www.
venturefund.sidbi.in” was developed for
Direct Risk Capital assistance to MSMEs in
the form of sub-debt and equity assistance
through Venture Capital Funds.

Subsequent to the announcement by
Hon'ble Prime Minister on January 16, 2016
at New Delhi to create a fund corpus of
¥10,000 crore (X2,500 crore every year for a
period of four years) for start-ups, an
amount of ¥500 crore has since been
received in FY 2016 as budgetary support.
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Under “A Scheme for Promotion of
Innovation, Rural Industry and
Entrepreneurship (ASPIRE)” Fund of
Ministry of MSME, Y60 crore was allocated
and disbursed to SIDBI for managing the
fund for investing in VCs with investment
focus on start-up and early stage enterprises
in the areas of Rural and Agro Industries.

In addition to the above, your Bank also took
some more initiatives during the year like:

Setting up of a new Trade Receivables
e-Discounting System (TReDS) as a joint
venture between your Bank and the
National Stock Exchange's NSE Strategic
Investment Corporation Limited (NSICL),
after obtaining "in-principle” approval from
Reserve Bank of India. TReDS will allow
MSMEs to post their receivables on the
system and get them financed, thereby
addressing the problem of delayed

payments of MSME sector.

Commencing merchant banking activities
for the first time by acting as co-lead
manager for the public issue of one of its
customers on NSE-SME platform

“EMERGE”,

Introducing alternate hedging mechanisms
for Foreign Currency Lines of Credit to
reduce the cost of hedging.

Implementing new Risk Rating models for
MFIs, Asset Light Business, Cash flow based
business, Commercial Real Estate business
and Secured Business Loan.
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Customer satisfaction is a priority of your Bank.
During the year, a mobile app ‘SIDBI Mitra” was
developed for direct finance customers to
facilitate providing information related to
accounts of the customers with SIDBI, channel
for mobile messaging directly with the
Relationship Manager (RM), service requests
related to loan ledger, demand advices etc. An
interface for SIDBI officers has also been made
operational for monitoring the communication
and requests from the customers generated
through the App and also for sending messages
to the users by RMs.

Capacity building of MSMEs is an integral part
of SIDBI's operational architecture. Your Bank
has made a number of promotional &
developmental (P&D) through
industrialization, entrepreneurship
development,

initiatives
rural
skill upgradation, marketing
support, financial literacy, credit advisory
services, cluster development and so on. These
P&D interventions have benefitted more than
2.3 lakh persons in the MSME sector, created
more than 1.5 lakh employments, helped in
setting up more than 80,000 units, mostly rural

enterprises.

Your Bank recognizes that the growth of MSMEs
is indispensible for the growth of Indian
economy. To make the MSMEs attain higher
growth level, SIDBI would continue to provide
financial and developmental support to MSMEs.
Its role would be more effective through
innovative products, processes and delivery to
address various financial and developmental
gaps in the MSME eco-system. Greater thrust on
start-ups, knowledge-based new age companies,

infrastructure, sustainable finance, cluster-
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centric interventions for both finance and
development, etc. would act as guide-posts of
your Bank’s efforts to make our MSME sector
stronger, sustainable, more inclusive and highly
competitive in the coming years.

gl — et

(=7 erzrafe ferarsh)
3rez1eT v ge e

(Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji)
Chairman & Managing Director
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The Board of Directors of the Bank takes
pleasure in presenting its Report on the overall
business and operations of your Bank for the
financial year ended March 31, 2016.

Your Bank was set up in 1990 under an Act of
the Parliament as the principal financial
institution for the promotion, financing and
development of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise (MSME) sector in India in addition to
co-ordination with institutions engaged in
similar activities. Financial support to MSMEs is
provided by way of (a) Indirect finance /
refinance to banks / Financial Institutions for
onward lending to MSMEs and (b) direct
finance in the niche areas.

Indirect finance comprises refinancing support
to banks, State Financial Corporations (SFCs),
Bills Rediscounting support to banks, assistance
to Microfinance Institutions (MFIs) and resource
support to various institutions and agencies and
it constitutes about 83% of total -credit
outstanding of your Bank. While the indirect
finance increased by 24% to ¥54,235 crore,
refinance to banks / FIs which constitutes
around 86% of total indirect finance and around
71% of total credit outstanding, increased by
22% during the year under review.

The direct finance strategy of your Bank is
oriented to address the niche financial gaps like
risk capital / equity finance, sustainable finance,
receivable finance and service sector finance. In
this way, SIDBI is complementing and
supplementing the efforts of banks / FIs in

Xvii
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meeting diverse credit needs of MSMEs. The
business strategy of SIDBI is to address the
financial and non-financial gaps in MSME eco-
system.

1. Business Performance

The outstanding portfolio of your Bank
increased by 18.6% to ¥ 65,632 crore as on March
31, 2016 from ¥ 55,343 crore as on March 31,
2015. The cumulative disbursements as on
March 31, 2016 stood at ¥4.50 lakh crore,
benefiting more than 350 lakh persons in the
MSME sector.

The total income of your Bank during the year
increased to ¥5,784.61 crore as compared to
¥5,741.47 crore during the previous year. The
total expenditure during the corresponding
period was ¥3,922.99 crore as compared to
¥ 3,823.24 crore during the previous year. The
Profit Before Tax for the year was ¥1,636.47
crore, compared to T2,115.24 crore in the
previous year. The Net Profit (After Tax and
Deferred Tax Adjustment) was ¥ 1177.46 crore as
against ¥1,417.13 crore in the previous year.
Your Bank continues its uninterrupted dividend
payment record since inception and for the FY
2015-16, it paid dividend of 20%.

II. Business Initiatives

During FY 2015-16, your Bank undertook a
number of strategic business initiatives to
promote and strengthen the MSME sector. Some
important initiatives are:

= In order to take forward the Govt. of
India’s “‘Make in India’ programme, SIDBI
set up ‘SIDBI Make in India’ fund with a
corpus of ¥1,000 crore to make MSMEs a
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world-class manufacturing hub. Under the
fund, concessional finance is provided to
MSMEs in identified 25 sectors of the
economy.

SIDBI launched a ¥ 10,000 crore ‘SIDBI
Make in India Soft Loan Fund for Micro,
Small & Medium Enterprises (SMILE)’ to
make available soft loan to MSMEs, in the
nature of quasi-equity to meet the required
debt-equity ratio and term loan on
relatively soft terms for establishment of

new MSMEs, as also for pursuing
opportunities for growth for existing
MSMEs.

Your Bank constituted a ¥2,000 crore India
Aspiration Fund (IAF) which is being
utilized as a Fund of Funds for making
investments in Venture Capital Funds
(VCFs) which would, in turn, make
investments in MSMEs to the extent of
twice the commitment of SIDBI or 50% of
the corpus of the VCF whichever is higher.
As on March 31, 2016, SIDBI committed
% 607 crore to 19 VCFs under IAF.

To promote the “Start-up India’
programme of Govt. of India, SIDBI
prepared an on-line platform “www.
sidbistartupmitra.in”, which enables
entrepreneurs in the start-up community
located anywhere in the country to get
connected with various stake-holders,
namely, incubators, mentors, angel
networks, venture capital funds, etc.
Around 500 startups, 48 incubators and 50
investors have already registered on this
platform as on March 31, 2016.

A new website www.venturefund.sidbi.in
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was developed for Direct Risk Capital
assistance to MSMEs in the form of sub-
debt and equity assistance through Venture
Capital (VC) funds.

Subsequent to the announcement by
Hon’ble Prime Minister on January 16,
2016 at New Delhi to create a fund corpus
of 10,000 crore (X2,500 crore every year
for a period of four years) for start-ups, an
amount of ¥500 crore has since been
received in FY 2015-16 as budgetary

support.

Under “A  Scheme for Promotion of
Innovation, Rural Industry and
Entrepreneurship (ASPIRE)” Fund of
Ministry of MSME, X 60 crore was allocated
and disbursed to SIDBI for managing the
fund for investing in VCs with investment
focus on start-up and early stage
enterprises in the areas of Rural and Agro
Industries.

During the year under review, your Bank
commenced its merchant banking activities
by acting as co-lead manager for the public
issue of one of its customers in NSE-SME
platform “EMERGE”.

Alternate Hedging Mechanisms for Foreign
Currency Lines of Credit were introduced
to reduce the cost of hedging.

New Risk Rating models for MFIs, Asset
Light Business, cash-flow based business,
Commercial Real Estate business and
Secured Business Loan were implemented.

New financing channels were created
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through  Industry  Associations like
Karnataka  Small  Scale Industries
Association, National Institute of Bank
Management, Rai Industries Association,
near Delhi, Coimbatore District Small Scale
Industries Association (CODISSIA) &
Chamber of Small Industries Association
(COSIA).

In order to foster smooth implementation
of “Stand-Up India Scheme” launched by
Hon’ble Prime Minister on April 05, 2016
to provide bank loans between 10 lakh
and T1 crore to at least one Scheduled
Caste (SC) or Scheduled Tribe (ST)
borrower and at least one woman borrower
per bank branch for setting up a green-
field enterprise, your Bank developed a
web-portal “www.standupmitra.in” which
was also launched by Hon'ble Prime
Minister on that day. The portal acts as a
loan market place for application filing and
tracking as well as providing the facility
for choice of branches/ banks for credit
assistance. The portal with more than 1.07
lakh bank  branches 17,000
handholding agencies is functioning as a

and

virtual loan market place offering pre-
sanction match-making services for loan
seekers.

Business Operations
Equity/Risk Capital

Your Bank started the Risk Capital
operations in 2009 under the MSME Risk
Capital Fund (MSME-RCF) with a
committed corpus of ¥2,000 crore. The
Fund has been fully drawn.



- aiitfe yferdas 2015-16

o UHUHUMR-FARNITG & HaEl ®e-3 3R
YR TR T FAT D FEE T B
R ¥ fred gorg wE-sw & ugaE
aRd D FEIdl IR @l &1 IS §b A
Fwor aor §fEoH Aireda’ Meded SR;e
s eaa (sRafe) & W sitvenRe wwetar
s ot Ferenfea fesar 81 50 demn & siaria
I D 57 WIE-3H D Tl T57.48 aRIg B
HETT HaR @ 37 gt &

o yeaE SifEw Yot uRameE

yag uRaeH & 3o, genfia eHeaens
soigdl (Wgfa Yot & w9 H) qun sl
TROT qTet RIe-310 (3 uiRaies! & Ferar
yeN ax= & o) a1 & Sifew §G e
@ s 2 R af 2015-16 & 3 @
sifEw 4o weaar & siaifa s (Wad)
7918 a3 Al

o IygE fEw 3N aRareE

e §% 3w Yo fHftaifeh e
it @ o wemer gem oxar g1 faia
a¥ 2015-16 & 3id ® Jw Yon/fan sfaad
fHfert @ werlt foraer aomagar 22,311 s
o A

l.2. feors faora

wiherds af & dRw fosdt 4 faftm sguelial/
faueha wiftal (R sUM Seaeme PRI
ol (o) wur 130 fafem s a9,
wor 130 faferam s 39, @=or 30 feferam
SUEr 39, e ey f§ Saawc (ews)),
wia- 50 faferom @R SR Hfseiee & devwes
(Pewssry), s=I- 50 faferam oRY) & ga @

o Besides MSME-RCF, your Bank is also
assisting start-ups and early stage ventures
to identify and support deserving start-
ups. Your Bank had also entered into
formal understanding with NASSCOM and
Indian Software Products Industries Round
Table (ISPIRT). So far, 57 start-ups have
been sanctioned assistance aggregating
% 57.48 crore under the scheme.

*  Direct Risk Capital Operations:

Under direct operations, risk capital is
offered to both well established MSMEs (as
growth capital) and also to early stage
start-ups (to stabilize their operations). As
at the end of FY 2015-16, the outstanding
(gross) under Risk Capital assistance was
%918 crore.

e  Indirect Risk Capital Operations:

Your Bank also extends assistance to
“Venture Capital Funds / Private Equity
Funds”. The cumulative net commitments
to VC / PE Funds as at the end of FY 2015-
16 stood at ¥2,311 crore.

II1.2 Sustainable Development

During the year under review, SIDBI operated
focused concessional lending schemes for
Energy Efficiency (EE) out of Lines of Credit
(LoCs) from various multilateral / bilateral
agencies, viz. Japan International Co-operation
Agency (JICA) Phase I - JPY 30 billion, Phase - II
— JPY 30 billion, Phase - IIT — JPY 30 billion,
Agence Francaise de Développement (AFD),
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France — EUR 50 million and Kreditanstalt fur
Wiederaufbau (KfW), Germany - EUR 50
million. The main objective of these schemes is
to enhance energy efficiency, reduce CO,

emissions and improve the profitability of the
Indian MSMEs in the long run.

Cleaner Production/Environmental Lines of
Credit

Your Bank has contracted LoCs aggregating
EUR 53.74 million from KfW, Germany for
promoting investment in cleaner production
options in the MSME sector. The main objective
of these LoCs is to achieve a reduction or
avoidance of emission and pollution through
Investment
such as Common Effluent Treatment Plants
(CETPs), waste treatment, storage & disposal
facilities, waste recycling, etc., benefitting large
number of MSMEs in the industrial clusters are
also eligible under the assistance. Individual
MSMEs going in for investments that will result
in the pollution

cleaner production investments.

control, waste reduction,
improvement in raw material productivity etc.,
are eligible for coverage under the line. As on
March 31, 2016, 307 MSMEs have been assisted
with an aggregate term loan of more than ¥ 355
crore under these LoCs.

IIL.3 Service Sector Financing

e  The services sector remains the key driver
of India’s economic growth, contributing
almost 53% of its gross value added in FY
2015-16. The sector is also vibrant in terms
of contribution to trade flows, FDI inflows,
and employment. India’s services sector

covers a wide variety of activities such as
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trade, hotel and restaurants, transport,
storage and communication, financing,
insurance, real estate, business services,
community, social and personal services,
and services associated with construction.
In view of the growing role of service
sector, your Bank has been focusing on
service sector as one of its niche areas in

business.

II1.4 Receivable Finance

e In order to help the MSMEs for quicker
realization of their receivables, thereby
addressing the problem of delayed
payments, since 1991, your Bank has been
operating Receivable Finance Scheme (RES)
under which it fixes limits to well-
performing purchaser companies and
discounts usance bills of MSMEs / eligible
service sector units supplying components,
parts, sub-assemblies, services, etc. so that
the MSMEs / service sector units realise
their sale proceeds quickly. Your Bank also
offers invoice discounting facilities to the
MSME suppliers of purchaser companies.
The focus during the year under review
was on strengthening the existing
processes and guidelines. As on March 31,
2016, the gross outstanding under RFS was
1,596 crore.

IV. Microfinance

Your Bank has been providing assistance for
financing the micro finance loans (upto ¥50,000)
and also the Missing Middle Segment (loans in
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the range of ¥50,000 - ¥10,00,000) through
NBFCs / NBFC-MFIs, etc. The Lines of Credit
(LoCs) from ADB and KfW, Germany for
financing Missing Middle enterprises are in
operation.

The cumulative assistance (including loans,
equity and quasi-equity but excluding India
Micro Finance Equity Fund (IMEF) & Poorest
States Inclusive Growth (PSIG) Fund)
aggregated to ¥10,769.17 crore till March 31,
2016. The gross microfinance outstanding of the
Bank increased by 23% to 2,996 crore as on
March 31, 2016. The assistance through SIDBI
has benefited around 345 lakh disadvantaged
people, most of them being women.

International Partnership under Micro Finance

° Your Bank had entered into agreement
with

(i) Kreditanstalt fur  Wiederaufbau
(KfW), Germany for 3 LoCs (a) EUR
85 million and financial contribution
of EUR 1.69 million for improving
access to microfinance products in
India among the poor, particularly
women; (b) EUR 100 million and
financial contribution of EUR 0.50
million for assistance for ‘Missing
Middle’ of the MSME sector in India
and (c) USD 55 million assistance for
‘Microfinance and Micro Enterprise’
of the MSME sector in India;

(ii) Asian Development Bank (ADB) for
loan support of USD 50 million for
providing SIDBI with long term

=l
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funding to support the vital “missing
middle” through specific financing
programs; and

(iii) World Bank (WB) for loan of USD 300
million, including USD 200 million
from  International @ Bank  for
Reconstruction and Development
(IBRD) and SDR equivalent of USD
100 million from International
Development Association (IDA) for
upscaling the micro credit portfolio.

V. Promotional and Developmental (P&D)
Support

In its endeavour towards holistic development
of the MSME sector, your Bank adopts a ‘Credit
Plus’ approach wherein, besides credit, your
Bank provides grant support for the promotion
and development of the sector to make it strong,
vibrant and competitive. Some of the important
initiatives are given below:

e MSME Advisory: Your Bank has set up
MSME Advisory Centres (MACs) for
guiding new / existing entrepreneurs
regarding availability of
commercial banks, government subsidies /
benefits, debt counselling, answering
queries raised by banks etc. The MACs
have been serving MSME clusters across
the country in partnership with Industry

schemes of

Associations. For manning the MACs, your
Bank has appointed Knowledge Partners
(KPs), who are retired bank officials, with
vast experience of MSME sector. The KPs
have also been suitably trained for the
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purpose. So far, more than 12,500 MSMEs
have benefited through MACs.

Promoting youth entrepreneurship: Your
Bank developed a website "www.smallB.

"

in", which is a virtual mentor and
handholding forum for new entrepreneurs
and even for the existing entrepreneurs to
grow their existing business. The website
had bagged the International ADFIAP
Awards in the past.

Capacity Building of Regional Rural
Banks (RRBs) / Urban Co-operative Banks
(UCBs): RRBs / UCBs play an important
role in providing credit to micro
enterprises due to their proximity and
presence in the rural / semi urban and
remote areas. Your Bank initiated a project
in FY 2012-13 focused at capacity building
of Tier-II banks viz. RRBs / UCBs with an
objective to enhance the credit flow to
micro enterprise sector. Under the project,
SIDBI extends capacity building support to
these banks, which includes SIDBI sharing
its methodology / software for lending
micro enterprise loans in the range of
< 50,000/ to ¥10,00,000/- and arranging for
training of staff of these banks in this area.
Besides organising sensitization
programmes on this methodology covering
chairmen of about 27 RRBs and 10 UCBs,
MoUs with 29 RRBs and 5 UCBs have been
signed. After a detailed training need

analysis with few RRBs, a comprehensive
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2-day video based training module has
been developed and pilot tested. Based on
the training module, ‘“Training of Trainers’
programmes have been conducted
benefiting about 430 officials of 42 RRBs /
UCBs.

Micro Enterprise Promotion Programme
(MEPP): Micro Enterprise Promotion
Programme (MEPP) aims at promoting
viable micro enterprises leading to
employment generation in rural India by
providing  comprehensive  enterprise
support services through identified
implementing agencies. MEPP has so far
been implemented in 126 districts in 26
states.  Cumulatively, about 42,000
enterprises have been set up.

Entrepreneurship Development
Programmes (EDPs): Your Bank’s support
to EDPs aims at building and nurturing a
reservoir of entrepreneurs, while creating a
cadre of motivated entrepreneurs and
promotion of self-employed ventures
capable of generating employment
opportunities, especially in far-flung and
rural areas targeting less privileged
sections of the society like women,
minorities and SCs/STs. As on March 31,
2016, a total of 3,191 EDPs had been
supported by the Bank, benefiting more
than 79,500 participants in various target
groups. Cumulatively, about 39,500
participants have either set up their own
units or have been gainfully employed in
the sector.

Skill Development Programmes (STUPs /
SIMAPs): With a view to strengthening the
technical and managerial capacities of the
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MSME entrepreneurs, your Bank supports
reputed management / technology
institutions to offer certain structured
management / skill development
programmes, viz. “Skill-cum-Technology
Upgradation Programme” (STUP) and
“Small Industries Management Assistants
Programme” (SIMAP).

Since its inception, SIDBI has supported
1,560 STUPs benefiting about 32,750
participants conducted by specialised
institutions viz., Central Institute of Plastic
Engineering & Technology (CIPET),
Central Institute of Medicinal & Aromatic
Plants (CIMAP) and other reputed
technical / management institutions.
Further, 302 SIMAPs have been conducted
by top rung national and state level
institutions such as IITs at Kanpur /
Kharagpur / Mumbai / Chennai, XLRI,
Jamshedpur, Manipal Institute, Bengaluru
benefiting about 9,100 participants. These
programmes have benefited a large
number of young bright students and most
of the participants have joined the MSME
sector.

Cluster Development: The cluster
development approach of your Bank
includes business development services,
management practices, establishment of
marketing linkages, product / design
development, skill up-gradation in
different technical trades, etc. SIDBI has so
far supported more than 90 Cluster
Development Programmes (CDPs) in
various clusters all over India, which have
benefitted MSMEs / artisans /
entrepreneurs.

Ex
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o  Marketing Activities: Having realised the
need to address the marketing problems of
MSME sector, your Bank is also engaged in
creating and strengthening marketing
initiatives for the sector. During FY 2016,
the Bank
exhibitions / seminars / events benefitting
more than 12,000 MSME entrepreneurs.

supported 67 important

VI. Resources Management

Resources aggregating I 53,807 crore were raised
by your Bank during FY 2015-16 as against
T 22,664 crore during FY 2014-15.

VII. Rating of SIDBI Debt Instruments

During FY 2015-16, Credit Analysis and
Research Ltd. (CARE) reaffirmed ‘CARE AAA’
(Triple A) rating in respect of outstanding debt
issues of SIDBI viz., Unsecured Bonds of
T23,686.60 crore, RIDF Deposits of 30,000
crore, Fixed Deposit Programme of ¥ 3,000 crore
and ‘CARE Al+ (A One Plus)) CARE AAA
(Triple A)Y rating for the CP / CD Programme of
18000 crore and also assigned Issuer Rating of
CARE AAA(Is)(Triple A [(Issuer Rating)].
Similarly, CRISIL also retained ‘CRISIL AAA/
Stable’ rating in respect of outstanding bonds of
2,380 crore. Instruments carrying the above
ratings are considered to be of the best quality,
carrying negligible investment risk.

VIII. Human Resources

As on March 31, 2016, your Bank had on its rolls
1060 active full time staff comprising 908
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officers, 95 Class IIlI staff and 57 Subordinate
staff. Of the total staff, 186 belong to Scheduled
Castes (SCs), 74 to Scheduled Tribes (STs) and
171 to Other Backward Classes (OBCs). The staff
strength included 8 ex-servicemen, 29 Persons
with Disabilities (PwD) categories and 1 in both
ex-servicemen and Persons with Disabilities
(PwD) categories. The strength of women
employees is 234.

IX. Subsidiaries / Associates

IX.1 SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL)
was established in 1999 as an Investment
Management Company for managing
Venture Capital Funds (VCFs). Since
inception, SVCL has continued to provide
growth capital to high-quality, growth-
oriented MSMEs across diversified sectors.
SVCL, at present, is acting as the
Investment Manager for National Venture
Fund for Software and Information
Technology Industry (NFSIT) with a
committed corpus of Y100 crore, SME
Growth Fund (SGF) with a committed
corpus of 500 crore, India Opportunities
Fund (IOF) with a drawable corpus of
¥421.30 crore, Samridhi Fund (SF) with a
committed corpus of Y440 crore, TEX Fund
(TF) of ¥40.83 crore, West Bengal MSME
VC Fund (WB Fund) with a targeted
corpus of ¥200 crore and Maharashtra
State Social Venture Fund (MS Fund) with
a targeted corpus of ¥200 crore. SVCL
made a profit of ¥6.58 crore on an asset
base of ¥39.78 crore during FY 2015-16.

Ex
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IX.2 Micro Units Development & Refinance

Agency: MUDRA has been set up on April
08, 2015 as a wholly owned subsidiary of
your Bank for ‘funding the unfunded’
micro enterprises in the country. MUDRA
refinances banks, Micro Finance
Institutions (MFIs) and other lending
institutions, which are in the business of
lending to micro / small business entities,
engaged in manufacturing, trading and
services activities. Thus, MUDRA
strengthens the Last Mile Financial
Institutions by extending refinance and
other development support to expand their
outreach. This in turn helps micro
businesses across the length and breadth of
the country. MUDRA’s mandate also
includes developing the micro enterprise
sector into a viable economic sector. As at
the end of March 2016, MUDRA had
sanctioned ¥3,783.20 crore to 22 MFIs, 3
NBFCs, 17 PSBs and 3 RRBs. Out of the
same, < 3,337.20 crore was disbursed as on
March 31, 2016.

IX.3 Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro

and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE) was set
up in 2000 by Government of India and
SIDBI to operate the Credit Guarantee
Scheme (CGS) for Micro and Small
Enterprises (MSEs) which guarantees credit
facilities upto 100 lakh extended by
Member Lending Institutions (MLIs) in
respect of those loans, which are not
backed by collateral security and / or third
party  guarantees.  The
guarantees approved by the Trust till
March 31, 2016 stood at 23.3 lakh for an
amount of ¥ 1.1 lakh crore.

cumulative
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IX.5 India SME Asset

Dun & Bradstreet (D&B) and several public
and private sector banks, set up the
SMERA Ratings Ltd. (SMERA) in
September 2005, as an MSME dedicated
third-party rating agency to provide
comprehensive, transparent ratings to
MSMEs. Cumulatively, since its
incorporation, SMERA has assigned ratings
to 37,554 MSME units up to March 31, 2016
spread across various categories, industries
and states. SMERA has been providing
special attention to micro and small
enterprises which accounted for 77% and
21%, respectively, of its total ratings.

Reconstruction
Company Ltd: India SME  Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited (ISARC)
was incorporated on April 11, 2008 and
commenced its business operations on
April 15, 2009 with the principal objective
to acquire non-performing assets (NPAs)
and to resolve them through its innovative
mechanism with a special focus on the
NPAs of MSME sector. As of March 31,
2016, ISARC has assets under management
(AUM) of ¥380.86 crore (Gross AUM -
467.14 crore) representing outstanding
Security Receipts (SRs) and balance sheet
assets.

IX.6 India SME Technology Services Limited:

It offers technology
consultancy services for projects related to
energy
management, renewable energy, MSME
cluster development and evaluation
studies, capacity building, awareness
creation, skill development with the help of

advisory and

efficiency and demand

C
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its team of experts having extensive
experinece in energy efficiency, MSME
sector, banking, project finance, renwable
energy & project management. ISTSL also
provides services such as providing
information on technology options, match
making, finance syndication and business
collaborations and organizing seminars/

meets and providing market support.
X. Awards and Recognitions

Your Bank has received ADFIAP Award 2016
under the Outstanding Development Project
under financial inclusion category for MUDRA.
It also bagged “Microfinance India Awards —
2015” organized by Access Assist under the
“Microfinance India - Contribution to the Sector
by an Enabling Institution” category on
December 8, 2015 in New Delhi in recognition of
the pioneering and nurturing work done by
your Bank for more than two decades for the
microfinance sector.

Your Bank was conferred the first prize in the
National Energy Conservation Award 2015
under Financial Institutions category by Bureau
of Energy Efficiency (BEE), Govt. of India on
December 14, 2015 at New Delhi. It also won
‘Best IT Implementation Award 2016° by
PCQuest for Credit Appraisal and Rating Tool
(CART) in Overall Best IT Project category on
March 12, 2016 at Hyderabad

During FY 2015-16, your Bank received the
“Vigilance Excellence Award” - 2nd best in the

Banking Sector category - instituted by
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“Institute of Public Enterprises, Hyderabad”, for
the third consecutive year.

Your Bank was awarded the second prize for the
consecutive third time by Govt. of India under
All India Rajbhasha Kirti Puraskar Scheme for
outstanding performance in Official Language
Implementation.

The Human Resources Vertical, SIDBI was
conferred with ISO 9001:2008 certification for
management of its Training Cell by Intertek
Certification Limited, an agency accredited by
United Kingdom Accreditation Service (UKAS).
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The Bank also thanks all its customers and
investors for their co-operation and looks
forward to the continued support in the years to
come. The Board recognizes and places on
record its appreciation for the services of SIDBI
staff, who, at all levels, showed strong and
continued commitment, integrity and dedication
to take the Bank on to a higher growth

trajectory during the year.

(Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji)
Chairman & Managing Director
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Hon'ble President Shri Pranab Mukherjee

launching ‘www.sidbistartupmitra.in’
portal on March 17, 2016 in New Delhi.
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The global economy, according to IMF’s World
Economic Outlook report, 2016, recorded a
growth of 3.1% in 2015 which is projected to
grow stronger in coming years. The world is
witnessing improvements in market sentiments,
fostered by more pro-active policy actions to
lift demand and supply potential across the
countries, especially in oil-importing countries
as crude prices are envisaged to remain
subdued for longer period. This could also help
boost financial markets confidence. Accordingly,
the global growth in 2016 is projected to grow
at 3.2% and further increase to 3.5% in 2017,
driven primarily by emerging markets and
developing economies.

Amidst the slow recovery of global economy,
Indian economy emerged as the bright spot
by registering a robust GDP growth of 7.6% in
FY 2015-16, thus becoming the fastest growing
major economy in the world outpacing China.
Such higher growth was buoyed by an increased
growth in agriculture and allied sectors and
a stronger growth in manufacturing. Indian
economy is currently witnessing a number of
favourable factors such as prudent fiscal policy
measures, reignition of stalled projects, inflation
under targeted level with an accommodating

monetary  policy,
consumption expenditure, etc.

increase in  private

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Sector

The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
(MSME) sector in India is a strong pillar
of socio-economic fabric of India through
its contribution towards economic growth,
employment  generation, higher  capital
productivity, demonstrated resilience and
growth potential even during periods of
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economic crisis. According to the estimates of
the Ministry of MSME, Government of India,
the sector comprises about 50 million units
providing around 111 million jobs — the second
largest after agriculture (Table 1.1). It just
requires investment of I5.3 lakh to create one
employment in MSME sector, whereas in the
organized sector, the investment requirement
is 6.7 lakh for the same. The sector also

aiferT 1.1 : Y&, 71 Bd WeaH JeM &7 — JeerEg ad
Table 1.1 : MSME Sector — Principal Characteristics

1. 2014-15 % JerHT @ AT (1E) No. of Enterprises in 2014-15 (lakh) 511
®. Ui goral ol Ffererd f&1 / a. Percentage share of Registered Units* 29
@. IR-U3lg gorgal 1 Hfarerd f&wan / b. Percentage share of Un-registered units* 71

7.\t wa ¥ e ant (srfe s/ srafa seenfa / s free o) @ afaea feear | 51
c. Percentage share of Socially Backward Classes (SCs/STs/OBCs)*

. JToT sl o fesar/ d. Percentage share of Rural Units* 55
& wfeen Jomt o1 gfawr f&=11/ e. Percentage share of women enterprises* 74
2. 2014-15 # ISR (@RE) / Employment in 2014-15 (lakh) 1171
3. gfer 3em 3iTa AR (3.) / Average Employment per Enterprise (No.) 23
4. e AR fa9r (R @) / Investment per employment  Lakh) 5.3
5. @. 0T UTGl @ aTet JerH) ol HTererd / a. Percentage of Enterprises availing loans 7.3
(i) TmTe |rar ¥ / (i) From Institutional Sources 5.2
(il) F=-weamra "ral ¥ / (ii) From Non-institutional sources 21
5. @. FI-fed / Tafawriya et o ghoea
b. Percentage of Enterprises without loans / self-finance 92.7
6. 2012-13 H ahet TR, 371G W HTcr1d f&= / Percentage share of GDP in 2012-13 37.5
7. 2012-13 3 fafmior eure # wferer femem
Percentage share in Manufacturing Output in 2012-13 37.3
8. 2012-13 ¥ Toaifcr # wfcrera f&=aT / Percentage share in exports in 2012-13 40.0

* 2006-07 &H, T Ud HEFH Ja TUMT JENRA / As per 2006-07 MSME Census.

fewolt : 5/ 7@ 3T 3o 7 |, T g JATds 2006-07 FeA, TY U HEFH I TOMT A HETed & |
Note: Unless otherwise stated, the select data pertain to 2006-07 MSME Census.
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A fY FRar 21 2007-08 3R 2012-13 & 3rafer
& AR, Y&H, &Y Td HEgH JaH &7 A 8.4% I
® ¥ 3fa g8, 3 30 Faft ¥ Hod W I B
g & 7.1% & gern 3§ 31t &1

JeorEa ¢ {6 geaw, @y ud Hegw 3w &7
JoEi B W@ # 2008-15 & ARM &S g Ed

contributes 37.5% of India’s GDP, 37% of
manufacturing output and 40% of overall
exports. During the period 2007-08 and 2012-13,
the MSME sector grew faster at 8.4% than GDP
at 7.1%.

It may be noted that the number of enterprises
in MSME sector recorded an average growth

rate of 4.4% during 2008-15 (Table 1.2) to reach
to 51.1 million enterprises producing more than

3fg R 4.4% oY; TeRAPT G PeT WA 51.1
fuftram & m, 3 6000 ¥ I AR T &

(Hﬁair 1.2)1 6000 products.
aiferet 1.2: Y&, 7Y vd Hegw JaHi o1 srifsaee, AR g faw
Table 1.2: Performance of MSME, Employment and Investments

ag Hel URenerRa 38 (A1 H) AR (AT H)

Year Total Working Enterprises (in Lakh) Employment (in Lakh)
2006-07 361.76 805.23
2007-08# 377.36 842.00
2008-09# 393.70 880.84
2009-10# 410.80 921.79
2010-11# 428.73 965.15
2011-124 447 .64 1,011.69
2012-13# 447.54 1,061.40
2013-144# 488.46 1,114.29
2014-15# 510.57 1,171.32

# - FIFAIT / Projected.

ol 1. g g1 AR, e qen gisie A, ged vd IWRe, TRaeT 3R HSRUT g
HleiEM (Peg WIS Bl Brgax) cfaftral wfea, fome fore sifes ww fow e snf¥fe o
2005, Bard ARSI BRATETd, AN Td BRIHH PrA~aa HATTTd

Notes: 1. Including activities of wholesale/retail trade, legal, education & social services, hotel &
restaurants, transports and storage & warehousing (except cold storage) for which data
were extracted Economic Census 2005, Central Statistics Office, MOSPL.

2. O WexT ANR, B e qan arifsie Jaw, dea vd [eRe, uRag 3R Wesror od

HIEAEH (PIes TRal & Bl nﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%%uh—dﬁwmﬁqgrﬁm@mﬂﬁr
3OH W th MR TR AT, T gt sifae arda ik doiiga & ot ervaess, ssiga
&3 T A F1ER I T o7

2. Estimated on the basis of per enterprises value obtained from sample survey of
unregistered sector for activities wholesale/retail trade, legal, education & social services,
hotel & restaurants, transports and storage & warehousing(except cold storage) which
were excluded from Fourth All India Census of MSME, unregistered sector.
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The MSME sector registered an employment
growth rate of 4.8% during 2008-15, peaking to
5% in 2014-15.

It may also be observed from Table 1.3 that the
share of manufacturing sector MSME in total
GDP had been declining: from 7.7% in 2006-
07 to 7% in 2012-13. Also, the share of MSME
manufacturing in total manufacturing had also
declined from 42% to 37.3% during the same
period. At the same time, the share of services
sector MSME in total GDP had increased from
35.1% in 2006-07 to 37.5% in 2012-13.

Status of Credit Availability

e The MSE sector's share in total credit
outstanding has been increasing over the
last decade. It may be noted from Table 1.4

AT 1.3: WHE B I H Y&, 7Y Ud WeDH ITHl & IR BT AR
Table 1.3: Contribution of MSME Output in GDP

a4 o1 TebeT EBRe IS H Y&, oY o o faferfor 3came & e,
Year e 3T & o1 Tee (%) 7Y Ud Fegw 3o fafemtor
Share of MSME Sector in total GDP (%) Jaure o e
fafmfor & e, | Jar A g Sase o MR
1 U W I &, 7Y v Total ].\rianufactunng Out?ut
Manufacturing ey 345 in total Manufacturing
Sector MSME Services gtk (8]
Sector MSME

2006-07 7.7 27.4 35.1 42,0
2007-08 7.8 27.6 35.4 420
2008-09 7.5 28.6 36.1 40.8
2009-10 7.5 28.6 36.1 39.6
2010-11 7.4 29.3 36.7 38,5
2011-12 7.3 30.7 38.0 37.5
2012-13 7.0 30.5 37.5 37.3
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aféreT 1.4: Y&, 71 v Hegw JeWl R i afdey Sof & seran & wded siies
Table 1.4: MSME Credit Outstanding Data by Scheduled Commercial Banks

(% #r® &5 / lakh crore)
el ad (siftm | gew | o1y | gew | wemw | 9w, | oo wfiea & | eewdeh F g v
Ruifén gppar) | Micro | Small |vd @Y | Medium | @75 Ud | 0T ¥ | vd o7 | E1g I 01 BT
Financial Year MSE wegH | JeM v o fewwr | fewm ufema &
(Last Reporting MSME yfrera & MSE credit as %
Friday) MSE credit as % of ANBC
of total priority
sector lending
AT 2008 079 | 1.34 | 2.14 H H 30.34 7.80
March 2008 NA NA
AT 2009 099 | 157 | 256 H H 31.14 11.30
March 2009 NA NA
AT 2010 150 | 2.13 | 3.62 Rl 3 31.82 13.40
March 2010 NA NA
AT 2011 201 | 278 | 479 | 1.29 6.08 35.74 15.00
March 2011 | (34.0) | (30.5) | (32.3)
AT 2012 218 | 310 | 528 | 154 6.81 35.25 16.50
March 2012 8.6) | (11.5) | (10.3) | (19.1) | (12.1)
31 HT%F 2013 281 | 406 | 687 | 1.82 8.69 40.56 14.80
March 31,2013 | (29.2) | (31.0) | (30.2) | (184) | (27.6)
31 97 2014 355 | 496 | 851 1.89 10.40 39.15 15.70
March 31,2014 | (26.2) | (22.3) | (23.9) (3.9 (19.7)
31 g7ef 2015 424 | 537 | 9.61 2.10 11.71 40.41 17.80
March 31,2015 | (19.4) | (83) | (129) | (11.1) | (12.6)
18 T 2016@ FH | ¥ | 85 H H 42.10 NA
March 18,2016@ | NA | NA | 69 | NA NA
[20 TT=f 2015] [8.0]
[March 20, 2015]
B oros i faw e sites uftea gfa = &)

Figures in parentheses are percentage growth rates.
#2010 ¥ GoRT ANR &
Retail trade data included in services sector since 2010.
@ 18 AT 2016 & Hidbg MUBK JATHS!, 31T 31 A & H(DS &, & T Doy § GoH1d el & | 3 e & JarorH
¥ 20 9ref 2015 & 3iTps ot 93 Pros A fev MW E
March 18, 2016 data not strictly comparable with earlier data which are March 31 data. Hence, for
comparison purpose, March 20, 2015 data are also given in the square bracket.
e : WRara Rad o
Sources : Reserve Bank of India.

Jar

o gnfie €
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that the share of MSE sector in priority
sector lending increased from 30.3% in
2007-08 to 42.1 % in FY 2015-16 and in
total credit (ANBC)!, increased from 7.8%
to 17.8% in FY 2014-15. It recorded an
average growth rate of 17.7% during FY
2011-12 to FY 2015-16, which was higher
than the non-food credit outstanding
growth during the similar period.
However, the MSE credit growth rate
has been decelerating since last 3 years
from 30.2% in FY 2012-13 to 23.9% in
2013-14, 12.9% in FY 2014-15 and 5.9% in
FY 2015-16.

o If one includes the medium enterprises
sector which is now a part of priority
sector lending, medium enterprise sector
received 17.9% of total credit in FY 2014-
15. The credit outstanding of MSME sector
has been showing a declining growth trend
from 27.6% in March 2013 to 12.6% in
March 2015.

Policies and Measures

In order to boost the MSME sector and augment
credit flow, the Government of India and
Reserve Bank of India have taken a number
of policy measures. The major initiatives are
briefed as under:

.

#* Micro Units Development & Refinance
Agency [MUDRA] was set up on April

1 For the purpose of priority sector lending, ANBC
denotes the outstanding Bank Credit in India [(As
prescribed in item No.VI of Form “A’ (Special Return
as on March 31st) under Section 42 (2) of the RBI Act,
1934] minus bills re-discounted with RBI and other
approved Financial Institutions plus permitted non
SLR investments in Held to Maturity (HTM) category
plus investments in other categories, which are eligible
to be treated as part of priority sector lending (eg.

investments in securitised assets)..
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8, 2015 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of
SIDBI for ‘funding the unfunded’ micro
enterprises in the country by providing
refinance to all banks, Micro-finance
Institutions (MFIs) and other lending
institutions for loans up to Y10 lakh.

Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana
(PMMY): A scheme to finance income
generating small business enterprises
was launched on April 08, 2015 by
the Hon’ble Prime Minister, whereby
all banks are required to finance
micro entrepreneurs upto 10 lakh,
irrespective of whether they avail of
refinance support from MUDRA or
not. As on March 31, 2016, ¥1,37,449
crore was sanctioned to 348.81 lakh
borrowers.

MUDRA Card: MUDRA Card is
an innovative credit product which
provides a facility of working capital
arrangement in the form of an
overdraft facility to the borrower.
Since MUDRA Card is a RuPay debit
card, it can be used for drawing cash
from ATM or Business Correspondent
or make purchase using Point of
Sale (POS) machine. As at the end of
March 2016, 5.17 lakh cards for 1,477
crore were issued.

MUDRA Credit Guarantee: As
announced by the Hon’ble Finance
Minister in the budget for FY 2015-16,
a separate credit guarantee fund was
created for MUDRA Loans, with an
initial corpus of Y3000 crore. National
Credit Guarantee Trustee Company
(NCGTC) is the implementing
agency for MUDRA Credit Guarantee
scheme. The scheme has been
notified.
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Start-Up India

‘Start-Up India” programme, launched by
Hon’ble Prime Minister on January 16,
2016, intends to build a strong eco-system
for nurturing innovation and start-ups
in the country that will drive sustainable
economic growth and generate large scale
employment opportunities. The prime
objective of the scheme is to reduce the
regulatory burden on start-ups, thereby
allowing them to focus on their core
business and keep compliance cost low.
The Action Plan is divided across the
following areas: (a) Simplification and
Handholding, (b) Funding Support and
Incentives and (c) Industry-Academia
Partnership and Incubation.

In order to strengthen and accelerate ‘Start-
up India’ programme, SIDBI launched a
web portal ‘www.sidbistartupmitra.in’
to promote the start-up ecosystem in the
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Signing of MoU with LIC to promote start-ups and MSMEs. From left to right: Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji,
CMD, SIDBI, Shri Jayant Sinha, the then Minister of State for Finance and Shri K. Roy, Chairman, LIC
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country. Launched by Hon’ble President
of India on January 16, 2016 and supported
by Department of Science and Technology,
Government of India, the main objective of
the platform is to bring all the stakeholders
(namely start-up entrepreneurs, incubators,
investors (angels/ Venture Capital Firms),
advisors, industry bodies, Banks) onto
this web portal and to meet the financing
and other needs of the early stage and
start-up enterprises, so that the start-up
ecosystem is facilitated to usher in a wave
of innovations in the country. Around 500
start-ups, 48 incubators and 50 investors
have already registered on this platform.

Stand-up India

Hon’ble Prime Minister launched “Stand-
up India Scheme” on April 05, 2016 to
promote entrepreneurship among SCs/STs
and Women entrepreneurs. The Scheme is
intended to provide credit from 10 lakh
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to 1 crore to at least two new enterprises
(one enterprise for SC/ST and one for
women) per bank branch and is expected
to benefit at least 2.5 lakh borrowers. The
Stand-up India Scheme is strengthened by:

e Refinance window through SIDBI
with an initial amount of 10,000
crore.

e Creation of a credit guarantee
mechanism through the National
Credit Guarantee Trustee Company
(NCGTC).

¢  Loan facilitation through the Stand-up
India web portal www.standupmitra.
in, which is designed to obtain

application forms and provide
information, enable registrations,
provide links for handholding,

assist, tracking and monitoring. The
portal with more than 1.07 lakh bank
branches and 17,000 handholding
agencies, is functioning as a virtual
loan market place offering pre-
sanction as well as post-sanction
match-making
seekers.

services for loan

A Scheme for Promotion of Innovation,
Rural Industry and Entrepreneurship
(ASPIRE)

e  ASPIRE was launched in March 2015
to set up a technology centre network
across-the-country and incubation
centres to accelerate entrepreneurship,
promote start-ups for innovation and
entrepreneurship in rural and agro-
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industry. The scheme is designed to
provide necessary skill-set for setting
up business enterprises and also to
facilitate the market linkages available
to entrepreneurs and hand-holding
for a critical period to ensure self-
sustainability.

The most important component is to
set up Livelihood Business Incubators
(LBIs). The
is to set up Technology Business
Incubators (TBIs) to support existing
incubation centres and also new
incubation centres.

Under the scheme, 500 new
incubation centres will be set up all

second component

over India by next year.

It is also to create a framework for
Start-up Promotion through Small
Industries Development Bank of
India (SIDBI) by using innovative
means of finance like Equity, Quasi-
Equity, Angel fund, Venture capital
fund, Impact funds, Challenge funds
etc. to enable ideas/innovation with
creativity and scalability to come
to the fore and convert these into
commercial enterprises with specific
outcomes and within a specific time
period.

% Easing of registration of MSMEs

As a part of ‘Ease of Doing
Business’, the Ministry of MSME,
Gol introduced a simple one-page
registration form ‘Udyog Aadhaar
Memorandum’ to facilitate easier and
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faster registration of MSMEs. The
one-page simplified registration form
would constitute a self-declaration
format which includes the unit's
existence, bank account details,
promoter/owner Aadhaar details,
other minimum basic information
required, etc. There shall be no fee for
filing the UAM.

Union Budget 2016-17

The Union Budget 2016-17 is based
upon the theme of "Transform India".
The Budget proposes to accomplish
this through "nine pillars" that include:
Agriculture and Farmers’ Welfare (with
focus on doubling farmer's income in five
years); Rural Sector (with emphasis on
rural and infrastructure);
Social sector including healthcare (to cover
all under welfare and health services);
education, skills and job creation (to
make India a knowledge based and
productive society); infrastructure and
investment (to enhance efficiency and
quality of life); financial sector reforms
(to bring transparency and stability);
governance and ease of doing business;
fiscal discipline; and tax reforms. Some of
the highlights of the Union Budget 2016-17
relating to MSME sector are:

employment

e 300 Urban Clusters will be developed
under the Shyama Prasad Mukherjee
Urban Mission.

tax for small
companies with turnover of less than

5 crore at 29% surcharge plus cess.

° Lower Corporate
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Start-ups to get 100% tax exemption
for 3 years except MAT which will
apply from April 2016-2019.

Under Stand-Up India, T500
crore provided to benefit 2.5 lakh
Scheduled Caste (SC) / Scheduled
Tribe (ST) and women entrepreneurs.

Increase the turnover limit under
Presumptive taxation scheme under
section 44AD of the Income Tax Act
to X2 crore in order to bring big relief
to a large number of assesses in the
MSME category.

New  manufacturing  companies
incorporated on or after March 01,
2016 to be given an option to be taxed
at 25% + surcharge and cess, provided
they do not claim profit linked or
investment linked deductions and do
not avail of investment allowance and
accelerated depreciation.

Extend the presumptive taxation
scheme with profit deemed to be 50%,
to professionals with gross receipts
up to 50 lakh.

Proposes to make  necessary
amendments in the SARFAESI Act
2002 to enable the sponsor of an ARC
to hold up to 100% stake in the ARC
and permit non-institutional investors
to invest in Securitization Receipts.
This would tackle the problem of
stressed assets in the banking sector.
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Proposes to introduce a
comprehensive Code on Resolution
of Financial Firms. This Code will
provide a specialised resolution
mechanism to deal with bankruptcy
situations in banks, insurance
companies and financial sector
entities. This Code, together with the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
2015, when enacted, will provide a
comprehensive resolution mechanism
for our economy.

RBI Policy Measures

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
reduced the Repo Rate under the
liquidity adjustment facility (LAF) by
25 basis points from 6.75% to 6.5%.
This would help in reducing the cost
of borrowing.

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) granted
an  "in-principle" approval to
three companies including a joint
venture between the National Stock
Exchange's NSE Strategic Investment
Corporation Limited (NSICL) and
Small  Industries  Development
Bank of India (SIDBI) to set up and
operate a new Trade Receivables
e-Discounting System (TReDS) to
be formed under the Payment and
Settlement System (PSS) Act 2007.
TReDS will allow MSMEs to post
their receivables on the system and
get them financed, thereby addressing
the problem of delayed payments of
MSME sector.



- aiitfe yferdas 2015-16

o1y forer ol o) g : fareirar & 2015
16 & kM, aRaa Rad 86 7 10 @y
focira daf @ emgd=T FgAfea feman
2| oy T S oy v s@Edl, @y
vd dria feeami gaa ud @g San ae
FENST &F D SHEA! oY T WPR
R e i vd 31 Afea anf @ FoT
o & girard dfdn nfafaftrdt aeme|
IE IeoTE AT YRR 81T {6 HRA
Rerd d = df ufkarem gem &g o=
10 g fowr St o dfee amgerw fem &,
I & 9 B i § Fsdl & wErad e
@ 2|

Licence to Small Finance Banks:
During FY 2015-16, RBI has approved
licence to 10 Small Finance Banks
(SFBs). The small finance bank shall
primarily undertake basic banking
activities of acceptance of deposits
and lending to wunserved and
underserved sections including small
business units, small and marginal
farmers, micro and small industries
and unorganised sector entities. It is
pertinent to mention that 9 out of 10
small finance banks (SFBs), who have
been granted banking license by RBI
to carry out banking operations, have
been assisted by SIDBI in the past.

sl 1 ‘Bivara sife Wil B S0 & e o &F. emuf Rrash, Wens, Risdt 59 saw W afrfit & derfe o gl

SIDBI organised 'Conclave of Small Finance Banks'. Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, CMD, SIDBI addressing the participants on the occasion.
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e Licence to Payment Banks: The
Reserve Bank of India gave in-
principle approval for 11 entities to
set up payment banks., A payment
bank is a differentiated bank that
will undertake only certain restricted
banking functions that the Banking
Regulation Act of 1949 allows. These
activities  include acceptance of
deposits, payments and remittance
services, internet banking and
function as busines correspondant
of other banks. Initially, they are
allowed to collect deposits upto
1 lakh per individual. They can
facilitate money transfers and sell
insurance and mutual funds. Besides,
they can issue ATM/debit -cards,
but not credit cards. They cannot
set up subsidiaries to undertake
non-banking financial services
activities. More importantly, they are
not allowed to undertake lending
activities at all.

MSME Outlook

The MSME sector is poised on a high growth
trajectory, buoyed up by a strong economic
growth, an expected normal monsoon and
favourable impact of various programmes
of Government of India like ‘Make in India’,
‘Start-up India’, ‘Stand-up India” etc. These
programmes have been launched to infuse
innovative ideas and entrepreneurship into the
manufacturing and other segments, specially
new age and knowledge-based companies, thus
ensuring transforming MSMEs into a global
manufacturing and innovation hub. Further,
the launch of Udyog Adhaar Memorandum is
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focused at improving the ease of doing business
in the MSME sector by way of reducing time-
consuming formalities. The combined -effect
of various policies and initiatives of Govt. of
India is expected to improve the ranking of
the country on ease of doing business, starting
a business, competitiveness and investor
friendliness and will provide a boost to the
MSME sector in India.
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Shri Arun Jaitley, Hon’ble
Finance Minister launching
“India Aspiration Fund (IAF)”
and “SIDBI Make in India Loan
for Enterprises (SMILE)” on
August 18, 2015 in Mumbai.
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SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
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The business strategy of SIDBI is oriented
towards addressing financial gaps in niche areas
and developmental gaps in the MSME eco-
system. The niche financing areas are equity/
quasi-equity/risk capital to promote a start-up
culture in the country, receivable financing to
address delayed payments problem, sustainable
financing to mitigate the impact of adverse
climate change and services sector financing.
Besides, SIDBI provides refinancing support to
Banks/FIs for augmenting credit flow to the
MSME sector. Overall, SIDBI supplements and
complements the banks in their efforts to meet
adequate, timely and affordable credit needs of
MSMEs.

During FY 2015-16, SIDBI had undertaken a
number of business initiatives, the brief
highlights of which are enumerated in the
following paragraphs:

» ‘Make in India’ Scheme : The Government
of India had launched a new initiative
‘Make in India” to encourage multi-
national, as well as national companies to
manufacture their products in India. The
major objective behind the initiative is to
focus on job
enhancement in 25 sectors of the economy.
The initiative also aims at high quality
standards and minimising the impact on
the environment. To take this agenda
forward, SIDBI set up ‘SIDBI Make in
India’” fund with a corpus of 1,000 crore to
make MSMEs a world-class manufacturing
hub. Under the fund, concessional finance
is provided to identified MSME sectors.

creaion and skill
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SIDBI launched a %10,000 crore ‘SIDBI
Make in India Soft Loan Fund for Micro,
Small & Medium Enterprises (SMILE) to
make available soft loan to MSMEs, in the
nature of quasi-equity to meet the required
debt-equity ratio and term loan on
relatively soft terms for establishment of
new MSMEs, as also for pursuing
opportunities for growth for existing
MSMEs.

With a view to make Refinance portfolio
more stable and sustainable in terms of
repricing risk and also make it attractive to
the banks/FIs, SIDBI introduced Long Term
Refinance (18 months to 60 months) with
annual Interest Reset Clause benchmarked
to India 364 Day T-Bill Auction rate plus
negotiated margin.

In order to foster smooth implementation
of “Stand-Up India Scheme” launched by
Hon’ble Prime Minister on April 05, 2016

%mgﬁm‘aﬁmw 'ﬁg:mﬁrar' TR R HrAYET a A T - A WE Q. THIS, T IHER AUSRY, AR 85 6y,
&f. gaufa Riarst, seas vd gey e, mmﬂmwﬂ? 39 yae fiers, Rysat
Bankers' workshop on "Stand-up India" Scheme & "Standupmitra” portal. From left to right: Shri Mohan V. Tanksale, CEO, IBA,
Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, CMD, SIDBI and Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur, DMD, SIDBI.

Bankers' Workshop on Stan
standupmitr J\ rtal
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to provide bank loans between 10 lakh
and 1 crore to at least one Scheduled
Caste (SC) or Scheduled Tribe (ST)
borrower and at least one woman borrower
per bank branch for setting up a green-
field enterprise, SIDBI developed a web-
portal “www.standupmitra.in” which was
also launched by Hon'ble Prime Minister
on the same day. The portal enables an
MSME to apply for Stand-up loans, as also
other MSME loans. It also acts as a loan
market place for application filing and
tracking as well as provides the facility for
choice of branches/ banks for credit
assistance. The portal tracks individual
applications and also facilitates the overall
handholding process.

Equity/Risk Capital: Equity/ Quasi-equity/
Risk capital assistance has significant uses
for MSMEs whose growth plans get
constrained due to shortage of capital and
limitations in offering collateral. Important
initiatives taken by SIDBI under this broad
objective are as given below:

During the year, the Bank constituted a
%2,000 crore India Aspiration Fund (IAF)
which was launched by Hon'ble Finance
Minister on August 18, 2015. IAF is being
utilized as a Fund of Funds for making
investments in Alternative Investment
Funds [AIFs] which would, in turn, make
investments in MSMEs to the extent of
twice the commitment of SIDBI or 50% of
the corpus of the AIF whichever is more.
As on March 31, 2016, SIDBI has
committed 607 crore to 19 VCFs under
IAF.
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Launch of SIDBI Start-up Mitra portal: As
part of up-scaling its initiatives to address
the gaps in the start-up eco-system, SIDBI
created an on-line platform
“wwuw.sidbistartupmitra.in”,  which  was
launched by the Hon'ble President of India
on March 17, 2016. The portal will enable
entrepreneurs in the start-up community
located pan India to get connected with
various stake holders viz. incubators,
mentors, angel networks, venture capital
funds, etc. The portal is also supported by
Department of Science and Technology
[DST], Govt. of India. Around 500 start-
ups, 48 incubators and 50 investors have
already registered on this platform.

A new page hitps:/[venturefund.sidbi.in has
been created to give complete details on
the operations under India Aspiration
Fund [IAF] with details of various AlFs
supported so that start-ups could directly
contact them for support. SIDBI signed an
MoU with Life Insurance Corporation of
India (LIC) on April 07, 2016, under which
LIC has allocated an amount of ¥200 crore
to co-invest along with India Aspiration
Fund.

Subsequent to the announcement by
Hon’ble Prime Minister on January 16,
2016 at New Delhi to create a fund corpus
of 10,000 crore (X2,500 crore every year for
a period of four years) for start-ups, an
amount of Y500 crore has since been
received in FY 2015-16 through budgetary
allocation.
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Under “A Scheme for Promotion of
Innovation, Rural Industry and
Entrepreneurship (ASPIRE)” Fund of
Ministry of MSME, X 60 crore was allocated
and disbursed to SIDBI for managing the
Fund for investing in VCs with investment
focus on startup and early stage
enterprises in the areas of Rural and Agro
Industries.

Merchant Banking: During the year, SIDBI
commenced its merchant banking activities
by acting as co-lead manager for the public
issue of one of its customers in NSE-SME
platform “EMERGE”. The issue size of
X5.76 crore was oversubscribed by 1.34
times

Foreign LoCs: SIDBI has contracted a Line
of Credit (LoC) of USD 500 million with
International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development(IBRD) for ‘MSME Growth
Innovation and Inclusion Finance Project’
(MSME-IIF) which will focus on financial
intermediation to the MSME sector in
India. The objective is to improve access to
finance for MSMEs in manufacturing and
service sectors from early to growth stage
firms, including through innovative
financial products for inclusive growth of
MSMEs.

Alternate Hedging mechanism: Alternate
Hedging Mechanism for Foreign Currency
Lines of Credit was introduced to reduce
the cost of hedging.

New Risk Rating models for MFIs, Asset
Light Business, Cash flow based business,
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Commercial Real Estate business and
Secured Business Loan were
implemented.

New financing channels were created
through  Industry  Associations viz.
Karnataka  Small  Scale Industries
Association, National Institute of Bank
Management, Rai Industries Association,
near Delhi, Coimbatore District Small Scale
Industries Association (CODISSIA) &
Chamber of Small Industries Association
(COSIA).

IT Intiatives:

= SIDBI Mitra-Mobile Application
The app has been designed to
facilitate  providing  information
related to accounts of the customer
with SIDBI, channel for mobile
messaging  directly = with  the
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SIDBI signs MoU with Karnataka Small Scale Industries Association (KASSIA)
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Relationship Manager (RM), and
service requests related to loan ledger,
demand advices etc. An interface for
SIDBI officers has also been made
operational for monitoring the
communication and requests from the
customers generated through the app
and also for sending messages to the
users by RMs.

Virtual Account System (VAS) was
implemented for all the branches to
automate the procedure of passing
the vouchers in respect of the
payments received by the Branch
Offices (BOs), thereby leading to
reduction in the man-hours spent on
the identification of the payments

Fredt vd da 3T WieT guewIsT FRITeH & THgta F0 0% gwaEx|
Signing of MoU between SIDBI and Chamber of Small Industries Association (COSIA).
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received through the  account
statements of the BOs and then
appropriating the same against the
customer accounts maintained in
various application modules as per
the schemes of assistance; increase in
the accuracy of the data as well as
prevent time lag in the date of receipt,
its identification and appropriation.

Centralisation of receipt of service tax
and TDS and introduction of Vendor
Payment Module (VPM).

Implemented centralized module for
managing loan securities.

e HR initiatives (Skill Development and
Talent Management):

e TNg WUtH Uga (Pl fdew ik ufasn
gae=):

®  Total number of training modules

» IRY foe m pa gReor dAege -

10 Aisege, forem A
Rer BIED (] (rezrm/TRTEOT
arnfi/sregferason) - 5 Aise

®. T Yo
@ Fues faer sried

T. I fow Wwee - geied sk

FHeT
g frodwor & sl oRaE,
qdaer 3R FREr gae

§. WEIW, Fpysl, I gan
HfuErive) it & &
fofvram 3 fftrexor

(M)

launched - 10 modules of which;

Static Modules  (Study/training
materials/presentations) - 5 modules

a. Credit Appraisal
b.  Executive Development Program

Institutions -
Appraisal and Assessment

¢. Micro Finance

d. Follow Ups, Supervision and
Monitoring Aspects in Lending

e. 'Start-ups, Quasi-Capital,
Venture Capital Fund (VCF) &
Fund of Funds Regulation &
Funding'
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(i) fcreier Hisye (F[TIE0T T TWHeIH) (i) Dynamic Modules (Self Learning &

- 5 Higege Self Assessment) - 5 modules

. ARIRS TR a.  Citizens' Charter

g, ‘wEd 3R A% 39 sfEar b. 'SMILE' and 'Make in India'

. STH™T c¢. Rajbhasha

u. hfew gees d. Risk Management

§ A Sgfdadatsi § wgfaa e. Due Diligence of Machinery
GIEIE Suppliers



9 A4 UiRer=
Overall Business Operations

22-24 3riter 2016 @ Has A A FawT W @
Business Review Meet was held on April 22-24, 2016 in Mumbai.

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
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H 3 0T H T&T T 83% & | e meas

I.  Overall Operations

SIDBI registered strong business growth during
FY 2015-16. The total MSME credit outstanding
increased by 18.6% during FY 2015-16 to
65,632 crore as against ¥55,343 crore in FY
2014-15. The outstanding details are given in
Table 3.1.

II. Indirect Credit

Indirect credit comprises refinancing support to
banks, State Financial Corporations (SFCs), Bills
Rediscounting support to banks, assistance to
Microfinance Institutions (MFIs) and resource
support to various institutions and agencies and
constitutes about 83% of total credit outstanding
of SIDBI. While the indirect finance increased by

afereT 3.1 : §9u uReme=

Table 3.1 : Overall Operations @ Eb'\"T??' Jaroré)
féra=o1 / Particulars forhtar af / Fy 2014-15 | fareitar af / Fy 2015-16
ST R / O/s Amt | s&TaT AR/ O/s Amt
T 31 91, T 31 A,
as on March 31 as on March 31
I. 3U<a& 201/ Indirect Credit
@. qAfd< / a. Refinance 38,098 46,544
@, 3icY faw / b. Micro Finance 1,603 2,013
T, TEIewR / 3 / 4,054 5,678
c. Resource Support to NBFC / Others
| e JwcaE 01/ Total Indirect Credit 43,755 54,235
II. 9<a& 70T/ Direct Credit
@. SNET Y5H / a. Risk Capital 1,279 792
@. fea1s faw / b. Sustainable Finance 2,747 1,920
T, 4T &7 / c. Service Sector 2,297 1,934
H. THEHUHS YT fawl / d. MSME Receivable Finance 2,083 1,513
§. 3 e. Others 3,182 5,238
| ©c1 Y& 01/ Total Direct Credit 11,588 11,397
Hde AT / Grand Total 55,343 65,632

femqoft : g i faeRaR see @ s ¢ I T TG JEuE! B g a9 T © |

Note: Outstanding figures are net of prudential write-off and NPA provision
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24% to 54,235 crore, refinance to banks / Fls
which constitutes around 86% of total indirect
finance and around 71% of total credit
outstanding, increased by 22% during the year
under review (Table 3.2 & 3.3).

Tar 24% SR 3 54,235 RIS &1 74T, 98l i / i
G B g, 3 Her Jwcaer fa &1 aHT 86%
T o1 FHOTHIAT BT AT 71% &, Trerel af &
2R 22% T 9 T (aifera 3.2 9 3.3)|

et 3.2: faf¥re wwensit &t =i weme

Table 3.2: Refinance Assistance to various institutions

(¥ &g/ crore)

T Institutions 2014 -15 2015 -16

ot | wfeewon o/ wol | <o sl

Sanc. Disb. Qutstanding Sanc. Disb. Qutstanding

T 31 A1, a1 31 AT,
as on March 31 as on March 31

d® / Banks 36,308 35,308 36,359 44610 | 44,629 45,268
9 fadra e / SECs 143 119 1,704 97 79 1,251
A=W / NEDFi 0 0 35 0 0 25
anr/ Total 36,451 | 35,427 38,098 44,707 | 44,708 46,544

Tl : s@mrr IR feeER se¢ @ g 78 ¥ qun edte g @ g aeE TS | |

Note: Outstanding figures are net of prudential write-off and NPA provision.
aftreT 3.3: TisT1-aR d@ran AR@i g 31 w7, 2016

Table 3.3: Scheme-wise outstanding as on March 31, 2016 (X @15/ crore)
G151/ Scheme sorar ¥ goTar Al
o 31 |, 2015 g1 31 AT, 2016

Amount outstanding | Amount outstanding
as on March 31,2015 | as on March 31, 2016

UHUES3IREY /| MSERS 26,835 36,078

fael 71 # gAfd<T / Refinance in Foreign currency 1,323 1,334

JREATHS-V / RMSE-V 3,047 7,856

HAREAEES -V / RMSE-IV 5,154 0

0T 9147 / Line of Credit 1,739 1,276

Pet | Total 38,098 46,544

oot : gerar If¥m TCC G ST TE MY qAT TANT FaE= B g &S TS & |

Note: Outstanding figures are net of prudential write-off and NPA provision.
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Refinance to Primary Lending Institutions

In terms of Section 13(1)(i) of SIDBI Act, 1989,
SIDBI provides refinance to State Financial
Corporation, State Industrial Development
Corporations, State Small Industries
Corporations, Scheduled banks, State
Cooperative Banks or such other financial
institutions approved by the Board against the
loans and advances granted to industrial
concerns in Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs).
Refinance is being channeled through the
following schemes of SIDBI:

i. Micro and Small Enterprises Refinance
Scheme (MSERS) to Banks (General
Fund)

MSERS is offered to Scheduled Banks
(including State Co-operative Banks, Urban
Co-operative Banks, Private Sector Banks,
Foreign Banks etc.),
Institutions for the amount equivalent to
the outstanding portfolio relating to loans
and advances to units in MSE sector

select Financial

against which no financial support has
been sought from any other institution or
refinance from SIDBI. The refinance is
generally extended for six months to five
years. During FY 2015-16, a sum of 35,730
crore was disbursed to 17 Public / Private
Sector Banks.

Refinance Scheme for Micro and Small
Enterprises Sector - V (RMSE - V)

In order to enhance the refinance capability
of SIDBI, the Government of India, through
Budget for FY 2013-14 had increased the
allocation to 10,000 crore per year.
Accordingly, Reserve Bank of India had
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allocated a corpus of ¥10,000 crore to
SIDBI under the MSE (Refinance) Fund FY
2013-14. Out of the corpus of 10,000 crore
allocated, SIDBI disbursed ¥4,899 crore
during FY 2015-16 to micro and small
enterprises through banks which had lent
to MSEs at base-rate. The total utilization
of the Fund as on March 31, 2016 stood at
T 7,856 crore.

Line of Credit to State Financial
Corporation (SFCs)
Under the scheme, SIDBI sanctions

refinance against term loans sanctioned by
the SFCs to industrial concerns in Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs)
sector for setting up of industrial projects
in MSME sector and also for their

expansion, modernisation and
diversification. Based on the annual
Business Plan and Resources Forecast

(BPRF), refinance limits are sanctioned to
SFCs annually. During FY 2015-16,
refinance limit of ¥96.94 crore was
sanctioned to 6 SFCs in standard category
viz, Andhra Pradesh State Financial
Corporation (APSFC), Delhi Financial
Corporation (DFC), Kerala Financial
Corporation (KFC), Madhya Pradesh
Financial Corporation (MPFC), Tamilnadu
Industrial Investment Corporation Ltd.
(THC) and West Bengal Financial
Corporation (WBEC). Out of the above, an
amount of ¥78.65 crore was disbursed to 3
SFCs, viz. APSFC, MPFC & TIIC.
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Initiatives relating to SFCs

=  Inspection of State Financial

Corporations

In accordance with the provisions of
Section 37-A of State Financial
Corporations Act, 1951 as amended by
SFC (Amendment) Act, 2000, SIDBI carried
out the annual comprehensive inspections
of 8 SFCs viz.,, APSFC, DFC, KFC, KSFC,
MPFC, RFC, TIC & WBFC and limited
coverage inspection of 8 SFCs viz., AFC,
BSFC, GSFC, HFC, HPFC, JKSFC, OSFC &
PFC during FY 2015-16.

=  Regulatory Directives

SIDBI has taken various initiatives as part

of compliance to RBI regulatory
requirements. Up-to-date Income
Recognition and Asset Classification

(IRAC) norms and guidelines of KYC/AML
norms have been issued to SFCs and
compliance thereof is being monitored.

Resource Support to Institutions

SIDBI has been financing NBFCs, both Asset
Finance Companies (AFCs) and Loan
Companies (LC) for channelizing funds to
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMESs)
in accordance with the policy approved by
Bank’s Board and as a part of its mandate to
serve MSME sector. Eight new NBFC customers
were sanctioned resource support for an
aggregate amount of ¥1,825 crore during the
year. The total sanctions and disbursements
under resource support during the year was
34,480 crore and X 3,138 crore, respectively and
the outstanding as on March 31, 2016 stood at
35,678 crore registering 40% growth.
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Micro Finance

SIDBI has been providing assistance for
financing the micro finance loans (upto ¥ 50,000)
and also the Missing Middle segment (loans in
the range of ¥50,000 - ¥10,00,000) through
NBFCs / NBFC-MFIs, etc. The Lines of Credit
(LoCs) from ADB and KfW, Germany for
financing Missing Middle enterprises are in
operation.

The cumulative assistance (including Iloans,
equity and quasi-equity but excluding India
Micro Finance Equity Fund (IMEF) & Poorest
States Inclusive Growth (PSIG) Fund)
sanctioned wunder SIDBI's micro finance
initiatives upto March 31, 2016 aggregated
T12,254 crore, while cumulative disbursements
aggregated 10,769 crore. The microfinance
outstanding (gross) of the Bank increased by
23% to ¥2,996 crore. The number of MFIs
assisted by SIDBI and having loan outstanding
with the Bank as on March 31, 2016 stood at 98.
The assistance through SIDBI has benefited
around 345 lakh (approx.) disadvantaged
people, most of them being women. The
comparative operational highlights of SIDBI's
Micro Finance Support are given in the
following Table 3.4.

III. Direct Financing
A. Risk Capital Assistance:

= In order to address the gap in
meeting growth capital requirements,
SIDBI has been providing risk capital
assistance to MSMEs for meeting
funding gaps in the means of finance
for capital expenditure, intangible
requirements like expenditure for
R&D, marketing / brand building,
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TIfeTHT 3.4 : 3T FOT AV TAT Sferacy/3rel $faradt WA & IFRiT WETddl
Table 3.4 : Assistance under Micro Credit Loans and Equity / Quasi Equity Assistance

% &5/ crore)
. |f&@xo1/ Particulars forcfra and ot and werht
SL FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 Cumulative
No.
Disb. |Outstanding| Disb. | Outstanding Disb.
das on as on
March 31 March 31
1 | 37eq Tom Temsit & qrafer o 94197 | 1,532.09 |[1,200.88| 1,988.04 9,836.43
Term Loans to MFIs
2 | oot fom wvemsil/ IR dfd famr | 21000 | 267.37 | 100.00 283.34 446.14
afeal @ ‘dfad Aeom ol dee
BEEGH
Missing Middle Assistance to
PFIs / NBFCs
3 | 3reufea d=ensi @ arafafer wor 92.00 92.00 52.75 144.75 144.75
Long dated Loans to MFIs
4 | EHETA-UTE JUR 0.00 0.77 0.00 0.67 12.25
MEL - Direct Lending
5 |®urRor #o1 (éteer) ®urRer & | 0.00 1.85 0.00 1.85 19.05
fore WAt wera
Transformation Loan (TL) /Corpus
support for transformation
6 |31 U / Subordinate Debt.| 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 175
7 | $fdadt Werda / Equity Support 0.00 84.89 50.00 134.73 135.55
8 |fadeua: WRad-rg ¥ siftm=r | 0.00 24746 0.00 233.88 0.00
9I4R / Optionally Convertible
Cumulative Preference Shares
9 | fHarda: sRad-a siftm=T 2R 0.00 109.20 0.00 109.20 0.00
Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares
T/ Total 1,243.97 | 2435.63 |1,403.63 2,996.46 10,769.17

Teuoft : siics w@er € SR g $feract / ared-$feach e o €

Note: Data are gross and include equity / quasi-equity investment.
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technical knowhow, energy efficiency,
quality control, WC margin, etc.
where bank loans are generally not
available as such investments are non-
asset creating.

= SIDBI started the Risk Capital
operations in 2009 under the MSME
Risk Capital Fund (MSME- RCF) with
a committed corpus of ¥2,000 crore.
The Fund has been fully committed.

. As at the end of FY 2015-16, the
outstanding (gross) under Risk
Capital assistance was Y918 crore.

Fund of Fund operations:

The Bank has been contributing to SEBI
registered venture funds/ Alternative
Investment Funds [AIFs] for more than a
decade now. The cumulative net
commitments to VC / PE Funds as at the
end of FY 2015-16 stood at 2,311 crore.

TIFAC-SIDBI  Technology Innovation
Programme (Srijan Scheme)

SIDBI has executed a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) with Technology
Information, Forecasting and Assessment
Council (TIFAC) for implementing the
Technology Innovation Programme (Srijan
Scheme). The Scheme provides
developmental loan upto ¥1 crore at
concessional interest rate of not more than
5% to encourage / promote development /
innovate new technology / process /
product and its commercialization. A
revolving innovation fund of ¥30 crore
was created by TIFAC under the scheme.
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During the year under review, three
innovative proposals of ¥2.63 crore were
sanctioned, aggregating the total assistance
to ¥13.56 crore under the scheme.

B. Sustainable Finance

Since 2003, SIDBI has been operating focused
lending schemes for promoting investment in
clean production and energy
technologies / production processes under
bilateral lines of credit from international
agencies such as JICA, Japan, AFD, France and
KfW, Germany. These focused schemes have
two pronged approach, i.e. concessional lending
to encourage investment in green, energy
efficient  investments and  information
dissemination to various MSME sectors.

efficient

Energy Efficiency Lines of credit

SIDBI operated focused concessional lending
schemes for Energy Efficiency (EE) out of Lines

et @ kg Fatt wi=eor REBR 2015 & sienfar faxiar dwen af F yom REeR u g3l

SIDBI bagged first prize in the National Energy Conservation Award 2015 under Financial Institutions category.
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of Credit (LoCs) from various multilateral /
bilateral agencies, viz. Japan International
Cooperation Agency (JICA) Phase I - JPY 30
billion, Phase - II — JPY 30 billion, Phase - III -
JPY 30  Dbillion, Agence Francaise de
Développement (AFD), France — EUR 50 million
and Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (KfW),
Germany — EUR 50 million. The main objective
of these schemes is to enhance energy efficiency,
reduce CO, emissions and improve the
profitability of the Indian MSMEs in the long
run.

Cleaner Production/Environmental Lines of
credit

SIDBI has contracted LoCs aggregating EUR
53.74 million from KfW, Germany for promoting
investment in cleaner production options in the
MSME sector. The main objective of these LoCs
is to achieve a reduction or avoidance of
emission and pollution through cleaner
production investments. Investment such as
Common Effluent Treatment Plants (CETPs),
waste treatment, storage & disposal facilities,
waste recycling, etc., benefitting large number of
MSMEs in the industrial clusters are also
eligible under the assistance. Individual MSMEs
going in for investments that will result in the
pollution control, waste reduction, improvement
in raw material productivity etc., are eligible for
coverage under the line. As on March 31, 2016,
307 MSMEs were assisted with an aggregate
term loan of more than X355 crore under these
LoCs.

WB-GEF Project — Financing Energy Efficiency
in MSMEs

SIDBI, along with Bureau of Energy Efficiency
(BEE) is executing a Global Environmental
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Facility (GEF) funded World Bank project, viz.
“Financing Energy Efficiency at MSMEs” in five
MSME clusters viz., Kolhapur- foundry,
Tirunelveli- Limekilns, Ankleshwar- chemicals,
Pune- forging and Faridabad- mixed cluster
since October 2010. Further, the project has been
expanded to include five more MSME mixed
clusters viz.,, Delhi NCR, Ludhiana, Varanasi,
Thane and Dehradun during FY 2015-16. The
objective of the project is “To increase demand
for energy efficiency investments in the target
MSME clusters and to build their capacity to
access commercial finance”. The key
beneficiaries of the project include participating
MSMEs who will realize the potential benefits
from EE investments/improvements including
clean & lean manufacturing opportunities;
Banks / FIs from increased business
opportunities; energy professionals & Local
Service Providers (LSPs) from increased demand
for their services and Industry Associations
enabling them to carry out EE related activities
in their clusters. The main deliverable of the
project is to provide technical support to
MSMEs resulting in catalyzing investments for
implementing Energy Conservation Measures in
500 MSMEs. The project also aimed at emission
reduction to the tune of 1.5 million tonnes of
cO

’y

The outcome of the Project has so far been
satisfactory. Cluster Profile Reports of the initial
five clusters have been developed and uploaded
on the SIDBI website for its wider
dissemination. More than 1200 walk-through
audits were undertaken, 700 detailed energy
audits conducted and 696 Investment Grade
Detailed Project Report (IGDPRs) prepared in
the ten clusters under the project. More than 600
MSMEs have started implementing energy
conservation measures in these clusters. A third
party measurement & verification has been
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conducted in more than 500 MSMEs which has
indicated excellent results. The project has
achieved its objective of emission reduction of
almost 1.5 million tonnes of CO,.

Further, under the project, more than 85
Capacity Building and Awareness Programs
have been conducted for MSMEs, Industries
Associations and various other key stakeholders
on various topics related to energy efficiency
which has outreached more than 4,200
participants. Besides, 36 Training Programs
were conducted under which around 1,100
participants from banks/FIs/NBFCs/SFCs/CAs/
financial professionals etc were sensitized /
trained on Energy Efficiency financing. SIDBI
also conducted 14 exhibitions along with
exposure visits to attract EE equipment
suppliers/vendors/service providers/ESCOs in
the targeted clusters and more than 200 vendor
companies had participated.

A new “Integrated Credit Rating Model with
Embedded Green Parameters” has been
developed and pilot tested by SIDBI under its
WB-GEF Project. The Project has also been
mentioned in the Government of India’s
document on Intended Nationally Determined
Contributions (INDCs) submitted to UNFCCC.

The 4E (End-to-End Energy Efficiency)
Solutions

SIDBI has launched the End-to-End Energy
Efficiency Solutions (4E solutions) Product on
the “World Environment Day”. The 4E solution
provides technical support to MSME clients to
improve their energy savings by availing the
services of Technical Consultant / Energy
Services Companies (ESCOs) at a reasonable
cost with assurance on the quality of services.
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The 4E Solution is being implemented by India
SME Technology Services Limited (ISTSL), an
associate institution of SIDBI by utilizing the
services of specialized energy professionals. As
on date, more than 100 MSMEs have benefitted
so far from the 4E Solution programme which
has resulted in GHG emissions reduction of
approx 11,500 tons of CO,.

Further, a Revolving Fund (4E Financing
Scheme) has been created to provide loans to
MSMEs for such energy efficiency projects at
concessional interest rates and soft terms. The
Revolving Fund shall include GEF Grant of USD
3 million from World Bank and contribution
from SIDBI out of its general fund in the ratio of
(28:72).

Green Climate Fund (GCF)

Green Climate Fund (GCF) is a new fund
created within the framework of the United
Nations Framework Convention for Climate
Change (UNFCCC) to promote a paradigm shift
towards low-emission and climate-resilient
development pathways by providing support to
developing countries to limit or reduce their
greenhouse gas emissions and to adapt to the
impacts of climate change. The developed
countries have committed to mobilize USD 100
billion per annum by 2020 for GCF. These funds
shall be provided by GCF to developing
countries in the form of grants, concessional
lending and through other modalities to enable
and support climate change mitigation and
adaptation actions. Ministry of Environment,
Forests & Climate Change (MoEFCC),
Government of India has nominated SIDBI as
National Implementing Entity (NIE) for
accreditation with Green Climate Fund (GCEF).
SIDBI is in the process of accreditation with
Green Climate Fund (GCF). Once accredited, the
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Bank will be eligible for grant and soft loans
directly from GCF instead of being routed
through multilateral agencies like World Bank at
as present.

C. Service Sector Financing

e  The services sector remains the key driver
of India’s economic growth, contributing
almost 53% of its gross value added in FY
2015-16. The sector also remained the most
vibrant in terms of contribution to trade
flows, FDI inflows and employment.
India’s services sector covers a wide
variety of activities such as trade, hotel and
restaurants, transport, storage,
communication, ﬁ.nanci.ng, insurance, real
estate, business services, community, social
& personal services and services associated
with construction. In view of the growing
role of service sector, SIDBI has been
focusing on service sector as one of its
niche areas in business.

D. Receivable Finance Scheme

e  Receivable Finance Scheme (RFS), launched
in the year 1991, is one of the pioneer
schemes of the Bank. In order to help the
MSMEs for quicker realization of their
receivables, SIDBI fixes limits to well-
performing purchaser companies and
discounts usance bills of MSMEs / eligible
service sector units supplying components,
parts, sub-assemblies, services, etc. so that
the MSME / service sector units realise
their sale proceeds quickly. SIDBI also
offers invoice discounting facilities to the
MSME suppliers of purchaser companies.
The focus this year has been on

strengthening the existing processes and

guidelines.
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IV. Non-Fund Based Facility

The Bank also provides various non-fund based
services like Letters of Credit (both foreign and
inland) to MSMEs, Guarantees, etc., to micro &
small enterprises in addition to services
provided within the fraditional banking
framework. Summary of businesses under non-
fund based facility during FY 2015-16 is
provided in Table 3.5.

V. SIDBI as Nodal Agency for Government

Schemes
e SIDBI plays Nodal Agency role in
implementation of various schemes

undertaken by the Government of India
(Gol) for MSME sector viz., Credit Linked
Capital Subsidy Scheme (CLCSS) [Ministry
of MSME], Technology Upgradation Fund

Scheme for Textile Industry(TUES)
s &g stefie swee il diser (eo) [Ministry — of  Textiles|, Integrated
[UgT HATCIA], THET &5 Toigd (aar Arar Development  of  Leather  Sector
(IS TrTaE)[@eg vd I HAe] Scheme(IDLSS) [Ministry of Commerce &
. i S Industry],  Scheme of  Technology
- ! / Upgradation/Setting ~ up/Modernization/
et 3.5: iR-fftr smenfRa =awm
Table 3.5: Non-Fund Based Business
& @s/ crore)
f&@a%o1 / Particulars faretra af / Fy 2014-15 Tt ad / FyY 2015-16
9. Craeef Number Eae)
Number | Outstanding as Outstanding as
on March 31 on March 31
fadel RE-U7 / Foreign Letter of Credit 60 81.06 43 62.53
3IA&3IY TRE-UF / Inland Letter of Credit 1 0.65 2 2.36
TREY AT / Gurantee Scheme 235 55.42 236 60.31
TN / Total 296 137.13 281 125.20




anegfdaRvlfaar diomT (TwiieTs) [@me
RIRHR0T I HATerd] AR SN vd qoran
399 (o) Aol [CHUHEHE HAGD] &
foraraom & fore Reset sa ool & gt
forvmar 1

THIEe af & aR™ Fasdr & yoaEa: wear-
TG 431 UTH &H BF o1 eI (THEEs) & o
¥23.57 ARI'S & a1al B WITATATHTT b S
Froerar man| W 8, we-aifsra yrafie #uerEt
sl 9 Heftd 2350 UHUEs & < 154.54
g & afewer-ardl & fuem Y foar
JIHER 2000 H 3 AIsHT & ART &1 A 37§ b

Hadt w0 § T1,289.42 TS B Y3 wlewsr &b
21,5212mal @1 foraer fesar s gar |

39 TR, TR b 3Tl [se) & e el Serddl-
T SRaTal & e ¥ 346 wfewst g (s
Preare afsaer siiv Ganmfsta ofdr afss,
a1 B ufa T 10.15 WIg AR Ge-aifaa mafie
FOTETAT LT3 GIRT THUHs @I JYcTed T
& wag # 990 wfewsr-aral & ufr T T23.93
a1 o fuer fasar man| anter 1999 & eo &
IRe fohe ST & 319 a0 Tl §9 § T736.42
s & Yot afswdt 3k et Meare @t &
e foar s gar 1

FTSETTEHES T AR 2005 # fovar 11| 7@
A1 2016 T FHD F=<Id PeT T291.81 IR

& 1759 @&t @ Fue fosar mar &1 vedews
AT 1 3t 2007 ¥ fap-iraxor 8 I
39 3t HATed & 58 Faar (o 92 forwt
oifer &) & dag § T14.03 aRIE B IREH-
HETIAT ot GegfcT B 7§ & | ¥ wic Fasdt 9

Annual Report 2015-16 -

Expansion of Food Processing Industries
(FPTUFS) [Ministry of Food Processing
Industries] and Technology and Quality
Upgradation (TEQUP) Scheme [Ministry of
MSME] to encourage MSMEs in adopting
modern/energy efficient technologies.

During the year under review, capital
subsidy claims of 431 eligible Micro and
Small Enterprises (MSEs) directly assisted
by SIDBI aggregating ¥23.57 crore were
settled under CLCSS. Further, subsidy
claims of 2350 MSEs amounting to ¥154.54
crore in respect of co-opted Primary
Lending Institutions(PLIs) were also
settled. Since the launch of the Scheme in
October 2000, 21,521 capital subsidy claims
aggregating ¥1,289.42 crore (cumulative)
were settled.

Similarly, under TUFS, 346 subsidy claims
(both interest incentive subsidy and
capital/margin money subsidy) for SIDBI's
directly assisted cases amounting to ¥10.15
crore and 990 subsidy claims aggregating
to ¥23.93 crore were settled in respect of
the co-opted PLIs for their assistance to
MSEs. Since the launch of the TUFS in
April 1999, capital subsidy and interest
incentive claims for an amount of ¥736.42
crore (cumulative) have been settled.

Under IDLSS, which was launched in
November 2005, 1759 claims aggregating
T 291.81 crore were settled till March 2016.
Under FPTUES, subsequent to
decentralization of the Scheme from April
2007, 58 cases (involving 92 installments)
have been recommended to the Ministry,
for grant-in-aid amounting to ¥ 14.03 crore
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against which subsidy aggregating I12.92
crore has been released in respect of 82
claims, assisted by SIDBI. During FY 2015-
16, T 1.52 crore was settled in respect of 10
claims.

Regarding TEQUP, 82 claims involving
X625 crore of eligible subsidy were
disbursed till March 2016. During FY 2015-
16, 4.05 crore was settled in respect of 55
claims.

Consulting Services to DEITY, Gol

The Bank has entered into agreement with
Department of Electronics and Information
and Technology [DEITY], Ministry of
Communications and IT, Government of
India for appraising of proposals under
Modified Special Incentive Package Scheme
[MSIPS]. Under the Scheme, Gol is
providing incentive/subsidy to units for
investment made in projects related to
electronics industry. SIDBI on behalf of
DEITY, is carrying out technical and
financial appraisal of the proposals
submitted by the applicant to determine
feasibility of the project and amount
eligible for capital subsidy under the
scheme. During the financial year under
review, 16 applications amounting to
projects worth ¥ 3,300 crore were appraised
by SIDBI which generated fee based
income of ¥ 3.50 crore.

. Risk Management

SIDBI has put in place a comprehensive
Risk Management System which is
sensitive and responsive to various risks
emanating from its business and other
operations. The framework for risk
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management in the Bank encompasses
policies, organization structure, system and
practices of identification, assessment,
measurement, mitigation and monitoring
of various risks of the Bank. The Bank has
in place Enterprise Risk Management
[ERM] Policy which is reviewed annually.
The ERM Policy is an umbrella document
that covers the general/ common aspects
pertaining to risk management by the Bank
and links to the subsidiary policy
documents, viz, Loan Policy, Loan
Recovery Policy, Investment Policy, Asset -
Liability Management [ALM] Policy,
Operational Risk Management [ORM]
Policy, Business Continuity Management
[BCM] Policy, IT Security Policy,
Delegation of Powers, etc. Besides the
credit, market and operational risks
covered in various policies, the other risks,
viz., residual credit, credit concentration,
interest rate risks in banking book, legal,
reputation, etc., are addressed in the
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) Policy.

The risks associated with the Bank’s
lending and treasury operations, including
off-balance sheet items, are constantly
monitored, measured and managed under
the overall supervision and guidance of
Risk Management Committee (RiMC) of
the Board. Though not enjoined upon the
Bank, as a proactive measure to be in
preparedness of compliance to Basel II
norms, the Bank has put in place
Integrated Risk Management System
[IRMS], which includes policies and
systems for Credit Risk Management
[CRM], Market Risk Management, ORM
and ICAAP. The Bank has implemented
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Comprehensive Operational Risk Evaluator
(CORE) system which is used for Loss
Data Capture, Key Risk Indicator (KRI),
and Risk and Control Self Assessment
(RCSA). The Bank has also implemented
BCM Policy, which is designed to ensure
continuity of critical business operations
during disasters. The intention is to ensure
that the Bank is able to minimize the
disruption to critical operations at a level
which is acceptable to Management by
putting in place a robust and resilient
business  continuity = strategy = and
framework.

NPA Management

In order to improve the overall quality of
assets of the Bank, the NPA management
strategy of the Bank is to reduce the
present level of Non-Performing Assets
(NPAs), prevent further slippages and to
maximise recovery out of NPAs through
appropriate recovery tools. As per the
directives of Government of India, a Board
level ‘Recovery Review Committee’ has
been constituted to review all individual
NPA cases having principal outstanding of
T3 crore and above. Further, another
Committee called Fast Track Committee
has been constituted to review all the NPA
cases and Stressed Assets having principal
outstanding of ¥1 crore and above. The
system of regular meeting of in-house
Default Review Committee (DRC) at the
Operating Offices is also helping to
monitor the NPA accounts and accounts
causing concern has become an effective
monitoring tool. The level of Gross NPAs
under direct assistance portfolio (after
Prudential Write-Off (PWO)), stood at
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T 688 crore as on March 31, 2016. The net
NPAs (after provisioning) stood at 346
crore.

As a measure of introspection and sharing
of knowledge, the Bank has also devised a
system of review of fresh slippage of
accounts into the NPA category to
understand and analyse causes of failure
thereof. The reasons for fresh slippages are
related mainly to borrowers like
management problems, inexperience of
management team, labour problems, time
overrun, cost overrun, etc. and external
factors like changes in policy, power
related problem, recession in the industry,
general slow-down in the economy, lack of
adequate working capital, unfavorable
changes in market forces, etc. The Bank is
taking  necessary action including
restructuring of advances (under CDR
mechanism and SIDBI’s scheme), wherever
found necessary to help the borrowers in
tiding over their liquidity problems. There
were also a few cases of wilful default /
misappropriation / diversion of funds.

In case of Indirect Assistance portfolio
(including Micro Finance), the level of
gross NPAs stood at ¥320 crore as on
March 31, 2016 and net NPAs stood at
%135 crore. The Bank has been taking a
number of initiatives, including dialogues
with the state governments concerned, to
safeguard its interests in respect of NPAs
of SFCs. The Bank has also been engaged
constructively  with  Micro  Finance
Institutions that are NPAs, for resolution
and recovery of dues from them.
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° The Gross NPAs of the Bank at ¥1,008
crore constituted 1.51% of gross credit
outstanding of the Bank as at end of March
2016. The net NPAs at ¥ 481 crore was only
0.73% of net credit outstanding.

VIIL Resources Management

e  Resources aggregating ¥53,807 crore were
raised by SIDBI during FY 2015-16 as
against 22,664 crore during FY 2014-15.
This also includes Short term borrowings
of T4709 crore and 23,985 crore
mobilised and repaid during FY 2014-15
and FY 2015-16 respectively. The
particulars of resources raised during FY
2015-16 are given in the table 3.6.

e  Hedging of Foreign Currency Borrowings:

The foreign currency borrowings were
traditionally hedged by way of Cross
Currency Interest Rate Swaps (CCIRS) for
residual / full tenor. However, with a view
to contain the hedging cost, some of the
foreign currency borrowings drawn during
FY 2015-16 were hedged by way of
Principal only Swaps (PoS) and short term
Sell/Buy Swaps. Also depending on
exchange rate / interest rate outlook on
each of the currencies, a few hedging
structures were bought for a part of tenor
rather than covering it for entire residual
tenor.

IX. Rating of SIDBI Debt Instruments

During FY 2016, Credit Analysis and Research
Ltd. (CARE) reaffirmed ‘CARE AAA’ (Triple A)
rating in respect of outstanding debt issues of
SIDBI viz.,, Unsecured Bonds of ¥23,686.60
crore, RIDF Deposits of ¥30,000 crore, Fixed
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aiferst 3.6: st g1 Spee e e
Table 3.6: Resources raised by SIDBI

(% )15/ crore)

2014-15 2015-16
1. eRe] 34T / Domestic Borrowings
vEws (gATE) P / MSE (Refinance) Fund 0.00 5,000.00
vHEaeHs (Shaw gan) i / MSME (Risk Capital) Fund 500.00 500.00
FRSNATS gAfa gfaer / RBI Refinance Facility 5,000.00 0.00
H1afer 511 / Fixed Deposits 697.95 440.85
qIfoIfsa® 931 / Commercial Paper (CP) 11,044.11 32,840.26
eI §78 / Unsecured Bonds 3,907.00 7,324.00
ST 9H1UT9H / Certificate of Deposit (CD) 0.00 2,847.75
vHEHEHs Jg9 Ui it / MSME Venture Capital Fund 0.00 2,500.00
39-g1T / Sub-total 21,149.06 51,452.86
11 faeht ol IR / Foreign Currency Borrowings
Sgat VIl # / JICA VIII # 139.11 0.00
e IX # / JICA IX # 525.09 263.98
Pemesy Vl @ / KfW VI @ 89.34 133.16
wemseyg VIl @ / KW VIl @ 60.64 161.83
demsey X @ / KfW IX @ 271.18 260.60
PHETY X @ / KIW X @ 0.00 74.18
forwa % 11l (3SR |0T) / World Bank 111 (IBRD Portion) 403.61 135.64
fawg §a Il (3m$Se wm) A / World Bank III (IDA Portion) 4.19 49.81
faga & IV / World Bank IV 0.00 1,228.80
Te%E * / AfD * 0.00 0.00
oR¥rarg faaT 8@ / Asian Development Bank 18.85 46.47
BEBEEY & Jeid FJEH / Grant under KIW 1.50 0.00
eRRrarg fder §& & 3icifa 38 / Grant from ADB 1.23 0.00
39-41T /Sub-total 1,514.74 2,354.47
111 &1 / Total (I+11) 22,663.80 53,807.33

# o9 SERTI@'G T Torsit / Japan International Cooperation Agency
@ PIScIEIT IR AeRIBar3, ST / Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau, Germany

A BRI faeT ¥ / International Development Association
* Ui Shahdl & SdcTuc / Agence Frangaise de Développement
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SIDBI signs MoU with SAARC Development Fund (SDF). From left to right:
Shri Sunil Motiwal, CEO, SDF, Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, CMD, SIDBI and
Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur, DMD, SIDBI.

Deposit Programme of 3,000 crore and ‘CARE
Al+ (A One Plus)/ CARE AAA (Triple A) rating
for the CP / CD Programme of ¥18,000 crore
and also assigned Issuer Rating of CARE
AAA(Is)(Triple A [(Issuer Rating)]. Similarly,
CRISIL also retained ‘CRISIL AAA/Stable” rating
in respect of outstanding bonds of ¥2,380 crore.
Instruments carrying the above ratings are
considered to be of the best quality, carrying
negligible investment risk.

X. International collaboration

e  Collaboration with SAARC Development
Fund (SDF)

The Bank has entered into Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU) with SDF for
providing fee based consultancy services in
the areas of development of suitable
financial products for MSME financing,
Micro Finance, Energy Efficiency, Credit
Appraisal, Investments, Mobilizing Funds,
carrying out relevant research / studies and
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publications, holding of workshops/
seminars/ conferences, capacity
development of SDF and MSME funding
institutions in SAARC countries , etc.

Collaboration with Business
Development Bank of Canada (BDC)

The Bank renewed its collaboration with
BDC, Canada to facilitate access for SME
clients in each other country on referral
mechanism for short, mid and long-term
financing & consulting solutions, guarantee
mechanism, start-up and sustainable
finance and other types of opportunities
(M&A, joint venture etc). In this regard,
SIDBI signed an MoU with BDC, which
envisages to focus on identifying best
practices and innovative solutions for start-
ups in India and issues concerning Indian
MSMEs through knowledge sharing.

Montreal Group Annual Meet in Mumbai

The Montreal Group (TMG), an
international association of select DFIs
(Development Finance Institutions) had its
annual meeting in Mumbai during April
11-13, 2016. Besides SIDBI, the participants
included BDC, Canada; BPIFrance, France;
Nacional Financiera, S.N.C (NAFIN),
Mexico; China Development Bank, China;
FINNVERA, Finland; The Brazilian
Development Bank, Brazil; Saudi Industrial
Development Fund, Saudi Arabia. The
participants in the TMG meet focused on
the three topics which are of constant
relevance for DFIs and MSMEs and
exchanged ideas and best practices viz. (i)
Green Financing, (ii) Innovative Products &
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SR sikk & wifvgoe gu it g faevan
Highlights of BDC and The Montreal Group
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Business Development Bank of Canada
(BDC) was created by an Act of Parliament in
1944 as a wholly-owned corporation of the
Government of Canada with a mission to
help, create and develop Canadian business
through Foreign Venture Capital and
Consulting Services, with a focus on SMEs.
Over the years, BDC with 100 branches and
2000 employees, has diversified info six areas
viz. Financing, Growth and Treasury Capital,
Venture Capital, Consulting, Securitisation
and Venture Capital Action Plan (VCAP),
catering to more than 42,000 clients. The
VCAP is helping attract new private sector
investors, create larger, later-stage funds and
ultimately, increase private sector venture
capital investments to create jobs and long
term growth. Study found that BDC clients
who used both financing and consulting
services, had 59% higher revenue growth in
their fifth year of business.

The thrust of BDC is to promote
entrepreneurship. BDC has developed a
unique annual Index of New Entrepreneurial
Activity (“the BDC Index”) which measures
the rate at which Canadians are launching
new job-creating businesses nationally,
regionally and in various subregions. The
BDC Index is calculated by measuring the
number of people who became independent
workers with employees in the past 12
months as a proportion of the fotal labour
force.
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The Montreal Group

In September, 2012, The Montreal Group
(TMG) was established as a global forum of
state-supported = financial
institutions to encourage exchange of ideas
and best practices amongst the member the
DFIs. The original seven founding members
are: BDC (Canada)) BNDES (Brazil) China
Development Bank, Nafinsa (Mexico), OSEO
(France), SIDBI (India) and Vnesheconombank
(Russia).

development

TMG fosters peer group exchanges, identify
best practices and innovative solutions on
issues/products such as loan guarantees,
financing intangible projects, consulting
services, global business matching or
governance, fo name but a few. Members are
supported to improve internal operational
efficiency, refine strategic planning and policy
formulation, respond to stakeholders and
changing economic conditions, benefit from
international perspectives, efc.

For 2016/2017, members settled on a work
plan recommending  investigating  the
following topics: Green Financing, Innovative
Products and Services and Online Services
and Digitalization.
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Services and (iii) Risk Management.
Arranged by SIDBI, the principal DFI
engaged in MSME sector financing and
development in India, the participants
from 8 DFIs around the world had held
discussions on issues of relevance and
challenges pertaining to MSME sector.
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SIDBI organised The Montreal Group (TMG) Meeting in Mumbai during April 11-13, 2016.
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Micro finance is an important pillar of financial
inclusion strategy of the country and Micro
Finance Institutions (MFIs) are a vehicle for
taking the inclusive growth agenda of the
country forward. The micro finance sector is on
a growth path after its revival with streamlining
of various regulatory guidelines, ensuring a
strong and clear regulatory framework for MFIs
to operate efficiently. The guidelines also
entailed the MFI lenders to assess the MFIs’
performance in terms of sustainability as well as
regulatory compliance.

SIDBI, being a pioneer financial institution in
the micro finance space, continued to provide
financial assistance, in the form of equity, quasi-
equity and term loan while advocating and
lending

implementing  various

practices at the same time.

responsible

SIDBI'’s Initiatives on Responsible Financing

e SIDBI has been playing the role of a
market-maker to enhance the operational
efficiency of MFIs and enabling smooth
flow of adequate credit to the micro
finance sector through measures like
capacity portfolio
audits, code of conduct assessment, etc.
Promoting responsible lending and
adherence to a laid-down Code of Conduct
(CoC) is a major intervention by SIDBI,
with support from the World Bank.

assessment ratings,

* Lenders’ Forum comprising key lenders of
MFIs was created for sharing information
and promoting cooperation among MFI
lenders. Major lenders of MFIs have agreed
to impress upon the MFIs to implement
responsible lending practices through a
common set of loan covenants. Lenders
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were in agreement to strictly examine and
continuously monitor field level practices
of their assisted MFIs like adherence to fair
practices code, KYC norms etc. So far,
SIDBI has conducted 10 meetings of
Lenders” Forum for the microfinance
sector.

SIDBI, in association with MFIN and Sa-
Dhan - the two  Self-Regulatory
Organisations (SROs) - has evolved the
unified Code of Conduct for MFIs in the
country. The code mandates MFIs to
provide low income clients with access to
financial services that are client focused
designed to enhance their well-being and
delivered in a manner that is ethical,
dignified, transparent, equitable and cost
effective. During the year, the revised CoC
was launched jointly by Sa-Dhan and
MFIN during Inclusive Finance India
Summit in December 2015. This was the
second edition of the code which debuted
at the Microfinance India Summit 2011.

The Code of Conduct Assessment (COCA)
assesses MFIs' degree of adherence to the
voluntary microfinance CoC. SIDBI has
issued guidelines to all the assisted MFIs to
undergo COCA through anyone of the five
empanelled agencies i.e. ACCESS - ASSIST,
ICRA Management Consulting Services
Ltd., Micro Credit Ratings International
Ltd., Prime M2i Consulting Services Ltd.
and SME Rating Agency of India Ltd. A
total of 75 assessments have since been
undertaken and reports of 69 MFIs have
been placed on the public domain.
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India Micro Finance Platform (IMFP),
developed by MIX with financial support
from SIDBI, provides and disseminates

various  financial and  operational
information on Indian MFIs. It is a global,
web-based, microfinance  information

platform, where MFIs are required to
submit financial and operational data, at
periodic intervals in a standardized format,
thus enabling higher degree of
transparency / disclosures with ease. The
IMFP has achieved enhanced data coverage
through increase in the number of
reporting MFIs as well as development of
granular, district-level datasets. During
Phase II of IMFP, besides data collection,
three analytical products, viz., the All India
Benchmark Tables, The Micro Finance
Geographic Index (Heat map) and The Top
India Ranking, were also developed. All
the three products have
launched successfully.

since been

Portfolio Risk Fund

The Gol has committed support of I150
crore under Portfolio Risk Fund (PRF)
Scheme, which is being utilised by the
Bank for meeting 7.5% of the term loan
towards security cover (against the normal
requirement of 10%) of the MFIs’
requirements under Micro Credit Scheme.
The scheme, which was originally covering
the entire country, has since been
rationalized to cover only underserved
states and underserved pockets / districts
in other states (with emphasis on
Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribe,
Minority, Other Backward Class and
women beneficiaries) with effect from July
01, 2008.
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o  Cumulatively, as on March 31, 2016, the
disbursement to eligible MFIs under PRF
stood at ¥2,623.64 crore, entailing PRF
requirement of I196.77 crore (being 7.5%
of eligible loan disbursements).

India Microfinance Equity Fund

Following the announcement in the Union
Budget 2011-12, the India Microfinance Equity
Fund (IMEF) with a corpus of ¥100 crore was
set up in SIDBI by the Govt. of India to help
MFIs to improve their equity base, meet capital
adequacy requirements, leverage the same for
additional debt raising and build commercially
sustainable organisations for the long term.
Subsequently the corpus was enhanced to 300
crore in the Budget of FY 2013-14.

As at end of March 2016, the Bank has
committed an amount of ¥ 178 crore to 65 MFIs
under the scheme. Out of the committed
amount, a total amount of ¥124.09 crore has
been disbursed. Details of utilization of IMEF
along with various instruments are given at
Table 4.1.

Impact of IMEF

An impact assessment of IMEF was undertaken
by SIDBI during the year to evaluate the impact
of IMEF funding on the MFI sector and the
funded MFIs in terms of helping the MFIs
achieve overall sustainability. The key findings
are:

®  Overall Impact: Post IMEF funding, 28% of
the MFIs in immediate term and 75% of
the MFIs in medium term demonstrated a
medium to high level of impact of funding.
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aiferaT 4.1: STEEAzES yReme=
Table 4.1: IMEF Operations

% 318 A / crore)

fera / Instruments ot ok foritar o
FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16
Hfazor CLap | T e
Disbursements | Outstanding | Disbursements | Outstanding
FEE 39T / Sub-Debt 8.25 50.75 2.38 53.13
sfaac! / Equity 346 16.01 1.00 13.99
3 & ¢ v / OCPS 13.75 45.95 8.00 53.95
a7 / Total 20.46 112.71 11.38 121.07
o TwNE fReFua: s7q fou gwmsi | €8 Institutional Sustainability: IMEF funding
I ¥ 375 Ty feama $ Fmfor & e can be attributed for a high and positive
o f 2 impact on the MFIs in terms of building
faw _ o & Ga their overall sustainability in a large
I A @ & | S e & & § proportion of MFIs. The fund had the
e o w9 s uuE @ &) highest impact in the area of institutional
sustainability.
® "@? IR gferal vd afene e - qéir Outreach, Lending  practices and
IR qafa'd‘[ s R a9dar & 83 § 369 Operational efficiency: There was a
- s t g remarkable improvement in performance
fa 3 ) i 3 of the MFIs in the area of Outreach and
g3

lending
Efficiency.

practices and  Operational
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* Overall Impact Based on Regulatory

Status: It has been found that the impact of
IMEF funding was uniform across MFIs
irrespective of their regulatory status
(NBFCs vs. Non-NBFCs). Around 32% of
NBFC MFIs and 24% of Non-NBFC MFIs
in the immediate term and around 75% of
MFIs (for both NBFCs and Non-NBFCs) in

the medium term demonstrated a medium
to high level of impact of funding.

e Overall Impact based on Size: The impact
of IMEF funding was fairly uniform across
MFIs irrespective of their size (Tier II vs.
Tier III).

®  Overall Impact Based on Geography: The
impact of IMEF funding was found to be
the most significant in North-based MFIs
with all MFIs showing a medium to high
level impact of funding in the medium
term.

Initiatives in the underserved States including
North-Eastern Region

With a view to upscaling and widening the
outreach of the microfinance operations in the
Bank has
several proactive

states, the been
initiating
measures to increase the flow of assistance to
hitherto underserved areas, viz. North Eastern
Region (NER) and in states like Rajasthan, Uttar
Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Uttarakhand, Bihar,
West Bengal, Jharkhand, Odisha, Chhattisgarh,
etc. Besides development of local MFIs, SIDBI
continues to induce larger MFIs from the
states to

underserved areas,

underserved
continuously

southern expand outreach in
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As on March 31, 2016, most of the MFIs
having outstanding loans from SIDBI had a
substantial part of their operations in the
underserved states / areas of the country
including NER.

International Collaborations

The Bank has entered into agreement with
Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (KfW),
Germany for loan support of EUR 85
million and financial contribution of EUR
169 million for improving access to
microfinance products in India among the
poor, particularly women. The loan
component of the support has been used to
provide loans to MFIs for on-lending. The
Technical Assistance (TA) component is
being used to provide training to SIDBI
staff and assisted MFIs, development of a
risk assessment module, select capacity
building interventions in the area of
transfer of industry benchmarks, best
practices to assisted MFIs and for carrying
out of loan portfolio audits / system audits
of our assisted MFIs, as a prudent risk

management measure.

The Bank had entered into collaboration
with ADB for loan support of USD 50
million for providing SIDBI with long
tenor funding to support the vital “Missing
Middle” through  specific
programs. The scope of the project covered
literacy and other support
measures for the low income women.

financing

financial

A loan of USD 300 million was contracted
from the World Bank (WB), including USD
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200 million from International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (IBRD)
and SDR equivalent of USD 100 million
from International
Association (IDA) for upscaling the micro
credit portfolio. The project titled “Scaling
Up Sustainable and Responsible Micro
Finance” aims at scaling up access to
sustainable micro finance  services,
particularly to clients in the underserved
areas of the country, through among other
things, introduction of innovative financial
products and fostering transparency and
responsible finance. The project came to an
end on September 30, 2015 after
satisfactory operation of more than 5 years
since July 2010. The objectives were largely
achieved.

Development

The Bank has contracted another Line of
Credit (LOC) from Kreditanstalt fur
Wiederaufbau (KfW), Germany for loan
support of EUR 100 million and financial
contribution of EUR 0.50 million for
assistance for ‘Missing Middle” of the
MSME sector in India. It seeks to finance
[through Primary Financial Institutions
(PFIs) which could be RRBs, UCBs, NBFCs,
MFIs etc.] the ‘Missing Middle” borrower
segment and lays focus on strengthening
Capacity =~ Building and  Business
Development Services and market linkage
programmes for micro-enterprises with
emphasis on women and other socially
excluded entrepreneurs.

Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (KfW),
Germany has also extended an LoC of USD
55 million for assistance for “Microfinance
and Micro Enterprise’ of the MSME sector
in India during the year. Under the



- aiitfe yferdas 2015-16

&1 39 ®OT awr & Siaifad wae & fefe
i @ U UF GeH g B WAl ueed
s S| fosdl 9Ra R § U 9nieRi
& AW ¥ HUT UGS GRIU | 31 AT 2016
T VT UCH & ded Dedey gIRI 11 T g,
TH R & I AR & 7S 2

YWad+ v faom (§ s ) Heeh vam

THeEAs &9 & garur faem &= & femm
# for e yaw ¥, fhsdt g1 #mor 9@ e
o, wfpa vd gfawdf 99 & foe, 99 gro
FOL-GEaT & -y, fafim dadeehe wd
Torawre Tedm Ot ye foar mar 81 39 foom &
PO HE@yUl JUN §9 UBK &

° UHUWUHy WWE &% : AusHizE o
aftisas da, Werr afsafeai/amdt & IR
¥ mrfeefH yem oRe, SRt @ HO-
RS 9T R, §BF gRT I@ 39 are g
® W &7 weelt AriaelF o<, anfe & fore
Tt gr1, rovwens wmEf s wnfua foe
e €| sitefie Sl & agerY § wnfia
q Fz, R a9 A Fera fafdm oavaens-wggE
# o YAl Jae ax IR &1 59 el el
¥ e yem & &g Roedt s W
gar-9riar g foe e &, J Jarga
¥o et & T Fer owesd @
o S FIHG I 8] FA-ARER I
yasH & gt w0 & gfufaa o d1 59
e & W 39 as 12500 ¥ At e,
7Y U4 WeW 3o gaiedl Hitad g% &

Programme, assistance will be extended to
eligible borrowers in poorer segments of
society as well as to eligible micro
enterprises. SIDBI shall channelize the loan
through  eligible channel partners
throughout India. KfW has released an
amount of USD 11 million under the loan

component upto March 31, 2016.

PROMOTIONAL & DEVELOPMENTAL
(P & D) INITIATIVES

In its endeavour towards holistic development
of the MSME sector, SIDBI adopts a ‘Credit
Plus’ approach wherein, besides credit, the Bank
also provides grant support for the promotion
and development of the sector to make it strong,
vibrant and competitive. Some of the important

initiatives are given below:

e  MSME Advisory: SIDBI has set up MSME

Advisory Centres (MACs) for guiding new

/| existing  entrepreneurs regarding
availability of schemes of commercial
banks, government subsidies / benefits,
providing borrowers with debt counselling,
answering queries raised by banks etc. The
MACs have been servicing MSME clusters
in partnership with Industry Associations.
For manning the MACs, SIDBI appointed
Knowledge Partners (KPs) who are retired
bank officials, with vast experience of
MSME sector. The KPs have also been
suitably trained for the purpose. So far,
more than 12,500 MSMEs have benefited

through MACs.
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Promoting youth entrepreneurship -

SIDBI developed a website www.smallB.in
which is a virtual mentor and handholding
forum for new entrepreneurs and even
existing entrepreneurs to grow their
existing business. The website has been
chosen for International ADFIAP Awards

2014 wunder ‘Technology Development’
category.

Capacity Building of Regional Rural
Banks (RRBs) / Urban Co-operative Banks
(UCBs): RRBs / UCBs play an important
role in providing credit to micro
enterprises due to their proximity and
presence in the rural / semi urban and
remote areas. SIDBI initiated a project in
FY 2012-13 focused at capacity building of
Tier-Il banks viz. RRBs / UCBs with an
objective to enhance the credit flow to
micro enterprise sector. Under the project,
SIDBI extends capacity building support to
these banks, which includes SIDBI sharing
its methodology / software for lending
micro enterprise loans in the range of
¥ 50,000/~ to ¥10,00,000/- and arranging for
training of staff of these banks in this area.
Besides organising sensitization
programmes on this methodology covering
chairmen of about 27 RRBs and 10 UCBs,
MoUs with 29 RRBs and 5 UCBs have been
signed. After a detailed training need
analysis with few RRBs, a comprehensive
2-day video based training module has
been developed and pilot tested. Based on
the training module, ‘Training of Trainers’
programmes have been conducted
benefitting about 430 officials of 42 RRBs /
UCBs.
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Micro Enterprise Promotion Programme
(MEPP): Micro Enterprise Promotion
Programme (MEPP) aims at promoting
viable micro enterprises leading to
employment generation in rural India by
providing  comprehensive  enterprise
support services through identified
implementing agencies. MEPP has so far
been implemented in 126 districts in 26
states.  Cumulatively, about 42,000
enterprises have been set up. During FY
2015-16, 3 new MEPPs were launched i.e.
one each at Varanasi district in U.P.,
Kamrup district in Assam and Jahanabad
district in Bihar. Further, 2 more MEPPs
have been sanctioned during FY 2015-16,
one each at Jhansi district in U.P. and
Khowai district in Tripura.

Entrepreneurship Development
Programmes (EDPs): The Bank’s support
to EDPs aims at building and nurturing a
reservoir of entrepreneurs, while creating a
cadre of motivated entrepreneurs and
promotion of self-employed ventures
capable of generating employment
opportunities, especially in far-flung and
rural areas targeting less privileged
sections of the society like women,
minorities and SC / ST. As on March 31,
2016, a total of 3,191 EDPs had been
supported by the Bank, benefitting more
than 79,500 participants in various target
groups. Cumulatively, about 39,500
participants have either set up their own
units or have been gainfully employed in
the sector. During FY 2016, 94 EDPs were
supported  benefitting over 2500
participants.
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Skill Development Programmes (STUPs /
SIMAPs): With a view to strengthening the
technical and managerial capacities of the
MSME workers and entrepreneurs, the
Bank supports reputed management /
technology institutions to offer certain
structured management / skill
development programmes, viz. “Skill-
cum-Technology Upgradation Programme”
(STUP) and “Small Industries Management
Assistants Programme” (SIMAP).

Since its inception, SIDBI has supported
1,560 STUPs benefitting about 32,750
participants conducted by specialised
institutions viz., Central Institute of Plastic
Engineering &  Technology (CIPET),
Central Institute of Medicinal & Aromatic
Plants (CIMAP) and other reputed
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technical / management institutions.
Further, 302 SIMAPs have been conducted
by top rung national and state level
institutions such as ITs at Kanpur /
Kharagpur / Mumbai / Chennai, XLRI,
Jamshedpur, Manipal Institute, Bangalore
benefitting about 9,100 participants. These
programmes have benefited a large
number of young bright students and most
of the participants have joined the MSME
sector.

Cluster Development: Based on the
findings of an internal study on 30 clusters,
SIDBI has identified 5 major gaps which
are common to most of the clusters (a) Skill
Development Gap, (b) Infrastructure Gap,
(c) Knowledge Gap, (d) Credit Gap and (e)
Policy Advocacy. Accordingly, the cluster
development approach of SIDBI is re-
oriented  from  technology  centric
methodology to comprehensive cluster
development approach which includes
business development services,
management practices, establishment of
marketing linkages, product / design
development, skill up-gradation in
different technical trades, etc., which have
benefitted about 12,000 MSMEs / artisans /
entrepreneurs.

During FY 2015-16, the Bank initiated
interventions in 9 MSME clusters, spread
across various geographical regions namely
(i) Agartala (ii) Bhagalpur (iii) Coimbatore
(iv) Hyderabad (v) Jamnagar (vi) Kolkata
(vii) Ludhiana (viii) Panipat and (ix) Rajkot
under its Cluster Level Intervention
Programme (CLIP). Through CLIP, SIDBI
has intervened by providing skill
upgradation training programmes on
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modern technology, branding, energy
efficiency, awareness on different financial
schemes, workshop on quality certification,
Intellectual Property Rights, occupational
health and safety etc including conducting
energy audits for MSME units located in
the above clusters on sample basis to raise
awareness on energy efficiency and
pollution control measures and also as a
part of demonstrative effect.

SIDBI has so far supported more than 90
Cluster Development Programmes (CDPs)
in various clusters all over India.

Minority Group Development: As per the
recommendations of Sachar Committee, the
field offices have been advised to cover
maximum number of participants from
minority communities under various P&D
activities. Cumulatively, about 7,650
persons from minority communities have
been directly benefited from various
developmental activities so far including
about 450 participants out of 42
developmental programmes during FY
2015-16.

Marketing Activities: Having realised the
need to address the marketing problems of
MSME sector, SIDBI is also engaged in
creating and strengthening marketing
initiatives for the sector. During FY 2015-
16, the Bank supported 67 important
exhibitions / seminars / events benefitting
more than 12,000 MSME entrepreneurs.

Promoting Innovation and Incubation:
With a view to identifying and
commercialising grassroots innovations all
over the country, the Bank had supported
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the National Innovation Foundation,
Ahmedabad by way of corpus support of
%400 lakh and administrative grant of 100
lakh to set up Micro Venture Innovation
Fund (MVIE) in 2003. During FY 2015-16,
the Bank has rolled over the initial fund
and the accretions thereon aggregating to
¥ 850 lakh, till October 2018. As on March
31, 2016, the fund has supported about 194
innovations. After the above roll-over, the
work on phase 2 has already been initiated
and proposals invited with due diligence
in progress. Further, with a view to foster
successful entrepreneurs and develop
industry in the knowledge and technology
based areas in the small enterprises, SIDBI
had supported setting up of SIDBI
Innovation and Incubation Centre (SIIC) at
Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur in
January 2002. SIIC has so far incubated 62
start-ups in diverse areas of state-of-the-art
technologies out of which 38 have already
been graduated. The Bank has also
supported another incubation centre at
Kalinga Institute of Industrial Technology
(KIIT) at Bhubaneswar, Odisha during the
year under review.

SIDBI's support for North Eastern
Region: The Bank accords special and
focused attention to the development of
North Eastern Region (NER) in terms of
micro finance, rural industrialisation,
handicraft cluster development,
entrepreneurship development, marketing
support, etc. The highlights of programmes
supported in NER are as under :

»  An MoU was executed with NEDFi in
March 2012 for providing various
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financial and developmental services
including MSME Finance, Micro
finance and also for undertaking
various P & D activities in NER.
Under this arrangement, Credit
Counseling Centres / Business
Facilitation Centres (BFCs) were also
opened. Presently, there are 8 (eight)
such centres operational in NER. The
BFCs include Shillong (Meghalaya),
Silchar (Assam), Aizawl (Mizoram),
Gangtok (Sikkim), Agartala (Tripura),
Kohima (Nagaland), Itanagar
(Arunachal Pradesh) and Imphal
(Manipur). Apart from above BFCs,
an Entrepreneurs” Corner has been set
up in NEDFi Office at Guwahati.

The Bank has supported more than
377 EDPs in NER benefitting over
15,556 budding entrepreneurs, 104
skill  development  programmes
(vocational) benefitting over 2983
persons and almost 115 exhibitions /
seminars / workshops benefitting over
15,287 participants.

49 Cluster Development Programmes
(CDPs) in different states of NER
covering activities like bamboo mat
weaving, carpet weaving, handicrafts,
handloom weaving, pottery, bee
keeping, making fish feed products,
etc. have been supported by SIDBI
benefitting around 7,000 artisans.
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The Bank has so far conducted about
156 Skill cum Technology
Upgradation Programmes (STUPs)
benefitting over 4,867 participants in
the entire NER.

Under the Bank’s Micro Enterprises
Promotion Programme (MEPP), 24
districts in NER have been covered so
far including the MEPP launched for
Kamrup district in Assam in FY 2016.
These MEPPs have resulted in
promotion of about 2,460 units.
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SIDBI, as the principal financial institution for
MSMES, always strives for promotion, financing
and development of the MSME sector. Its
initiatives and actions have impacted the MSME
sector in its economic, social and environmental
spheres.

Economic Impact

e  More than 350 lakh persons in the MSME
sector have been benefitted from SIDBI's
cumulative financial assistance of ¥4.50
lakh crore as at the end of March 2016.

e Many local MFIs were supported and
strengthened in underserved areas, viz.
North Eastern Region (NER), and in States
like Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, Madhya
Pradesh, Uttarakhand, Bihar, West Bengal,
Jharkhand, Odisha, Chhattisgarh, etc,
which helped the poor, mostly women to
access micro credit from MFIs. It also
widened the arena of financial inclusion in
these unserved and underserved areas.

Environmental Impact

Recognizing the need for environmentally
friendly development of MSME sector, SIDBI's
business strategy is to promote energy efficiency
[EE] and cleaner production (CP) in the MSME
sector. The impact of SIDBI's sustainable
initiatives is mentioned below:

° Savings of 1,100 Million Kilo Watt Hour
(MkWh) of electricity and a reduction of
950 kilo tons (kT) of CO, annually by
SIDBI-assisted 6,100 MSMEs which availed,
as on March 31, 2016, an aggregate
assistance of more than ¥5,830 crore for
promoting Energy Efficiency & Cleaner
Production.
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Under the World-Bank project, viz.
“Financing Energy Efficiency at MSMEs” in
10 MSME clusters, by SIDBI along with
Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE), more
than 600 MSMEs implemented energy
efficiency measures in their units. It has
also resulted in emission reduction of
about 1.5 million tonnes of CO,.

Under the project, more than 85 Capacity
Building and Awareness Programs have
been conducted for MSMEs, Industries
Associations and various other key
stakeholders on various topics related to
energy efficiency which has outreached to
more than 4200 participants, including
1100 banking / financial professionals.

The Partial Risk Sharing Facility for Energy
Efficiency (PRSF) project is expected to
provide credit guarantee to more than 500
ESCO implemented EE projects which
would mobilize financing to the tune of
USD 127 million. Further, the project is
also expected to result in significant energy
savings to the tune of 1000 GWh and CO,
emission reduction to the tune of 0.734
million tons.

Social Impact

It has been observed from the various
studies conducted by SIDBI that
microfinance has helped the poor in
accessing financial services, improving the
quality of their life through creation of
alternative additional livelihood
opportunities, reducing their dependence
on the exploitative informal sources of
credit, increased participation in family
and business decision making, enhanced
knowledge on financial matters, improved
social  security, asset status and
improvement in health and education
parameters.
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Under the ADB-JFPR Project of Supporting
Micro entrepreneurship for Women’s
Empowerment, Insight Development
Consulting Group (IDCG) conducted end-
line survey after training of women micro-
entrepreneurs who reported the following
changes:
=  90% of women micro entrepreneurs
reported increased family income
from contribution of their business;

= 80% of them reported increased
participation in family decision
making;

= 75% of them reported increased
participation in decisions regarding
their business;

= 75% of them felt improved social
security and asset status;

= 65% reported improved mobility of
women micro entrepreneurs;

a 77% of women could access easier
credit of ¥ 50,000 or more;

The women micro-entrepreneurs also
presented a vibrant social-economic profile;

*  92% are married and nearly 72% live
in nuclear families.

° 11% are illiterate while 26% have
completed high-school.

° 69% own their businesses and 23%
contribute all the household income.

e More than 12,500 MSMEs had
benefitted in terms of financial
literacy, awareness about Government
schemes and credit linkages through
SIDBI's MSME Advisory Centres,
manned by Knowledge Pariners.

e SIDBI's promotional and
developmental support helped in
setting up of about 80,000 enterprises,
providing employment to about 1.5
lakh people and benefitting more than

2.3 lakh people in the MSME sector.
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SIDBI also bagged two consolation prizes
for regions “A” and “B” and a second prize
for region “C” in RBI- Rajbhasha Shield
Competition. Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, CMD,
SIDBI  receiving the prizes from
Shri Raghuram Rajan, RBI Governor.
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SIDBI has been professing good corporate
governance practices as well as attempting to
replicate them in the MSME sector and the
institutions it deals with. Being the apex
institution for addressing the needs of the
MSME eco-system, the Bank has been attending
to the key priorities and pressing requirements
in the MSME sector. The highlights of SIDBI's
good

corporate  governance system are

enumerated in the following paragraphs:
Board of Directors / Committees of the Board

The Small Industries Development Bank of
India Act, 1989 provides for a fifteen-member
Board of Directors. Out of these, eight Directors
are appointed / nominated by the Central
Government  comprising Chairman and
Managing Director (CMD), two Whole Time
Directors, two Government officials and three
experts (including one from State Financial
Corporation) having special knowledge of or
professional experience in matters useful to the
Bank. Out of the remaining seven Directors, one
each is nominated by three largest shareholders
amongst IDBI, Public Sector Banks, Insurance
Companies and other institutions owned or
controlled by the Central Government and other
four are to be elected by the public shareholders
or alternatively, can be co-opted by the Board
until assumption of charge by the elected
Directors. The Board has co-opted two Directors
for the time being. The Board, as on March 31,
2016, comprised eleven Directors, including
CMD and two Whole Time Directors.

In exercise of the powers conferred by Section
6(1)(b) of the SIDBI Act, 1989, the Central
Government, vide its notifications dated January
22, 2016, appointed Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur and
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Shri Manoj Mittal as Deputy Managing
Directors (DMDs) of SIDBI. S/Shri Ajay Kumar
Kapur and Manoj Mittal took charge as DMDs
on January 22, 2016.

The Government of India, vide its notification
dated April 17, 2015, nominated the
Development Commissioner (MSME) as a
Director on the Board of SIDBI w.e.f. April §,
2015 under Section 6(1)(c) of the SIDBI Act.
Accordingly, Shri Amarendra Sinha, Additional
Secretary & DC (MSME) joined the Board w.e.f.
April 8, 2015. Subsequently, Shri Surendra Nath
Tripathi, on taking charge as Additional
Secretary & DC (MSME) on October 1, 2015, was
inducted on the Board of the Bank in place of
Shri Amarendra Sinha.

In exercise of the powers conferred by Section
6(1)(c) of the SIDBI Act, 1989 the Central
Government, vide its notification dated January
1, 2016, nominated Shri Pankaj Jain, Joint
Secretary, Department of Financial Services,
Ministry of Finance, as a Director with
immediate effect vice Shri Alok Tandon.

The Central Government, vide its notification
dated September 15, 2014, nominated the
Managing Director (MD), Madhya Pradesh
Financial Corporation (MPFC), as a Director on
the Board of SIDBI, in exercise of the powers
conferred by Section 6(1)(e) of the SIDBI Act,
1989. Smt. Smita Bharadwaj, on taking charge as
MD, MPFC on August 10, 2015, was inducted on
the Board of the Bank in place of Shri K.C.
Gupta.

Further, upon completing the tenure of his
nomination, Shri Anil Agrawal retired from the
directorship w.e.f. June 14, 2015.
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The Board placed on record its high sense of
appreciation of the valuable contributions made
by the Directors who retired from the Board of
SIDBL.

With the objective of giving focussed attention
to various important issues, the Board has
constituted ten Committees viz., Executive
Committee (EC), Audit Committee (AC), Risk
Management Committee (RiMC), Special
Committee to Monitor Large Value Frauds
(SCMLVF), Information Technology Strategy
Committee (ITSC), Customer Service Committee
(CSC), HR Steering Committee (HRSC),
Recovery Review Committee (RRC), Review
Committee on Wilful Defaulters & Non Co-
operative = Borrowers (RCWD&NCB) and
Remuneration Committee.

Sanctions relating to credit proposals above a
threshold limit and other such operational
matters are considered by the EC. The AC, in
addition to overseeing the functioning of the
Audit Vertical and reviewing its major
observations, also provides guidance in matters
relating to finalisation of accounts of the Bank
and observations made in RBI Inspection report.
The RiIMC lays down policy and strategy for
Integrated Risk Management of the Bank.

With a view to providing focused attention on
monitoring of frauds involving an amount of
rupees one crore and above, SCMLVF has been
constituted in terms of the guidelines of Reserve
Bank of India. The ITSC gives direction to the
Bank's IT function, especially with regard to IT
vision, policy and strategy so as to align with its
business objectives. In addition, the Committee
also guides the Bank in framing its long term IT
plan and provides oversight of IT
implementation and management.
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To enable the Bank to formulate policies and
assess the compliance thereof internally with a
view to strengthening the corporate governance
structure and also to bring about ongoing
improvements in the quality of customer service
provided by the Bank, the Board has constituted
CSC. HRSC has been constituted to guide and
give suggestions / recommendations to the
Board in HR matters.

Further, to review all NPA cases having
principal outstanding of ¥3 crore and above,
RRC has been constituted. RCWD&NCB has
been constituted to review the orders passed by
the Committee for Identification of Wilful
Defaulters & Non-Cooperative Borrowers,
identifying cases as wilful defaulters & non-
cooperative borrowers.

The Government of India (Gol) introduced
performance incentive scheme for the Whole
Time Directors of the Bank and for that purpose,
as per the directives of Gol, a “Remuneration
Committee” of Board of Directors has been
constituted.

Minutes of the meetings of the Committees,
containing decisions / recommendations made,
are submitted to the Board.

The Board held six meetings during FY 2015-16
while the Committees of the Board viz., the
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Risk
Management Committee, Special Committee to
Monitor Large Value Frauds, Information
Technology Strategy Committee, Customer
Service Committee, HR Steering Committee,
Recovery Review Committee and Review
Committee on Wilful Defaulters & Non Co-
operative Borrowers held nine, six, four, three,
four, two, two, three and one meetings
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respectively. Besides, SIDBI held its 17* Annual
General Meeting on June 22, 2015 at Lucknow.

Shareholding Pattern

The shares of SIDBI are held by the Government
of India and thirty three other institutions /
public sector banks / insurance companies
owned or controlled by the Central
Government, with IDBI Bank Ltd., State Bank of
India and Life Insurance Corporation of India as
its three largest shareholders. During the year,
Government of India was allotted 3,69,82,250
equity shares.

Asset Liability Management Committee

In terms of the Asset Liability Management
Policy of the Bank, the Asset Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) is headed by
the Chairman & Managing Director and
comprises Deputy Managing Directors and
other senior executives of the Bank heading Risk
Management, Credit, Resources & Treasury and
Information Technology, Corporate Accounts &
NBFC Verticals, Business Head I & Business
Head II, as members. ALCO, inter-alia, reviews
and monitors the liquidity risk and interest rate
risk in the Bank. The ALM system in the Bank is
guided by the extant RBI guidelines and the
ALM Policy of the Bank. The ALM Policy is
reviewed from time to time to bring in
necessary changes in line with extant regulatory
requirements and the changing asset liability
profile of the Bank. During FY 2015-16, the
Committee met on seven occasions (including
circulation) and deliberated on various issues
such as revision in Benchmark Prime Lending
Rate (BPLR), review of Interest Rates under
various schemes of assistance, status of resource
mobilization, revision in the interest rate
structures of Fixed Deposits Scheme, Review of
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Forex Operations, movement in Net Interest
Income (NII) and Net Interest Margin (NIM),
hedging of drawals under foreign lines of credit,
exercise of Call option on Bonds, interest rate
outlook etc.

Investment Committee

The Investment of the Bank
formulates strategies and recommends various

Committee

options available for investment within the
scope of the Investment Policy of the Bank and
relevant RBI guidelines issued from time to
time. The Investment Committee met six times
during the FY 2015-16 and inter-alia deliberated
upon various investment and divestment
proposals, sale of government securities from
Available from Sale (AFS), review of Mutual
Fund exposure limits, review of equity
investments acquired through primary market,
review of Fixed Income portfolio and other

investment related issues.

Enterprise Committee

(EMRCO)

Risk Management

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee
(ERMC) is responsible for the development,
overall implementation and supervision of the
risk management framework in the Bank.
ERMC is responsible for providing
recommendations to formulate the Credit and
Operational Risk Management policies and
strategies for the Bank and manage the risks on
the asset book. ERMC under the supervision of
Risk Management Committee of the Board
overall  risk

evaluates and  manages

composition in the Bank's portfolio.
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Risk and Information Security Committee
(RISC)

Risk and Information Security Committee
(RISC) is a cross functional committee of
executives, which looks after
security (IS) and attempts to mitigate various IS
and Information Technology (IT) related risks.
RISC alignment of the security
programme with organizational objectives. The

Information

ensures

Committee is also instrumental in achieving
organisational change towards a culture that
promotes good security practices and
compliance with policies.

Internal Complaints Committee

As per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Bank
has in place Internal Complaints Committees at
Chennai, Kolkata, Lucknow, Mumbai and New
Delhi for redressal of complaints of sexual
harassment and for matters connected therewith
or incidental thereto. During the year, no
complaint of sexual harassment was received by
the Committees.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit of the Bank plays a pivotal role in
strengthening  Corporate
complying with Management objectives to
strengthen internal control and improve Risk

Governance and

Management.

Audit Vertical has been carrying out Operational
Audit (OA) of Branch Offices (BOs), Regional
Offices (ROs) and select HO Verticals,
Management Audit (MA) of Head Office (HO)
Verticals, Transaction Audit (TA) of Debt
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Servicing Activities of Treasury & Funds
Management Vertical (TFMV), IT Control
Review, etc. on a regular basis. Besides, Audit
Vertical reviews the monthly Concurrent Audit
reports of TFMV, Transaction Audit of Indirect
Finance Vertical (Banks & SFCs), Application
Software Audit of four applications and
Network & Security Audit of Data Centre and
DR Site being carried out by external audit
firms. Concurrent Audit of TFMV covers the
Treasury Operations, viz. Money Market
Operations (MMO) and Dealing Room
Operations (DRO) of TFMV. The Bank is also
undertaking Credit Audit in respect of Accounts
under Direct Credit Schemes where exposure is
above ¥300 lakh and in 10% of the cases on
sample basis, where the outstanding is less than
¥ 300 lakh, through Regional Offices.

The Bank has also introduced Concurrent Audit
mechanism in select 30 BOs through external
CA firms, which together account for more than
90% of the Direct Credit operations of the Bank.
Interactive meets and sensitization programs
with Concurrent Auditors and Operating Offices
are held on periodical basis to improve upon
compliance and governance.

The IS audits taken up during FY 2015-16 are (i)
Application Software Audit of four applications,
(ii) IT Control Review of 31 offices including
Data Centre & Disaster Recovery (DR) Site and

(iii) Network & Security Audit of Data Centre
and DR Site.

During the year, 1033 audits comprising 109
Operational Audits, 6 Special Audits, 17
Management Audits, 12 Concurrent Audits of
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TEMYV, 352 Concurrent Audits of BOs, 12 TAs of
debt servicing activities of TFMV, 5 TAs of
Indirect Finance Vertical (Banks & SFCs), 489
Credit audits and 31 IS Audits were completed.
Audit Vertical follows up with ROs for
submission of Monthly Status Report on the
status of compliance of audit observations &
ensure time bound closure of reports /
compliance of the observations. With a view to
automate the audit monitoring process, a
separate module “Audit MIS & Rating Module”
has been rolled out.

Audit Vertical also ensures compliance of
observations made by Statutory Auditors and
RBI Inspection Team in close coordination with
Corporate Accounts Vertical and RBI Co-
ordination Cell. During an audit activity, inter-
alia, compliance to KYC guidelines, verification
of end use of funds, creation of assets,
adherence to policy guidelines, systems &
procedures etc. are given due focus.

As per the directives of Reserve Bank of India
and in accordance with the requirement of
Pillar-II of Basel Committee-II
recommendations, Risk Based Audit in respect
of all operating branches is in place. In terms of
the same, the BOs are classified under Low,
Medium, High & Very High Risk etc. on the
basis of credit and operational risk areas and
compliance thereof. In the overall risk
assessment and risk categorisation of BOs, the
Credit Risk, Operational Risk, delay in
compliance of major audit observations,
incidence of NPAs / fraud cases, etc. are being
factored. The periodicity of Operational Audits
in respect of High Risk BOs is being stepped up,
irrespective of their volume of operations.
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Audit Vertical submits various memoranda
relating to status of conduct and closure of
audits, revenue leakage, performance of BOs
based on audit observations and violation by
functionaries in exercise of discretionary
powers, IS Audit of Data Centre and IT Control
Review of BOs, status of implementation of
Ghosh and Jilani Committee reports, revision in
guidelines by RBI etc. to Audit Committee of the
Board (ACB) as a measure of good Corporate
Governance.

Human Resource Development — An Overview

As on March 31, 2016, the Bank had on its rolls
1060 active full time staff comprising 908
officers, 95 Class III staff and 57 Subordinate
staff. Of the total staff, 186 belong to Scheduled
Castes (SCs), 74 to Scheduled Tribes (STs) and
171 to Other Backward Classes (OBCs). The staff
strength included 8 ex-servicemen, 29 Persons

faedt & e W aféea & gomsies fomen uhifstem widw (gom) & mseasi 9001-2008 YHIVH U g3

The Human Resources Vertical, SIDBI was conferred 1SO 9001:2008 certification by United Kingdom Accreditation Service (UKAS).
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with Disabilities (PwD) categories and 1 in both
ex-servicemen and Persons with Disabilities
(PwD) categories. The strength of women
employees is 234.

Training & Career Development

Changes
expectations from customers are providing

in banking environment and

greater opportunities and challenges. It is
imperative for SIDBI too to keep its professional
workforce skilled and updated on a continuous
basis. The Bank continues its emphasis to
update the skills of its employees and impart
appropriate, relevant and necessary trainings
and knowledge. This is also being done to
increase motivation and job satisfaction of its
employees.

The Bank continued to impart training by
deputing its employees to (i) in-house training
programmes, including at SIDBI International
Training Institute, Bhubaneswar (i) inland
training programmes / workshops conducted /
organized by reputed national institutions
within the country and (iii) international
programmes. The focus of training function is to
ensure comprehensive all-round development of
the staff.

During the year, Bank has made 1031
nominations for various inland, in-house and
international training programmes organized by
renowned training / academic institutions, out
of which 169 nominees were women and 471
nominees belonged to reserved categories.
Nineteen officers including five from reserved
categories ~were nominated to  attend
international programmes in order to familiarize
them with the current international practices in

different areas viz. Development Banking,
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Leadership Development, Information
Assurance and Management, etc. An induction
programme was organized for 32 newly
recruited Officers in the Bank. Pre-Promotion
Training for SC/ST/OBC Officers was also

organized as per Gol directions.
Staff Welfare Activities

During the year FY 2015-16, the Bank continued
its support for multifarious welfare activities for
the staff members and their families. Under the
guidance of Central Welfare Committee, funds
to the tune of ¥ 2 crore, were allocated to welfare
associations of various offices of the Bank, to
organize welfare activities for staff and their
families.

Improvements in IT Set-up

solutions to
operations,

» Implemented various IT

encompass all facets of
management, monitoring and reporting.
The Bank’s

customer for

website
on-line
tracking of their loan application status

empowers the
submission and

and submission of grievances / queries,
besides providing detailed information on
available products.

e  The Bank has recently formulated new IT
Strategy towards improvement in customer
focused service delivery, risk management,
internal efficiency etc. As part of digital
initiatives, new Mobile App. “SIDBI
MITRA”, was launched to facilitate
mobility in viewing customer accounts,
providing direct channel to customers to
interact with the Relationship Manager
(RM) and raising other service requests etc.
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Vigilance

The vigilance set-up in SIDBI is headed by a
full-time Chief Vigilance Officer [CVO] who is
assisted by the Vigilance Team at Head Office
and Regional Vigilance Officers at the respective
Regions.

The Bank lays emphasis on the preventive and
pro-active vigilance aspects and has been taking
several initiatives for strengthening the systems
and procedures to promote efficiency and
transparency. Preventive Vigilance Committees
at the Regional/ Branch levels and the Vigilance
Committee at Head Office have been set up to
review the preventive vigilance measures. An
Internal Advisory Committee on Vigilance
scrutinizes all the complaints or cases arising
out of inspections, audit reports, staff
accountability reports, etc. and furnishes its
recommendations to the CVO regarding the
existence or otherwise of the vigilance angle in
the issues examined by it.

Vigilance Vertical acts as the nodal Vertical for
investigations in all cases of frauds perpetrated
on the Bank, evaluating the role of third party
entities [TPEs] and getting their names included
in the caution list circulated by the Indian
Banks” Association [IBA], for deficiency
observed in professional service rendered by
them to the Bank. As a part of Anti-Fraud
sensitization programme, the modus operandi
of frauds are shared with the Regions/ Branches
from time to time. The CVO, RVOs (Regional
Vigilance Officers) and the vigilance team, in
their periodic meetings with the staff, discuss
the incidents of operational gaps/ compliance
issues and sensitize the staff on the importance
of adhering to guidelines, systems and processes
and making the decision making process
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transparent, fair and equitable. To spread
vigilance awareness for participative vigilance,
the vertical also publishes its in-house magazine
“Dakshata” and created Vigilance Blog on SIDBI
Intranet where staff members are encouraged to
contribute/ participate by way of their
experiences/ articles etc.

The Internal Audit reports of the branches are
reviewed by Vigilance Vertical and the key
compliance related issues are escalated for
immediate rectification. The Vertical also
suggests measures to improve and strengthen
the existing systems and processes in various
forums like VCHO (vigilance committee in head
office), IACV (Internal Advisory Committee on
Vigilance), Audit conferences, ACB (Audit
Committee of Board), Regional Preventive
Committee meetings and the CMD-CVO
quarterly meetings.

Vigilance Vertical also maintains a vigil on the
tendering process followed by the Bank in
procurement of goods, works and contracts in
terms of the extant CVC guidelines. Towards
this end, the Vertical carries out Chief Technical
Examiners Office [CTEO] type inspections
periodically, on sample basis, to ensure that the
procurement of goods and services is being
carried out as per the norms. In this direction,
the Vertical has so far organized two workshops
on “Procurement Guidelines” which covers
procurements by various departments of the
Bank like Premises, Administration, Information
Technology (IT), etc.

The vigilance work is reviewed by the CMD in
his meeting with CVO every quarter and all
important / pending issues, if any, are dealt
with in accordance with the Chief Vigilance
Commission (CVC) guidelines. The Vigilance
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Vertical also submits a report on Vigilance
Activities to CVC and a half yearly review of
the said activities to the Board of Directors.

During FY 2015-16, Vigilance Vertical of SIDBI
was the recipient of the “Vigilance Excellence
Award” - second best in the Banking Sector
category - instituted by “Institute of Public
Enterprises, Hyderabad”, for the third
consecutive year. The came as
recognition of the good work done by SIDBI in
the field of Vigilance Administration. Besides,
CVO, SIDBI Shri Shivakumar R was also
conferred with the Vigilance Excellence Award
in the “Individual” category for his excellent
contribution to the Vigilance administration in
the Bank. In FY 2015-16, Vigilance vertical also
organized the First-ever Conference of the

award
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SIDBI bagged the second best "Vigilance Excellence Award" in the banking sector category.




TBer <eTl 391 9 & AR Fadar afedd 3 Tgal
TR wadx e 9 R o | §H g Fad
FrnT gR1 SR foe e fafim smeel sk feer-
et & Soem & wu § 3ua T 5 whm g
e o arafds Twu-amaR W FEes a9
3T @1 & (TTa o 31 7S 2016 T 31erH) |

39 JOR d # TRae & 9 R W Fadar ol
B AT v gl a¥id W) SR & g
oo =1 <ar 2, afe araes), yermR 9O FErRR
D TS B THG/~IAqH T 3 9|

do # YerHm i &1 saftaaa

oz o W & 9y ¥ & YRd WER B
ST N & orataaT & e § woe @ 8,
foras werawy fer & Praferd= SraeT B HIST
® T A Wftg B 3§ B Ieerea Teerd WY
et 21

Hada ower wfifa ik 9Ra wRer, fow
Haed & foxira dae fawm; g w@Emea, e
faum aonr 9Rda Rad 9 & wfafaftal 3 w9
g ® 90" 3w FRgot & Rk fosdt &
Fafaal § &= & wmd g favas mee gar
o gerr ot & Hewiehs af & kW do o af
2014-15 & raremeT Aifa & IS FEiaad & foe
ST P TSR A S Faia Iraga
do it # JoraT fawm, I8 A@ae, 9RT WeR
B AR ¥ AR dRI SR fida R g
B3| € [RIOR AEWIeH IIguld Weled 3 Ja
far 59 yoR, WRdg Red 8 g)1 s
TS s gfcaificr & 96 & af 201415 &

Annual Report 2015-16 -

Regional Vigilance Officers (RVOs). The
conference was a great success in terms of
brainstorming on the various issues involved in
the vigilance administration. Vigilance Vertical
also released first ever Vigilance Manual in this
year which will serve as a repository of various
instructions and guidelines issued by the CVC.
The manual is being updated on real-time basis
(presently updated upto March 31, 2016).

The Vigilance function in the Bank has thus
been laying emphasis on the proactive and
participative vigilance at all levels of operations
to eliminate / minimize the incidents of frauds,
corruption and malpractices.

Implementation of the Official Language
Policy in the Bank

SIDBI, since its inception, has been making
conscious efforts towards implementation of the
official language policy of the Government of
India, which has enabled the bank to attain a
considerable success in establishing Hindi as the
medium of its official work.

Members of the parliamentary committee on
official language and Government of India,
Ministry of finance, Department of Financial
Services; Ministry of Home Affairs, Rajbhasha
Vibhag, as also the representatives from RBI
have, during the inspections carried out from
time to time, appreciated the intense efforts
made by the SIDBl-offices with regard to
progressive use of Hindi therein. The bank
received second prize from Rajbhasha Vibhag,
Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India
under ‘Rajbhasha Keerti Puraskar Yojana’ in the
banks” category for a consecutive third time for
commendable implementation of the official
language policy during FY 2014-15. The prize
was given by the hon’ble President of India.
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Besides this, Bank also bagged two consolation
prizes for regions “A” and “B” and a second
prize for region “C” in RBI- Rajbhasha Shield
Competition. The prizes were given away by the
RBI Governor.

Official Language Implementation Committees
have been constituted in the Lucknow-Head
Office, Mumbai Office, New Delhi office and all
ROs/BOs of the bank. All the committees which
dealt with the review of the status of official
language implementation, laid emphasis on
enhancing  Hindi  correspondence  and
augmenting the usage of Hindi in the bank’s
internal working held their quarterly meetings
regularly during the year.

‘Sankalp’, the quarterly Hindi magazine of the
bank is being published regularly. A total of 75
volumes of the magazine have been brought out
so far. Renowned scholars from various parts of
the country have acclaimed this publication
from time to time. This year too, all offices of
the bank celebrated Hindi fortnight on the
occasion of Hindi Day, which was marked by
several engrossing activities and competitions.

Hindi correspondence in the offices located in
regions ‘A’, ‘B’ and ‘C’ stood at 97%, 92% and
81% respectively, as against the targets of 100%,
90% and 55% set by Rajbhasha Vibhag, Ministry
of Home Affairs respectively. It is noteworthy
that the targets for Hindi correspondence for the
regions ‘B’ and ‘C’ were surpassed, while all out
efforts are on to reach the targets for the region
‘A’. The ratio for notings being recorded in
Hindi in the offices situated in regions ‘A’, ‘B’
and ‘C’ remained at 87%, 69% and 54%
respectively, which is in conformity to the
specified targets of 75%, 50% and 30%
respectively.
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All offices of the bank issued all documents
enumerated under section 3(3) of the Official
Language Act 1963 (As amended 1967), besides
ensuring compliance of Rule 5 of the Official
Language Rules 1976 (as amended 1988) by
responding in Hindi to the letter received or
signed in Hindi.

A portal on Rajbhasha has been made available
at SIDBl-intranet, which provides valuable
information and other material on official
language policy and its implementation and
aims at giving a fillip to carrying out the bank’s
transactions through Hindi. RBI- banking
glossary, sentences and notings used in day to
day working have been uploaded on intranet, so
as to enable the staff members use this Help
material while working in Hindi.

As many as 39 offices of the bank have been
notified in the Gazette of India, as per Rule 10(4)
of the official language rules 1976. The staff
members attached to the notified offices and
possessing proficiency in Hindi have been
issued individual orders under Rule 8(4) to
carry out their entire official work in Hindi.

Out of 1060 staff of the bank, a total of 986 staff
members (including 4 contract staff) of the Bank
(except 57class-IV) have the working knowledge
of Hindi, while 21 remain to be trained.
Measures have been taken from time to time to
impart them training. A roaster has been
prepared after assessing the Hindi knowledge of
the newly appointed officers/employees, and
action initiated for imparting them a need-based
training.

During the year, a total of 58 Hindi workshops
were organized at various offices of the bank,
and staff-members possessing a working
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knowledge of Hindi were imparted practical
training on Hindi language and aspects related
with application of Hindi, besides usage of
Unicode on computer.

A Hindi officers’ conference for the Hindi
officers working in the bank was organized
during November 30- December 01, 2015, at
SIDBI International MSME Training Institute
(SITI), Bhubaneswar, as a measure to comply
with the annual implementation programme of
the Government of India.

Keeping in with the directives received from the
Department of Financial Services, Ministry of
Finance, Government of India, a Management
Development Programme for the Hindi Officers
of the bank was organized during July 1-3, 2015
at SITI, Bhubaneswar.

SIDBI website has been made bilingual and kept
updated throughout the year, besides providing
translation for the websites prepared by the
associates and subsidiaries.

In pursuance of the annual implementation
programme, official language related inspections
were conducted by the Head Office and the
Regional Offices in as many as 36 offices and
verticals.

The bank organized 11" All India SIDBI Inter-
Bank Hindi Essay Competition during the year,
which aimed at motivating the banks and the
financial institutions of the country to carry out
their official work in Hindi. A book titled ‘Bank,
Samaaj aur Mahila Sashaktikaran’ comprising
selected essays received during the tenth All-
India Hindi Essay Competition was brought out
during the year. This publication can be used as
a reference book in the banking sector.
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Following the legacy of the previous years, this
year too SIDBI Rajbhasha Shield Competition
was organized in the bank, with the motive to
create a competitive environment at the bank’s
regional offices for working through Hindi
medium. In the same manner, this year too,
Rajbhasha Pratinidhi Yojana was implemented
amongst staff members belonging to Hindi-
speaking and Non-Hindi speaking categories, at
each Regional Office and HO-vertical level, so as
to boost up the application of Hindi in the
official working.

Several Manuals/Procedural Literatures of the
bank viz. One-Time Settlement Scheme, Venture
Risk Management Policy, Security and
Collateral Security Management Policy, SIDBI's
working, Customers” Complaint Redressal
Policy, Customer Compensation Policy, Bank’s
Procurement Manual and Staff Accountability
Policy were issued in bilingual form during the
year.

All offices of the bank participated regularly in
the meetings held by their respective Town
Official Language Implementation Committees.
In addition, our officers/employees also took
part and exhibited extraordinary fete to emerge
victorious in various Hindi competitions held
under the aegis of these TOLICs. Officers from
the bank provided editorial support to the
magazines brought out by their respective
TOLICs, besides making creative contributions
therein. Bank’s Kolkata, Pune, Bengaluruy,
Ahmedabad, Chennai, Coimbatore, Hyderabad
and Chandigarh ROs and Kochi, Jammu,
Jamshedpur, Raipur, Ranchi, Bhopal, Varanasi
and Kanpur BOs received prizes from their
respective Town Official Language
Implementation Committees for outstanding
official language implementation.
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Implementation of Right to Information Act,
2005

The Bank is implementing the Right to
Information Act, 2005 (RTI Act). Accordingly,
the Bank has displayed in its website (www.
sidbiin) functions and duties of the
organization, norms set by the Bank for
discharge of its functions, powers and duties of
its officers and employees, organization chart,
sub-ordinate legislations, etc. as envisaged
under Section 4(1)(b) of the Act. The Bank has
designated a Central Public Information Officer
(CPIO), Alternate Central Public Information
Officer, Central Assistant Public Information
Officers and First Appellate Authority and
Alternate First Appellate Authority, in terms of
the Act, the details of which are available on the
Bank's website. In terms of the directives of
Central Information Commission (CIC), the
Bank has also designated a Transparency Officer
for the better implementation of Section 4 of the
Act with a view to promote congenial
conditions for timely response by CPIO to RTI
queries. During the year, the Bank received 318
applications seeking information and all the
applications were disposed off as per the
provisions of the Act within stipulated time.

During the year, 21 appeals were made to the
First Appellate Authority (FAA) of the Bank,
which were disposed off within stipulated time
as per the provisions of the RTI Act. Against the
decisions taken by FAA, six appeals were
preferred before the Central Information
Commission. There has been no delay in either
furnishing information by the CPIO or in
deciding appeals by the FAA. All the quarterly
on-line returns have been regularly submitted to
CIC in time.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
activities undertaken by SIDBI are primarily for
socially relevant causes like relief to victims of
natural calamity,
friendly technologies, support to physically
challenged and
support for setting up skill development centres

supporting environment
under-privileged  person,

for under-privileged section of the society.
During FY 2015-16, SIDBI supported over 27
CSR projects spread across various states. The
support involves various projects like purchase
of waste management vehicle, paralympic wheel
chair for physically disabled, dexterity kit for
pre-vocational training for persons with special
needs, renovation / construction of additional
toilet for girls and hand wash station in School,
purchase of Ambulance, equipment support for

old age homes / blind students, scavengers’

, ///’ A
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Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, CMD, SIDBI inaugurating Incubation Centre at Kalinga Institute of Industrial Technology (KIIT), Bhubaneswar
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rehabilitation support, purchase of sewing
machines conducting
training, installation of water purifier and
promotion of higher education among SC/ST
children, etc.

and computers for

FOTIA AT Debenture Trustees
foedt & somn swfcya dfvs fofal & #oma Following are the contact details of the
g} & G faaxor faeag & debenture trustees for SIDBI's outstanding
unsecured bond issues :
T3S ATH U8 556008 UIS 9 FFeHITRe & fore
ISIN : INE556F08IP8 For rest of the ISINs
iy do fofies Fifcid® Brga-g for.
Axis Bank Limited ALLBANK FINANCE LTD.
(zemETaTe db 35 quf warfiea el HeTad ber)

Axis House, 2nd Floor, “E”, Bombay Dyeing
Mill Compound, Pandurang Budhkar Marg,
Worli, Mumbeai.

el / Tel: 022-24255215/16
e [Fax: 022- 24254200
306 / Email: debenturetrustee@axisbank.com

HUS afts: SN dg eRaad
Contact Person: Shri Kanhu Harichandan

(wholly owned subsidiary of Allahabad Bank)

DIURCT PIATTS: NG § Ha, TIT ad, 37

RIS WHIAR AT, B¢, Ts- 400023

Corporate Office : Allahabad Bank Building, 2nd
Floor, 37, Mumbai Samachar Marg, Fort,
Mumbai - 400 023.

a1E / Board: +91-22-22626283 UaRe 9/ Ext: 24
% / Fax: +91-22-22677552

$9eT:/Email:companysecretary@allbankfinance.com
J¥13C / Website: www.allbankfinance.com

udh fth: AT Aelldel aAfad, Busl Hshek! Te
SR

Contact Person: Ms.Melvita Lewis, Company
Secretary cum Compliance Officer

fasdt 3 2013 ¥ yaAvR § IR veHE HREor
()" & wmaem & 21
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SIDBI MSME International Training Institute

SIDBI has set up its own maiden training
institute ‘SIDBI MSME International Training
Institute (SITI) at Bhubaneshwar in 2013.
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Training Programs

SITI had cumulatively conducted 83 training
programs of 249 days imparting trainings to
1,741 participants. During the year, SITI
conducted 49 training programs of 144 days
covering 1,024 participants. Out of these 49
programs, while 29 were in-house training
programs, 20 programs of 43 days were
organised for 484 external participants.

e_Learning Modules

SITI had launched an e_Learning portal over the
SIDBI intranet titled ‘SITI Learning Corner’.
Apart from hosting select training materials,
presentations, hand-outs, etc., SITI has hosted 5
self-assessment modules on thematic topics
having relevance to the Bank’s operations, viz.,
(i) Citizens” Charter, (ii) SMILE & Make in India,
(iii) Rajphasha  Guidelines, (iv) Risk
Management and (v) Due Diligence of
Machinery Suppliers.
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SIDBI participated in
the 28th ACSIC
Conference held in
Bali, Indonesia.

THE 28™
ACSIC CONFERENCE
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™ T wi W 2 fEEeR 2015 @
3 ‘ TS A WU ZOTAe SEe |

UPMA conclave on “Microfinance
Fostering Financial Inclusion
Agenda” on 2nd December, 2015 at
Lucknow.
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SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
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SUBSIDIARIES

I.  SIDBI VENTURE CAPITAL LIMITED

SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL) was
established in 1999 as an Investment
Management Company for managing Venture
Capital Funds (VCFs). Over the years, SVCL has
evolved into a leading institutional investment
management company having focus on the
MSMEs in India. Since inception, SVCL has
continued to provide growth capital to high-
quality,  growth-oriented = MSMEs
diversified sectors.

across

SVCL, at present, is acting as the Investment
Manager for National Venture Fund for
Software and Information Technology Industry
(NFSIT), SME Growth Fund (SGF), India
Opportunities Fund (IOF), Samridhi Fund (SF),
TEX Fund (TF), West Bengal MSME VC Fund
(WB Fund) and Maharashtra State Social
Venture Fund (MS Fund).

National Venture Fund for Software &
Information Technology Industry (NFSIT)

NEFSIT is a close ended venture fund established
in August 1999. The fund has a committed
corpus of ¥100 crore, the contributors being
Ministry of Communications and Information
Technology (X30 crore), IDBI (X20 crore) and
SIDBI (X50 crore). The main objective of
establishing the fund was to provide venture
capital support by way of equity and equity-
linked instruments to unlisted SMEs in the areas
of software and information technology. The
fund has invested in 31 companies with average
investment per unit being less than I3 crore.
The units are geographically spread all over
India covering a wide range of IT industries
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namely products, services, internet related
businesses, IT training, IT enabled services, etc.
NESIT has been able to secure successful full
exit from 24 companies and partial exit from 3
companies, while it had to write off investments
in 2 companies. Efforts are on for exit from the

remaining companies.

SME Growth Fund (SGF)

SGF is a close ended venture fund established in
September 2004. The fund has a committed
corpus of T500 crore, the contributors being
SIDBI and other leading commercial banks in
India such as State Bank of India, Punjab
National Bank, Bank of Baroda etc. SGF is a
sector agnostic fund which was established to
provide growth capital support, primarily to
unlisted SME enterprises across diverse sectors
by way of equity and equity linked instruments.

The fund has to be checked from SVCL. The
units are geographically spread all over India
covering growth sectors like pharmaceuticals,
retailing, engineering,
technology, logistics etc. SGF has been able to
achieve full or partial exit from 16 companies
and realized a total sum of Y469 crore from its
investments (102.83% of total investments
actually made). So far, the fund has made
distributions of ¥ 364.25 crore to its Contributors
(X¥332.60 crore towards corpus and ¥31.65 crore

communication

towards profits). Further, an amount of I66
crore approx. has been retained by the fund,
towards disputed tax liabilities and probable
penalties.

India Opportunities Fund (IOF)

India Opportunities Fund is a close ended
venture fund with a life of 10 years established
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in August 2011. The Fund made its final closing
on April 18, 2012. The fund has a drawable
corpus of ¥421.30 crore.

IOF is a sector agnostic fund focused mainly on
meeting growth capital needs of India’s growing
and unlisted MSMEs operating in emerging
sectors such as educational services, IT/ITES,
light engineering, clean tech, agro-based
industries, logistics, infrastructure etc. IOF also
invests in early, growth as well as late stage

companies selectively.

As on March 31, 2016, IOF has made net
commitments of ¥270.37 crore in 23 companies,
out of which, a sum of ¥200.66 crore has been
invested in 22 companies.

Samridhi Fund (SF)

The Department for International Development
(DFID), Government of United Kingdom has
parinered with SIDBI to start the Samridhi Fund
- a social venture fund which engages
with  the
market-based solutions to address development

private  sector to  deliver
challenges in the low income states in India.
DFID has committed GBP 35 million (approx.
T340 crore) to Samridhi Fund, while SIDBI, Life
Insurance Corporation of India (“LIC”) and
United India Insurance Co Ltd (“UIIC”) have
committed ¥50 crore, T40 crore and ¥ 10 crore
respectively. Thus the total committed corpus of

SF is around ¥ 440 crore.

The primary objective of the Fund is to promote
sustainable social enterprises which provide
economic, social or environmental benefits and
can deliver both financial and social returns, in 8
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Low Income States (“LIS”) in India, namely
Bihar, Uttar Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Odisha,
Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, Rajasthan and West
Bengal. Samridhi Fund by way of privately
negotiated equity / equity related investments,
loans, debentures etc. as may be permitted by
the SEBI (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012.

As on March 31, 2016, SF has the commitment of
approx. 290.19 crore, out of which a sum of
T163.88 crore has been invested in 11 companies.

TEX Fund (TF)

SVCL has set up ‘TEX Fund’ with initial
contributors being Govt. of India (Ministry of
Textiles) and SIDBI. The Fund would invest in
small enterprises in the textile sector, more
particularly related to Powerloom sector. Each
investment would not exceed ¥3 crore. The
corpus of the Fund is ¥ 40.83 crore.

TF has made cumulative commitments of ¥ 13.43
crore towards 5 investments. Investments
aggregating ¥1.84 crore have been made in 2
companies as on March 31, 2016.

West Bengal MSME VC Fund (WB Fund)

West Bengal MSME VC Fund (WB Fund) has
been set up with a targeted corpus of Y200
crore. WB Fund is a close ended fund with a life
of 6 years established in November 2015,
extendable by a period of one year twice.

The WB Fund focus is to invest in start-ups,
emerging or early growth stage MSMEs in West
Bengal. The Fund is sector agnostic, however,
preference is given to MSMEs promoted by
women entrepreneurs. Each investment will be
limited to ¥9 crore. As of March 31, 2016, the
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Fund has made cumulative commitments of T11
crore towards 2 investments.

Maharashtra State Social Venture Fund (MS
Fund)

Maharashtra State Social Venture Fund (“MS
Fund”) with targeted corpus of Y200 crore was
established on September 15, 2015 as a close
ended unit scheme of Maharashtra Laghu Vikas
Trust (“Trust”). The tenure of the fund is 7

years.

The primary investment focus of MS Fund is to
identify and invest in profitable and scalable
business ventures including innovative business
model or new products & technologies which
would have potential to provide social benefits
(economic and/or societal and/or environmental)
to the people of Maharashtra.

Balance-Sheet of SVCL

The abridged Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016
and Statement of Profit and Loss of SVCL for

Forfefaa afasst o far srer d: the period April 01, 2015 to March 31, 2016 are
given in the following tables:
aiféraT 7.1 exditee &1 wfde g
Table: 7.1 Abridged Balance Sheet of SVCL
(X @9 / lakh)
T 31 7T, 2015 THdiee o1 |l ger o 791 31 7T, 2016
(3rpTara) Abridged (3
As on March 31, Balance Sheet of SVCL As on March 31,
2015 (Audited) 2016 (Audited)
sfaac! g agame / EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1,500.00 ¥R 3t / Share capital 1,500.00
1,247.60 IRf&ferdt 3iR 3RS/ Reserves and Surplus 1,452.73
178.99 R I 3T/ Non - Current Liabilities 259.56
773.38 Al aTa/ Current Liabilities 766.03
3,699.97 P/ Total 3,978.32
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iRt / ASSETS
2,321.47 I=-are] Tt/ Non - Current Assets 2,515.67
1,378.50 ], 3Rt/ Current Assets 1,462.65
3,699.97 gyl | Total 3,978.32
ARTBT 7.2: BHARICE BT WHidge aws-gri faa=on
Table 7.2: Abridged Statement of Profit & Loss of SVCL
(¥ &g / lakh)
31 77 2015 THARites BT wfda ams-gf faazor 31 ATl 2016 B WA
231?5::. Statement ofl:'l:c:;gg;ioss of SVCL aﬁpm;w
ended March ended March
31, 2015 31, 2016 (Audited)
To1d /| REVENUE
1,448.53 yRare= | IR / Revenue from operations 1,438.08
155.12 39 1Y / Other Income 140.82
1,603.65 | TRT/ Total 1,578.90
o4 | EXPENSES
711.53 e &a / Operating expenses 673.05
9.64 HEIET™ / Depreciation 5.84
721.17 ANT/ Total 678.89
88248 | HUARIHS U4 JHRT Hal qUT IR-d ¢ 900.01
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax
0.00 31§ - IRTURYT 7 / Add: Extraordinary items 0.00
0.02 HeTU - TGt 31aftr & WHRITSH / Less: Prior Period Adjustment 0.00
882.46 WA #Q B4 aX-qd ¢H 900.01
Profit Before extraordinary item and Taxation
0.00 HeT: 3R #e [fHaer/(RiEt) & qea # gr] 0.00
Less: Extraordinary item [provision for diminution in the
value of investments / (Reversed)]
882.46 @X-Ud @ / Profit Before Taxation 900.01
290.00 e X / Current tax 286.00
(18.23) I &% / Deferred tax (3.01)
0.00 an%gq:rf (31f&ra) g/ Short/(Excess) provisionforIncome Tax (47.26)
0.00 gdac a9 & WaTerd 3Ma-3% / Income tax pertaining to earlier year 1.44
1500 | ¥fewsR wfifaferdt 85 39 / Contribution to CSR Activities 5.00
595.69 Frafts # @wwl(@1) / Profit / (loss) for the period 657.84
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II. SIDBI Trustee Company Limited

SIDBI Trustee Company Limited (STCL) was
established in 1999 to carry out the trusteeship
functions in general and for Venture Capital
Funds. STCL, at present, is acting as the Trustee
for National Venture Fund for Software and
Information Technology Industry (NFSIT), SME
Growth Fund (SGF), India Opportunities Fund
(IOF), Samridhi Fund (SF), TEX Fund (TF), West
Bengal MSME VC Fund (WB Fund) and
Maharashtra State Social Venture Fund (MS
Fund).

Balance-Sheet of STCL

The abridged Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016
and Statement of Profit and Loss for the period
April 01, 2015 to March 31, 2016 for STCL are as
given below :

aiférat 7.3: ewdiiiea &1 s ge= o
Table 7.3: Abridged Balance Sheet of STCL

(X o / lakh)
1 31 AT, 2015 THeRiee &1 Hitiet g o T2 31 7T, 2016
(3ipfa) Abridged (3rp )
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
(Audited) (Audited)
gfaad) 3R doeme / EQUITY & LIABILITIES
5.00 ¥R Y3t / Share capital 5.00
507.17 IRf&fr 3R SfRIY/ Reserves and Surplus 545.24
0.00 % @1e] 3T/ Non - Current Liabilities 0.00
0.80 AT agamd/ Current Liabilities 0.80
512.97 T | Total 551.04
anf¥erit /| ASSETS
3.61 IR-aneg ¥t/ Non - Current Assets 3.16
509.36 aTe] Jfdi/ Current Assets 547.88
512.97 Pl / Total 551.04
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aifere 7.4: ewdiitea &1 il amv-gif @

Table 7.4: Abridged Statement of Profit & Loss of STCL

e / lakh)
31 97, 2015 &Y Tweitee @) it emw-gif feravof 31 AT, 2016 Bt
T I & Abridged T Y 2
(3pftaa) Statement of Profit & Loss of STCL (3ipfa)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
(Audited) (Audited)
I5T%d /| REVENUE
35.67 gREreHi ¥ 5% / Revenue from operations 17.05
45.38 3 31T / Other Income 4484
81.05 $e1/ Total 61.89
& | EXPENSES
6.26 gREre &9 / Operating expenses 6.92
6.26 gt / Total 6.92
74.79 SIRATEIROT 7al A1 $-Yd TH 54.97
Profit before extraordinary items and tax
0.00 S - FEROT 7S / Add: Extraordinary items 0.00
0.00 uere - fueel 36ty & wadis 0.00
Less: Prior Period Adjustment
74.79 @R-Ud % / Profit Before Taxation 54.97
23.20 dre] @K / Current tax 17.00
0.00 SRR &% / Deferred tax 0.00
0.00 AI-axX %ﬂ SifcifR<h UTae / Excess provision for Income Tax (0.09)
51.59 araftr § @ma/(@1f™) / Profit / (loss) for the period 38.06
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III. Micro Units Development & Refinance
Agency [MUDRA]

MUDRA has been set up on April 8, 2015 as a
wholly owned subsidiary of SIDBI for ‘funding
the unfunded’ micro enterprises in the country.
MUDRA  refinances banks, Micro-finance
Institutions (MFIs) and other lending
institutions, which are in the business of lending
to micro / small business entities. Thus,
MUDRA strengthens the last mile financial
institutions by extending refinance and other
development support to expand their outreach.
MUDRA'’s mandate also includes developing
the micro enterprise sector into a viable
economic sector.

As on March 31, 2016, 27 Public Sectors Banks,
17 Private Sector Banks, 31 Regional Rural
Banks, 1 State Cooperative Bank (Gujarat SCB),
12 Urban Cooperative Banks, 46 MFIs (including
10 non NBFC MFIs), and 26 NBFCs, (totaling to
160) had been shortlisted as partner institutions.

aifera 7.5: facita seerasita a2
Table 7.5: Financial Highlights

% BUF/ crore)
gt / Agency ¥ Wpa i wfeaRa
Amount sanctioned Amount disbursed
§@ / Banks % 2432 ¥2,432
THEGST / MFs 812 3616
eETenHT / NBECs 250 0
FIRIARE! / RRBs %239.25 7239.25
G # 9997 / Investment in PTCs T49.95 4995
o/ TOTAL ¥3,783.20 ¥3,337.20
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As at end of March 2016, MUDRA had
sanctioned ¥ 3783.20 crore to 22 MFIs, 3 NBECs,
17 PSBs and 3 RRBs. Out of the same, ¥3337.20
crore was disbursed as on 31% March, 2016.

Further, an investment was done in Pass-
through Certificates (PTCs) of securitized assets
of Janalaxmi Financial Services Ltd, a pan India

NBFC-MFI, based at Bengaluru, for ¥49.95
crore.

Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana (PMMY)

Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana (PMMY), a
scheme to finance income generating small
business enterprises was launched on April 08,
2015 by the Hon'ble Prime Minister, whereby all
banks are required to finance micro
entrepreneurs upto Y10 lakh, irrespective of
whether they avail of refinance support from
MUDRA or not. MUDRA loans are available in
three categories. For small business, loans
upto ¥50,000/- is available under the ‘Shishu’
category and beyond ¥ 50,000 and up to I5 lakh
under the ‘Kishor’ category. It also offers loans
beyond ¥ 5 lakh and up to ¥10 lakh under the
“Tarun” category. PMMY loans are extended by
all Banks such as PSU banks, Regional Rural
Banks (RRBs), Cooperative Banks, Private Sector
Banks, Foreign Banks, Micro Finance Institutions
and Non-Banking Finance Companies.

arfeit 7.6: dreqenar & Jiaia gafa

Table 7.6: Progress under PMMY

(X @3/ crore)
I3/ Scheme Gl @ e (7E) wpa i wfeafRa afn
No. of Accounts ( lakhs) Amount sanctioned Amount disbursed
gy / SHISHU 324.02 62894 62028
iR / KISHOR 20.69 43053 41073
w01 / TARUN 4.10 31502 29854
o | TOTAL 348.81 137449 132955
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Progress under PMMY

As on March 31, 2016, ¥1.37 lakh crore was
sanctioned to 348.81 lakh borrowers, of which
¥1.33 lakh crore was disbursed.

MUDRA Card

MUDRA Card is an innovative credit product
wherein the borrower can avail of credit in a
hassle free and flexible manner. It provides a
facility of working capital arrangement in the
form of an overdraft facility to the borrower.
Since MUDRA Card is a RuPay debit card, it
can be used for drawing cash from ATM or
Business Correspondent or make purchase using
Point of Sale (POS) machine. Facility is also
there to repay the amount, as and when, surplus
cash is available, thereby reducing the interest
cost. As at end of March 2016, 5.17 lakh cards
for 31,477 crore issued.

MUDRA App - “MUDRA MITRA”

MUDRA MITRA is a mobile phone application
available in Google Play Store and Apple App
Store, providing information regarding ‘Micro
Units Development and Refinance Agency Ltd.
(MUDRA)’ and its various products/ schemes. It
will guide a loan seeker to approach a banker in
availing MUDRA loan under Pradhan Mantri
Mudra Yojana (PMMY). Users can also access
useful loan related material including sample
loan application forms.

MUDRA Credit Guarantee

As announced by the Hon’ble Finance Minister
in the budget for FY-2015-16, a separate credit
Guarantee fund was created for MUDRA Loans,
with an initial corpus of Y3000 crore. National
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Credit Guarantee Trustee Company (NCGTC) is
the implementing agency for MUDRA Credit
Guarantee scheme. The scheme was notified
during April 2016 and all eligible Mudra loans
issued after April 08, 2015 are to be covered
under the scheme.

ASSOCIATES

IV. Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro
and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE)

CGTMSE was set up in 2000 by Government of
India and SIDBI to operate the Credit Guarantee
Scheme (CGS) for Micro and Small Enterprises
(MSEs) which guarantees credit facilities upto
100 lakh extended by Member Lending
Institutions (MLIs) in respect of those loans,
which are not backed by collateral security and /
or third party guarantees. The total corpus
contribution received by the Trust from its
Settlors viz., Ministry of MSME, Government of
India and SIDBI as on March 31, 2016 stood at
T 2,432 crore as against the committed corpus of
¥ 2,500 crore.

Operations of Credit Guarantee Scheme

During the FY 2015-16, the Trust approved
guarantees of 5,13,978 for 19,949 crore taking
the cumulative guarantees approved by the
Trust till March 31, 2016 to 23,23,673 guarantees
for an aggregate amount of ¥ 1,08,990.85 crore.

An analysis of the cumulative coverage under
CGS as at March 31, 2016, indicates that 4,72,541
proposals (20.34%) for X 16,756.57 crore (15.37%)
were in respect of Women Entrepreneurs;
1,14,815 proposals (4.94%) for ¥2,549.82 crore
(2.34%) to Scheduled Caste; 50,509 proposals
(2.17%) for ¥1616.55 crore (1.48%) to Scheduled
Tribe and 1,53,789 proposals (6.62%) for
T4,924.13 crore (4.52%) to the Minorities.
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% 2493/- TRI$ & a1 97346 TG TAveE| gRe & fama
15 @l & JFHAl T Hisiereneds & emierar
H IS G IR G &S TAUIC a1 &l
YA I & ffR & R |, g 7 TR
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The Trust settled claims in respect of 34,810
units for an aggregate amount of ¥997 crore.
Cumulatively, the Trust had settled 97,346
claims aggregating to 2,493 crore till March 31,
2016. Based on the experience of the Trust for
past 15 years and analysis of the available data
as also to factor the levels of NPAs and claim
payout ratios of each MLI out of the portfolio of
CGTMSE, differential rate of guarantee fee has
been introduced by the Trust.

Awareness Creation

CGTMSE has adopted multi-channel approach
for creating awareness of the CGS amongst
banks, MSE Industry Associations, MSE sector,
etc. through print and press media, conducting

aiferet 7.7: 31 7w, 2016 (Wod) 96 WieaR TRE FgHIE
Table 7.7 : Slab-wise guarantee approvals as on March 31, 2016 (cumulative)

(Z BT/ crore)
®9 | ¥/ Range Wl / Cumulative

No. el 3t s F01 I

(e ) (% B3 #)

No. of Proposals Loan Amount

(in lakhs) & crore)
1 1,00,000/- @/ Upto 1,00,000/- 8,56,238 4,215.61
2 1,00,001 ¥ 2,00,000/- / 1,00,001 to 2,00,000/- 5,23,863 8,105.56
3 2,00,001 & 5,00,000/- / 2,00,001 to 5,00,000/- 4,74,802 17,231.96
4 5,00,001 ¥ 10,00,000/- / 5,00,001 to 10,00,000/- 2,38,585 18,274.70
5 10,00,001 & 25,00,000/- / 10,00,001 to 25,00,000/- 1,63,878 28,224.76
6 25,00,001 ¥ 50,00,000 / 25,00,001 to 50,00,000/- 46,180 17,516.30
7 50,00,001 ¥ 100,00,000/- / 50,00,001 to 100,00,000/- 20,127 15,421.96

gﬂl Total 23,23,673 1,08,990.85

9T e & - dha § ge Rl smehest & oo aRdfae S § 3R 8 wax gl

N.B.: Actuals may vary due to intervening cancellations / modifications
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workshops / seminars, attending the
programmes organized at various district /state/
national fora, etc. During the year, CGTMSE
participated in various seminars / workshops
organized by MLI and Industry Associations,
exhibitions and meetings organized by RBI/
Govt. CGTMSE officials also held business
development meetings with Member lending

Institutions to create awareness about CGS.

During FY 2015-16, CGTMSE participated in
seminars workshops/ Banker'’s meet/ Business
development meetings and also made
presentations to sensitize bank officials/ small
enterprises on the various aspects of the Credit
Guarantee  Scheme. The  workshops /
programmes were generally arranged by the
member banks / RBI /Industry Associations etc.

Overall Impact

CGTMSE'’s operations have had a positive
impact on the economy in terms of turnover,
exports and employment of credit guaranteed

Fr=falea sies! ¥ o 2- MSEs as given below:
et 7.8: WoNdleneHs &1 W9 99d
Table 7.8: Overall Impact CGTMSE
HUES / Parameters Zren 31 Wl 2016
As on March 31, 2016
ot SrHifed MRFEAT / Cumulative Guarantees approved 23,23,673
FOT T (Ve HUTETA Seenm3i g1 ¥ewd) (T ars) 1,08,990.85
Loan Amount (extended by MLIs) X crore)
TROHTE 3H13a1 BT FATT BRIGR (X BG) 8,67,019.27
Estimated turnover of guaranteed units (X crore)
TR gdrgdl & FgaTa fafa (T axrg) 7,290.61
Estimated exports by guaranteed units (X crore)
FIATI ATTRYSH (A1 H) / Estimated employment generation (lakh nos.) 77.22
W R HRIB P 61 / Number of MLIs 128

A1 &9 ¢ - 9ra & ge R/ Fmeies & $RuT aratad S # 3R 8 o &
N.B: Actuals may vary due to intervening cancellations/modifications
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V. wrEw fafies

WRT B AT 2005 F §§1 AU WA F FHT
¥ 31 TR, 2016 9 W A WUl WU § 37,554
vHeaeRs gosdl @ feT yem & &, & fafdm
auif, JEm qan ea ¥ $et g5 &1 R ged vl
@y It W 3Ry e o <@ 2, S g o
fET o e 77% AR 21% 2|

W & TR - || gFesl & Fta SR
& & ¥ af 2012 & wRag Red §@ 9 grar
firelt| 39 s@ ¥ W 3 foxftg af 2015-16 &
1129 8o ol & IET & 2| AT & 9
ot 0§ VR 7 2678 §o morfET B 2
=0 Fifafes, W1 A 37 gafy o T, R’
SRt e 3D 3= ey Iar & Jeg
¥ 59 IfET FH 21

g faedyam
o WY I fuamR 2015 @ = TRame= & 10
¥ R % ferel

o IR-ufowd FRIER # GOR & e garar
& oRoT, foxitg af 2014-15 @ geren # fawia

V. SMERA Ratings Limited

SMERA was set up in 2005. Cumulatively, since
its incorporation, SMERA has assigned ratings
to 37,554 MSME units up to March 31, 2016
spread across various categories, industries and
states. SMERA has been providing special
attention to micro and small enterprises which
accounted for 77% and 21%, respectively, of its
total ratings.

After receiving accreditation in the year 2012
from RBI as an External Credit Assessment
Institutions (ECAI) under BASEL - II norms,
SMERA has completed 1,129 Bank Loan Ratings
during the financial year 2015-16. Cumulatively
SMERA has assigned 2,678 Bank Loan Ratings.
In addition, SMERA has completed 59 ratings in
respect of other regulated products such as
Fixed  Deposit rating, = Non-Convertible
Debenture rating, Commercial Paper rating and
Issuer rating.

MAJOR HIGHLIGHTS

e SMERA completed 10 years of operations
in September 2015.

e Arising out of the focused efforts in
improving non-subsidized business, the

aiférst 7.9: fwira sedraita e

Table 7.9: Financial Highlights

(¥ @@ / lakh)
féya=ot / Particulars ferefry anf el af et and
FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016
e wWifim | aen e | e wifda
Audited Audited Audited
IS4 / Revenue 3,118 3,432 2,316
&4 | Expenditure 2,668 3,051 2,273
= Uﬁ?f Y / Profit Before Tax 449 380 43
PR UL ¢4 / Profit After Tax 375 300 32
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gy 2015-16 # & o7 IET F 37% H TR
el

e WRI Y P b ¥ FP TN THUHS
(vqun/feaes/eael) e Afsa gur vHEHTES
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t & W1 grr e g sewiie afRneor
R BT g1 W e e vHwwens § &
Fem f3ae Bevasy AR & a9 g1

3 woR, wdeq ghems o Refed &

———

rating numbers in respect of bank loan
ratings during the FY 2015-16 increased by
37% as against the numbers during FY
2014-15.

o SMERA successfully executed a mandate

from a Bank for conducting an
independent validation of their existing
SME (SM/SS/ST) rating models and MSME
scoring card.

e SMERA has got empanelment from DGET

for grading of ITI institutes. Given the
universe of more than 12,000 ITI institutes,
SMERA sees a symbiotic opportunity to
connect SMERA rated vocational training
institutes with SMERA rated MSMEs for
their respective placement and employment
opportunities. Similarly, the empanelment
from Government of Karnataka through

o
=

i o Y, "

OEA=

G
CODISSIA

INTERACTION WITH &
SIDBI & MUDRA B:

U3 June 2015, 12.00 Noon
Food Cout CODAAYA Toase Compien, Cocmmats

ACIHECACHIRE A $7Cd 2015 B HAIeH foar| an § aw & - At T dw=, Fagat g

, &, i et seae vd yay Fees, fred

4 §.%.qg%art, Afese, NeAEiFEearasse, At A5g PAR TR, 30 ya e Feve Rt am A 9. fresmm, wre wfie, AaAsasearae
CODISSIA organised INTEC 2015. From left to right: Shri Jiji Mammen, CEO, MUDRA, Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, CMD, SIDBI,
Shri E. K. Ponnuswamy, President, CODISSIA, Shri Ajay Kumar Kapur, DMD, SIDBI and Shri V. Thirugnanam, Hon. Secretary, CODISSIA.
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iDeck for the ratings of tourism facilities
and resorts is also a significant step
towards expanding SMERA’s
offerings to a new market.

service

e SMERA entered into a MoU with SIES
College of Management Studies, Nerul to
design and launch a certified credit analyst
training program for existing and aspiring
bankers. This will be a 6-day training
program spread over 3 months wherein
SMERA will provide the training content
and the sessions will be conducted in SIES
premises.

VI. India SME Technology Services Limited
[ISTSLI]

ISTSL as associate institution of SIDBI, offers
technology advisory and consultancy services
for projects related to energy efficiency and
demand management, renewable energy, MSME
cluster development and evaluation studies,
capacity building, awareness creation, skill
development with help of its team of experts
having extensive experinece in energy efficiency,
MSME sector, banking, project finance, renwable
energy & project management. ISTSL also
provides services such as providing information
on technology options, match making, finance
syndication and business collaborations and
organizing seminars/meets and providing
market support.

Services Offered by ISTSL:

e  End-to-End Energy Efficiency (4E) Solution:

ISTSL is
implementation of SIDBI's

involved  in
End-to-End
Energy Efficiency (4E) programme which is

actively
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aimed at facilitating the MSMEs in
Industrial and Services sector in improving
their energy savings. ISTSL also facilitates
Measurement and Verification (Mé&V)
Audit at MSME industries. More than 100
MSMEs have benefitted so far from the 4E
Solution programme which has resulted in
GHG emissions reductions of approx
11,500 tons of CO,.

Renewable Energy Solutions

ISTSL. facilitates adoption of Renewable
Energy technologies including Solar PV/
Thermal systems, biomass, etc. by the
MSMEs. ISTSL has been organizing
Awareness Creation / Capacity Building/
Skill Development Workshops/ Seminars in
various MSME clusters.

Ministry of New and Renewble Energy
(MNRE) has empanalled ISTSL as channel
partner under government category for
installation of Grid connected solar rooftop
systems/projects. ISTSL is providing project
management consultancy for solar rooftop
systems to various Central Government
Ministries/Departments,etc.

Technology Advisory & Consultancy
Services

ISTSL. offers technology advisory and
consultancy  services for  projects/
assingments related to Energy Efficiency,
Demand Side Management, Environment
Impact Assessment, Cluster Development,
Capacity Building / Awareness creation/
Skill Development, with help of
experienced team of experts.
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VII. India SME  Asset
Company Limited [ISARC]

Reconstruction

India SME Asset Reconstruction Company
Limited (ISARC) was incorporated on April 11,
2008 and commenced its business operations on
April 15, 2009 with the principal objective to
acquire non-performing assets (NPAs), inter-
alia, in MSME sector and catalyse speedy
restructuring of potentially viable units and
liquidation of unviable units, so that productive
use of the assets is maximized. ISARC's
shareholder base consists of SIDBI and SIDBI
Venture Capital Limited (SVCL) as its principal
sponsor and United Bank of India and Bank of
Baroda as co-sponsors. Other shareholders
include  public banks, financial
institutions and other companies. ISARC has a

sector

professionally managed Board of Directors
comprising more than half of the Board
members who are Independent Directors.

Business Operations

During FY 2015-16, ISARC submitted 9 tenders
for asset acquisitions to 3 banks, out of which
ISARC acquired 2 accounts from 2 Banks
(sellers) for an aggregate purchase consideration
of ¥17.59 crore out of which Y¥11.80 crore was
invested by ISARC and balance I5.79 crore
came from the other investors (sellers).

During the year, ISARC achieved highest ever
recovery of ¥45.54 crore as against ¥ 28.61 crore
in the previous year. Security Receipts (SRs)
worth ¥14.67 crore were redeemed during FY
2015-16 (previous year 1596 crore). As of
March 31, 2016, ISARC has assets under
management (AUM) of ¥380.86 crore (Gross
AUM - 467.14 crore) representing outstanding
SRs and balance sheet assets.
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Balance Sheet & Statement of Accounts

The audited Balance Sheet, along with Profit
and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement of
Small Industries Development Bank of India, for
the financial year 2015-16, are given in
Appendix - 1. The consolidated Balance Sheet,
along with Profit and Loss Account and Cash
Flow Statement of SIDBI with its subsidiaries
viz., SIDBI Venture Capital Ltd., (SVCL), SIDBI
Trustee Company Ltd., (STCL) and Micro Units
Development & Refinance Agency LTD
(MUDRA Ltd) and associates viz. SMERA
Ratings Ltd., (SMERA), Indian SME Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited (ISARC),
India SME Technology Services Ltd. (ISTSL),
Receivables Exchange of India Ltd. (RXIL) and
others are given in Appendix II.

The total income of the Bank during the year
was ¥5,784.61 crore as compared to I5,741.47
crore during the previous year. The total
expenditure during the corresponding period
was at ¥3,922.99 crore as compared to ¥ 3,823.24
crore during the previous year. The Profit before
Tax for the year was ¥1,636.47 crore, compared
to ¥2,115.24 crore in the previous year. The net
profit after tax and Deferred Tax Adjustment for
the year was T1,177.46 crore as against
%1,417.13 crore in the previous year. Out of the
total distributable profit of ¥1,217.20 crore (net
profit of ¥1,177.46 crore [after tax adjustment]
for the year ended March 31, 2016 and brought
forward profit of ¥39.74 crore), the Bank
declared a dividend of 20% on paid up equity
capital of ¥486.98 crore which worked out to
< 113.95 crore inclusive of dividend distribution
tax, surcharge and cess payable thereon. During
the year, a sum of ¥ 80 crore was transferred to
Special Reserve created under Section 36(1) (viii)



for e, T15.79 5 oY FaR-TeE aRfafa &
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o ey aRféafa iy & safka foar man ik
9y T40.46 TS ATH-EI @ & ek @ 7|
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of IT Act, 1961, ¥ 15.79 crore was transferred to
Investment Fluctuation
appropriation of I1 crore was made to Staff
Welfare Fund (SWF). Surplus of Y966 crore was
transferred to the Reserve Fund and balance
¥40.46 crore was retained in Profit and Loss
Account.

Reserve and
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@ XS / crore)

90000 -
80000 -
70000 -

60000 -
51217

I

50000 -
40000 -
30000 -
20000 -
10000 -

59385

61848

76478

| I

67810

5309
o | B
1991

2011 2012

2013

2014 2015 2016

aaE-Eae

¥ & foxig af 2015-16 & @@l & A@E-wE
AW IRAR Ud AR, WG dEoR, s A
@ wifdfte aarwiar &= & fae Fa Fghe
22 A, 2015 @ Ao e i dod A
st sttt (Taafia) & arr 30(1) &
FER B TS|

o Wigd B RIS U 9,128 B 192 W & T§
gl

Auditors

The accounts of the Bank for the financial year
2015-16 were audited by M/s Borkar &
Muzumdar, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai
who were appointed in terms of Section 30(1) of
the SIDBI Act, 1989 (as amended) at the Annual
General Meeting held on June 22, 2015 for
carrying out the statutory audit.

The reports of the Auditors are given on Page
Nos.128 and 192.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To
The Shareholders of
Small Industries Development Bank of India

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Financial
Statements of Small Industries Development Bank
of India (“the Bank”) which comprises the Balance
Sheet as at 31" March, 2016 and the Profit & Loss
Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Incorporated in these financial statements are the
returns of 10 Branches visited by us for the purpose
of audit and the same including Head Office
accounts for 82.47% of Advances, 98.48% of
Deposits, 100% of Borrowings, 77.59% of interest
income on Advances and 99.02% of interest expense
on Deposits and Borrowings. These branches have
been selected in consultation with the Bank. We
have not visited balance Branches of the Bank and
have reviewed their returns at the Head Office.

Management Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Bank’s Management is responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Bank in
accordance with Small Industries Development
Bank of India General Regulations, 2000, the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the applicable Accounting Standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and applicable RBI guidelines as issued from
time to time. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records for
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aaErIfHan daR @ S 5 I uRRefat & foe
3ugs 8 | fobeg s9a 38ga Hw1 o MaRke fa=o
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safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for
preventing and detecting frauds
irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies, making judgments

and other

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of internal
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also include evaluating the
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e & FgET daR e e &

appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Bank’s Management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the a
foresaid Financial Statements give the information
required by the Small Industries Development Bank
of India General Regulations, 2000 in the manner so
required to the extent required by the Bank and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Bank as at 31%* March 2016,

b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of
the profit of the Bank for the year ended 31st
March 2016,

¢) in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other

Requirements

Legal and Regulatory

We report that:

1. The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account
have been drawn up in accordance with the
requirements of the Regulation 14(i) of the
Small Industries Development Bank of India
General Regulations, 2000.
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We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations, which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and
have found them to be satisfactory.

In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Bank so
far as appears from our examination of those
books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with
Books of Accounts.

The transactions of the Bank, which have come
to our notice, have been within the powers of

é’f fepe e é l the Bank.
6. dm o IrER AR BAtEal GIRT UT&T foaxfomat 6. The returns received from the offices and

TR eraEr-a e & foe gafa o branches of the Bank have been found
. adequate for the purposes of our audit.

7. EERI W ﬁ Ll Raré & _ m'q?ﬁ i 7. In our opinion, theaforesaid financial
Tt & ey drEr-ame & s e statements dealt with by this report comply
T gl with the applicable Accounting Standards.

X! SRS U8 AoPER For Borkar & Muzumdar

TG AR Chartered Accountants

T USTaRUT ¥, 1101569 ST Firm Registration No.101569W

3l Darshit Doshi
? ars 0s
Partner

RAGIICT ¥, 133755 Membership No. 133755

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2016

H: T 65
Temtie: 25 W€, 2016
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31 el 2016 T JeTi-97 / Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

URRIE - |/ Appendix- I

31 T, 2016 BT GeT=1-95 / Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

®
Y30 ed 3T / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 31 A, 2016 31 9, 2015
SCHEDULES | March31,2016 | March 31,2015
g3t / Capital I 486,98,22,500 450,00,00,000
&, sty sk fft@i / Reserves, Surplus and Funds 1l 11108,27,11,816 9329,60,80,446
ST / Deposits I 15575,12,27,905 |  13446,81,67,994
J4R / Borrowings \Y 42356,68,51,125|  30672,87,29,963
3] TTATU UF JTGUH / Other Liabilities and Provisions \ 6909,47,34,117 6833,05,66,558
it @ T /Deferred Tax Liability 41,94,00,171 122,68,70,161
TNT /Total 76478,47,47,634 60855,04,15,122
&l /ASSETS
el vd § AT / Cash and Bank Balances VI 1184,51,19,392 1028,53,89,874
1391 / Investments v 7435,86,27,861 2929,58,50,035
0T Ud FAfUH / Loans & Advances VIII 65632,09,75,865|  55342,59,38,200
TR anfar / Fixed Assets X 210,35,58,554 206,10,01,920
310 JRETAT / Other Assets X 2015,64,65,962 1348,22,35,093
AN /Total 76478,47,47,634 60855,04,15,122
3RS ST / Contingent Liabilities XI 10410,76,98,369 764076,79,911
HE@yU! o el / Significant Accounting Policies XV
oiar fewfori / Notes to Accounts XVI
Ieh FYadl Go-UA B HATHF T 8| / The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
1€ & JMARHR / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
w9 f&mie o gAY ROl & AR/ As per our report of even date
o e 3, Eera LRIEATEG]
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR % 9. _ ki HT FAR B grAufer ferarsit
9 A - UlJ. La.lwa?m Manoj Mittal Ajay Kumar Kapur  Kshatrapati Shivaji
Chiastered Accountarits 1%@ HEWE D 3 yee Fres Jyae e gy vd yay FRve
UEHIRET : 101569 Chief General Manager DePu'-'){ Managing  Deputy Managing Chairman &
FRN. : 101569W tﬁmﬁa’ o T aﬁaﬁ) Director Director Managing Director
(Corporate Accounts Vertical)
&f3fa areft / Darshit Doshi
THER / Partner

PH. ¥. / M. No. : 133755

9. $.9). MERE / SK.V. Srinivasan
1291 / Director

3R, HEEA / R. Ramachandran

&, 7% 25, 2016 12976 / Director

Mumbai, May 25, 2016
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31 97, 2016 Y WIS @ BT FH-E11+ W/ Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2016

31 AT, 2016 B T aY BT TH-&IH @
Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2016

®

313 | INCOME 31 Hrdl, 2016 31 5T, 2015
SCHEDULES | March 31,2016 | March 31,2015

151 B4 §¢2l / Interest and Discount X1 5541,82,40,051 5497,05,62,165
31 3119 [ Other Income X1 242,78,39,244 244,40,64,201
AN/ Total 5784,60,79,295 5741,46,26,366
Y | EXPENDITURE
@157 vd faRiIa W9R / Interest & Financial charges 3502,07,84,082 3373,72,34,139
URae &4 / Operating Expenses X 420,91,06,193 449,51,48,008
WTaET Ud HTHRHG &9 / Provisions & Contingencies 225,14,67,832 (197,01,25,162)
R/ Total 4148,13,58,107 3626,22,56,985
@R-Jd @M / Profit before Tax 1636,47,21,188 2115,23,69,381
Fraax & fore grae (@ fowoh |. 26) 539,75,26,557 511,38,00,017
Provision for Income Tax (Refer note no. 26)
i aR-TErEe [(3TR)/&adn) (80,74,69,989) 186,72,66,607
Deferred Tax Adjustment [(Asset) / Liability]
TR-UZANT oTH / Profit after Tax 1177,46,64,620 1417,13,02,757
3TITIT &M / Profit brought forward 39,73,69,861 35,92,46,808
Pl ewI(EIF) [ Total Profit/ (Loss) 1217,20,34,481 1453,05,49,565
faf*rars | Appropriations
g IRfEf F graRor/ 966,00,00,000 1190,00,00,000
Transfer to General Reserve
FG-TR FRITIT 1961 B ETRT36(1) (vii) S et faery SR fdafer grRor 80,00,00,000 80,00,00,000

Transfer to Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of The Income Tax Act, 1961
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31 77ef, 2016 Y WA A 1 TH-&I W1 / Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2016

31 AT, 2016 B T aY BT ATH-EI @
Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2016

®
faf*rasr / Appropriation sl | 319w, 2016 31 7, 2015
SCHEDULES | March 31,2016 | March 31,2015
34 [ Others
Fdwr 3aR-TgE aRfERT # FaRor 15,78,97,722 5,91,56,175
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve
I Bearo f4fe # F=ROT / Transfer to Staff Welfare Fund 1,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
SR} R FTHIET / Dividend on Shares 94,68,10,409 1,12,50,00,000
TSN 0 &% / Tax on Dividend 19,27,48,322 22,90,23,529
TG arH-ai= @ & sty 40,45,78,028 39,73,69,861
Surplus in Profit & Loss account carried forward
N/ Total 1217,20,34,481 1453,05,49,565
iy SR qe/faefie 3151 / Basicidiluted Earning Per share 24.87 31.49
Heayut orar el / Significant Accounting Policies XV
ot fewforat / Notes to Accounts XVI

Ieh FYadl Go-UA B HATHF T 8| / The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

1€ & MERHR / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
w9 f&mie ot enRY ROl & AR/ As per our report of even date
Tl SIRaK U8 A5HER
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR & 3. TIerart wrat fier H HAR YL grafer Rrarsit
9 A = UlJ. La.lwa?m Manoj Mittal Ajay Kumar Kapur  Kshatrapati Shivaji
Chiastered Accountarits 1%@:{31;13% wysafRes  JywwafRye sregw vd yeg FRee
UEERE : 101569 3G, Chief General Manager  Deputy Managing  Deputy Managing Chairman &
FRN. : 101569W tﬁmﬁa’ o T aﬁ;—dﬁ) Director Director Managing Director
(Corporate Accounts Vertical)
&f3fa 29l / Darshit Doshi
THER / Partner
UH. 9. / M. No.: 133755
U9, .41, MHamE / SK.V. Srinivasan AR, IFAET / R. Ramachandran
Has, 7§ 25, 2016 f&ees / Director f&915 / Director

Mumbai, May 25, 2016
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31 WTel, 2016 & JET-9A B SFIRIAT | Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

®)

Y3i d 24 / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

31 \rel, 2016

March 31, 2016

31 \7el, 2015

March 31, 2015

FFgA / SCHEDULEI

g3h / Capital

(®) wiftrga G351 / (a) Authorized Capital

- gfdad R L3N (10/- wfer AR &t &R 75,00,00,000 $faract 2reR)

- Equity Share Capital (75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each)

750,00,00,000

750,00,00,000

- e SR gt (210/- Sifer 9reR 3 @R ¥ 25,00,00,000 Fivem St 9RR)

- Preference Share Capital (25,00,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥10/- each)

250,00,00,000

250,00,00,000

(@) s, Fif¥reer 3tk gwar Gait / (b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital :

-gfaaet roR YT (210/- wfer 9raR @ @) ¥ 45,69,82,250 STt ¥R)

- Equity Share Capital (48,69,82,250 Equity Shares of T10/- each)

486,98,22,500

450,00,00,000

- AT ¥R 3Nt / Preference Share Capital

N/ Total

486,98,22,500

450,00,00,000

It / SCHEDULE IT

FRfafmal, sftry sk fiftrai / Reserves, Surplus and Funds

&) SIRf&fR™I / A) Reserves

i) aMa ARTETRR | General Reserve

-31% 919 / Opening Balance

7628,31,73,555

6438,31,73,555

-4 & SR URaEH /Additions during the year

966,00,00,000

1190,00,00,000

- ¥ & &R 394N / Utilisations during the year

- §fe1 919 /Closing Balance

8594,31,73,555

7628,31,73,555

ii) 9rax NfTH / Share Premium

- 3121 919 / Opening Balance

-g¥ & @R uRael /Additions during the year

713,01,77,500

- 9§ & 2R 3941 / Utilisations during the year

- 81 919/ Closing Balance

713,01,77,500
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31 ATe, 2016 & G- B! FYFeAT / Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

®
Y37 ed 2TEIE / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 317, 2016 | 319w, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31,2015
iii) Ty ARfAfRM / Specific Reserves
®) a9 IRf#ER/ 2) Investment Reserve
- 37T 99 / Opening Balance 55,19,63,645 55,19,63,645
-af & 2R uRaef= /Additions during the year - =
- & 2R 39GNT / Utilisations during the year = a
- Eﬁl 9y fCios'mg Balance 55,19,63,645 55,19,63,645
W) smamsthfEm, 1961 3 arRi3s (1)(viil) ¥ s Fiffaed Fftaferai
b) Special Reserve created and maintained u/s 36 (1) (viii) of The Income Tax Act, 1961
- 37 99 / Opening Balance 1277,00,00,000(  1197,00,00,000
-a§ & R uRkaefF /Additions during the year 80,00,00,000 80,00,00,000
- @ & R YA / Utilisations during the year = =
- g1 919 /Closing Balance 1357,00,00,000|  1277,00,00,000
M) 3 FARFGRT / o) Other Reserves
iy 391 3aR-TgE ARTERT /mvestment Fluctuation Reserve
- 31% 99 / Opening Balance 52,56,48,130 46,64,91,955
-a¥ & 2RF uRaeH /Additions during the year 15,78,97,722 5,91,56,175
-g¥ & &R 39T / Utilisations during the year
- gfe1 99 /Closing Balance 68,35,45,852 52,56,48,130
(@) = - & @R A HFEY / B) Surplus in Profit and Loss account 40,45,78,028 39,73,69,861
(M ffE=T/ ©) Funds
o) T $¥dt fftr/ 2) National Equity Fund
- 1% 39 / Opening Balance 254,08,68,273|  247,11,20,023
- o &R U@ /Additions / Write back during the year 1,31,93,218 6,97,48,250
- @ & 2IRT 399N / Utilisations during the year
- 3f1 99 /Closing Balance 25540,61491|  254,08,68,273

136



Annual Report 2015-16 -

YRt @y 3a faer o

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
31 WITel, 2016 & JET-9A B SFIRIAT | Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

®)
Y37 ed 2TEIE / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 317, 2016 | 319w, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015
@) wIB Feam it / b) Staff Welfare Fund
- 3% 39 / Opening Balance 22,70,56,982 22,07,97,120
-a§ % 2R uRael /Additions during the year 3,36,40,020 2,00,00,000
- & SRM 398N / Utilisations during the year 1,54,85,257 1,37,40,138
- 3% 99 /Closing Balance 24,52,11,745 22,70,56,982
) 3= | ) Others - -
an / Total 11108,27,11,816|  9329,60,80,446
! / SCHEDULE I
51/ Deposits
®) wafti 5™/ A) Fixed Deposits 8,25,12,27,905| 1157,69,17,994
@) o1 ¥/ B) From Banks
@) Gew, oY Td wegw JaW yAfaa fHfer & it / 10000,00,00,000| 10289,12,50,000
a) Under MSME Refinance Fund
@) Y&, Y Ud weaw Jaw Shiaw on it & st/ 1750,00,00,000|  1500,00,00,000
b) Under MSME Risk Capital Fund
3 - fedh AR Fot dm s S ¥/ - E
c) Others -From Foreign & Private Sector Banks
H) UHUHUHS 9RG Aardien it & siata 500,00,00,000|  500,00,00,000
d) Under MSME India Aspiration Fund
§) UHTHUAS &F B JaH gan il 2014-15 & sicnfa 2500,00,00,000 -
e) Under Fund for Venture Capital in MSME sector 2014-15
39-417 (@) / Subtotal (B) 14750,00,00,000 | 12289,12,50,000
TN / Total 15575,12,27,905 | 13446,81,67,994
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®
Y3it ed 2TEIE / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 317, 2016 | 319w, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31,2015
Y /| SCHEDULE IV
e | Borrowings
) 9Ra ¥ 3NRAT / Borrowings in India
1. "R Roid §5 | / From Reserve Bank of India - -
2. YRd WIR ¥ (WRT PR gRT AT dfvs afea) / 2356,12,00,839|  3084,04,85,859
From Government of India (including Bonds subscribed by GOI )
3. dfvs vd f&dTR / Bonds & Debentures 13077,60,00,000 |  10443,60,00,000
4. 3= Erat ¥ / From Other Sources
- aTfIf3ae 93 / Commercial Paper 9090,00,00,000|  6625,00,00,000
- STHT JH10T U / Certificate of Deposits 3081,00,00,000 =
- §@i ¥ Waftr 9T/ Term Loans from Banks 760,73,58,503|  887,79,89,157
- Tafy g JeRAT / Term Money Borrowings = =
-3 | Others 2149,42,56,515|  398,77,06,490
39-TN1 / Subtotal (1) 30514,88,15,857 | 21439,21,81,506
I) KA ¥ §Te< J61REGT / Borrowings outside India
() PoBEEY, ST / (a) KFW, Germany 1714,36,44,616 |  1207,58,56,266
(@) U FeTFE DI-3TIREH T (FA15H) / 4832,53,51,698|  4264,85,08,020
(b) Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)
() Fgewes!, AT/ () IFAD, Rome 131,44,98/429|  128,75,19,696
(@) féea &/ (d) World Bank 4661,92,78,563|  3160,27,74,690
(8) 34 /(e) Others 501,52,61,962 472,18,89,785
39-171 / Subtotal (II) 11841,80,35,268 |  9233,65,48 457
TN/ Total (1 & ID) 42356,68,51,125| 30672,87,29,963

138



Annual Report 2015-16 -

YR oy o faer do
SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA

31 WTel, 2016 & JET-9A B SFIRIAT | Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

®)

Yy5il ud 3TEIE / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 31 W, 2016 | 31 e, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31,2015

FE | SCHEDULE V
=9 G g UG / Other Liabilities and Provisions:
3ufra &aT5T / Interest Accrued 264,94,67,742|  301,4542,566
3= (STaeT fed) / Others (including provisions) 4813,03,00,358|  4637,67,58,975
feeh qar o IAR-T%1a &q Haa / 1398,70,64,311 |  1443,14,85,860
Provisions for Exchange Rate Fluctuation
A 3l & foe e e sl graem / 318,83,42,975|  31537,55,628
Contingent provisions against standard assets
SISl ETHIST (GTHIST UR @K Gf&d) / Proposed Dividend (including tax on dividend) 113,95,58,731 135,40,23,529
T/ Total 6909,47,34,117 |  6833,05,66,558
anfdi / ASSETS
YA /| SCHEDULE VI
Fopd! 3k & 31 / Cash & Bank Balances
1. g ¥ Fax 3R wRara Red S 3 afeey 6,68,296 6,89,676

Cash in Hand & Balances with Reserve Bank of India

2. 3 do o AR / Balances with Other Banks - -

(@) IRAH/ (a) In India

i) TG, @l § /in current accounts 27,86,42,690 17,93,80,001
ii) 37 789 @Al & /in other deposit accounts 307,91,98,866 108,92,63,837
(@) 9Re & a@< / (b) Outside India
i) I @Al ¥ /in current accounts 20,48,368 21,61,73,877
i) 3 T8 @Gt /in other deposit accounts 848,45,61,172|  884,98,82,483
T/ Total 118451,19,392|  1028,53,89,874
I / SCHEDULE VII

@21/ Investments [IT@EI B BE@X / net of provisions]

$) ISTHNIT 9REE / A) Treasury operations

1. 53R 5T TSR & ufergferdl / Securities of Central and State Governments| ~ 68591,44458(  917,02,67,985
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®
sl | ASSETS 31w, 2016 | 3197, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31,2015
2. doi 3R iy W3 B AR / Shares of Banks & Financial Institutions 23,95,12,137 23,95,12,137
3. doi 3R farira wwmsi & sivgw AR fedast / 2359,82,58,840|  531,10,90,288
Bonds & Debentures of Banks & Financial Institutions
4. i gfoeml & ©is, R, dvgw AR fedwd / 248,80,48275|  247,81,38,842
Stocks, Shares, bonds & Debentures of Industrial Concerns
5. 3edrary fael GTHATE IS/ Short Term Bills Rediscounting Scheme - -
6. 3/ Others 2505,70,59,819 325,00,00,000
39-T17 (&) | Subtotal (A) 5824,20,23,529|  2044,90,09,252
@) aEr™ UREE / B) Business Operations
1. ot aikx foira Gwemsit & AU/ Shares of Banks & Financial Institutions 61,12,61,440 60,92,61,440
2. d vd o S & divgw SR fedesi / 26,77,312 26,77,312
Bonds & Debentures of Banks & Financial Institutions
3. i gfrsmi & ®ie, IR, dvgw 3R e 369,79,19,478|  502,26,43,504
Stocks, Shares, bonds & Debentures of Industrial Concerns
4. VEIS® GIGAT A a9 / Investment in Subsidiaries 751,04,98,740 1,09,98,740
5. 3/ Others 429,42,47,362 320,12,59,787
39T (@) / Subtotal (B) 1611,66,04,332|  884,68,40,783
N (@+@) | Total (A+B) 7435,86,27,861|  2929,58,50,035
9! / SCHEDULE VIII
201 Bd 3 / Loans & Advances [UT@9 & &1 / Net of Provisions]
o) frafefRaa @ gafds/ A) Refinance to
- &% vd foaita ¥l / Banks and Financial Institutions 46543,90,87,880 | 38098,83,05,725
- 31eq férey R / Micro Finance Institutions 2013,2542,707|  1602,98,74,150
- 1= §feem feriar ufera / NBEC 5677,54,89,100|  4054,29,66,100
- Tt @t g5 / Bills Rediscounted = =
- 3 (e &) / Others ( Resource Support) = -
39-T (&) / Subtotal (A) 54234,71,19,687 | 43756,11,45,975
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®
anfeal | ASSETS 317, 2016 | 31 9w, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015
W) Ucd& WY1/ B) Direct Loans
- 707 Ud 3113 / Loans and Advances 9884,06,90,456 |  9501,86,05,887
- 9T Ta=T A1 / Receivable Finance Scheme 1512,59,23,439 |  2082,89,98,468
- g=Te e fSe / Bills Discounted 72,42,283 1,71,87,870
39-417 (W) / Subtotal (B) 11397,38,56,178 | 11586,47,92,225
a1 (@+%) [ Total (A+B) 65632,09,75,865 | 55342,59,38,200
FRIEt / SCHEDULE IX
e anfRei / Fixed Assets
[FIFIETS HeI@X / Net of Depreciation]
1. 9RER/ Premises 208,64,41,066|  204,62,60,684
2. 34/ Others 1,71,17,488 1,47,41,236
AN/ Total 210,35,58,554|  206,10,01,920
3F4E / SCHEDULE X
=T AT / Other Assets:
3ufIa 15T / Accrued Interest 948,51,65,690|  674,53,99,425
FBM X (9 & 91) / 237,90,50,566|  193,41,63,275
Advance Tax (Net of provision)
314 / Others 418/49,97,978|  156,05,16,130
o T A a6 seg @ & 78 s man &/ 410,72,51,728|  324,21,56,263
Expenditure to the extent not written off
TN/ Total 2015,64,65,962|  1348,22,35,093
S[Et / SCHEDULE XI
MBS 2T / CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
i) dPWY A, TFE For 6 g T8 245,79,68,602|  212,99,95,882
Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts
i) TRIEAT / ArE-UAT & BeRasy 12847,53,531|  134,78,28,441

On account of Guarantees / Letters of Credit
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®)
sl | ASSETS 317, 2016 | 31w, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015

iii) TR HIGET3T & BeRaeT 2145,38,16,573 26,40,40,369
On account of Forward Contracts

iv) BRI Hfaaganil & Gaeaey o _
On account of Underwriting Commitments

v) e g & g SRt Bt w 7 el 18wt & wevawa - =
On account of uncalled monies on partly paid shares, debentures

vi) 3 T2, Tors fore do ot amahae aaar @ 7891,11,59,663|  7266,58,15,219
Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable (derivative contracts etc.)

1T/ Total 10410,76,98,369 |  7640,76,79,911
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®
Y31 Bd A€ / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 317, 2016 | 319w, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015
FTYR | SCHEDULE XI1
&I151 3K 1 / Interest and Discount
1. o, s 3R fae w @t vd wger/ 5128,83,28,400(  5157,85,57,270
Interest and Discount on Loans, Advances and Bills
2. TRw/ deaftRewam/ 412,99,11,651|  339,20,04,895
Income on Investments / Bank balances
N | Total 5541,82,40,051| 5497,05,62,165
I / SCHEDULE XIII
3 31 [ Other Income:
1. QT 3R BRa Yew / Upfront and Processing Fees 32,88,79,724 31,29,45,422
2. e 3R G@Telt / Commission and Brokerage 2,32,35,996 2,48,91,574
3. st & fasht ¥ @1 / Profit on sale of Investments 127,72,09428|  159,19,75,700
4, EES G / FEant SR | amwier, e & sRkA 75T s 3,74,97,750 3,74,97,750
Income earned by way of dividends etc. from Subsidiaries / Associates
5. Tieer auf & qRie & Jmae / = =
Provision of Earlier Years written Back
6. 3 (GH : femoft |. 18) / Others (Refer note no.18) 76,10,16,346 47,67,53,755
a | Total 242,78,39,244 244,40,64,201
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&Y | EXPENDITURE 319, 2016 | 31 e, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015

3 / SCHEDULE X1V

9 & / Operating Expenses:

Al & fore fe e I FR yrae / Payments to and provisions for employees| 2.81,14,72,022 3,21,64,08,021
fesvrar, @ 3R f¥stel / Rent, Taxes and Lighting 20,30,00,481 19,40,75,820
EUT BF OG- / Printing & Stationery 1,03,73,383 80,76,678
fasTae 3R IR / Advertisement and Publicity 4,20,17,486 3,51,34,259
do o duRy & Teag™ [aR@NeR / Depreciation / Amortisation on Bank's Property 14,03,49,020 13,55,74,500
el & B, Y T =G / Directors’ fees allowances and expenses 78,31,739 52,15,034
AEIRIED! D BIF / Auditor’s Fees 82,81,009 59,65,360
faftr g9 / Law Charges 1,70,66,086 1,68,29,194
EIC @R'q'\", [RUILH 3111 / Postage, Courier, Telephones etc. 29,65,358 30,93,964
R 3R xEEE / Repairs and maintenance 9,54,25,280 9,21,18,469
T / Insurance 50,56,312 47,74,952
HSNEITATRS @ 31¥&H /Contribution to CGTMSE 17,74,75,000 18,74,75,000
3= &9 / Other Expenditure 68,77,93,017 59,04,06,757
TN/ Total 4,20,91,06193|  4,49,51,48,008
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I XV
HETAYUl ARATP el
TR &1 & IR

foxirg faa=or weft Aeagef giedl & wRd
g I foom d@ sftfw, 1989 @
oot #Fersl, wRAg W AR
HRIE GRT o1, TR ol JFa 3R st
Fam ¥ yafed gghkml & U A TaR
for €| e 9 e feeifEa T &,
i faaxor dfeefve omm vefa & siarfa
3T AR R IR foe e €| 59 7o 5
=g feafaa 7 &, §& R ang &
aEr-ifadl fUee af yamr & 15 ifaal &
HIE |

DA BT I

M AR R e awies gl @
Freuar # faita faazor doR &= & foe
yeee § FufEa & @ 5 a8 0 amwe
AR IgaE &R, 5t faiiar faaxor & akia
7 anfraf 3R dgash & Rad &
f¥El, FAHHAD STaBl & Yded R
Raré ot sty § Rod & ® 3w IR
g B AR B gHITad IR & | aRAfaD
uRome 3% FgEEl @ fim & o &€
o FgAEl 4 st e & faaiRor
TEYa dEr-AES @ U B e
Tepar e 21

SCHEDULE XV - SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been
prepared to comply in all material respects
with the Small Industries Development
Bank of India Act, 1989 and regulations
thereof, prudential norms prescribed by
Reserve Bank of India, applicable
Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and practices prevailing in the Banking
Industry. The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost
convention on an accrual basis, unless
otherwise  stated.  Except otherwise
mentioned, the accounting policies that are
applied by the Bank, are consistent with
those used in the previous year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity ~with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires the
management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the
date of the financial statements and the
reported income and expenses for the
reporting period. Actual results could differ
from these estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognized in
accordance with the requirements of the
respective accounting standard.
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2. era FafRor

1)
I,

Vi.

Vii.

QUSTH® 15T Hied sd1sT 3 @ 3999
aR ) feaw § o man @, R
FoId MGl & AWl $ |l 39
aRent & are fewa ¥ forar mar 21

o 3R gy o d I, God w9 A
i wRarg Red d9 » feenfedei
& FIUR JEUHE 77 §6 B ARS
ST T 3| R o 1 R B |
gIaa 3 3 JeaEl ¥ uge gty
TS 8l

oot & /g E aur Sy
T aIfoTfods Al & HEg § g §eer
e @ foadl & dur $ IgER
<fqenfira ax fan war 21

e (35e) Ikadl & weg o
qonESdl U9R, dta1 GEn/geaw  ®or
FErdl R Ja-u9R 3R Aacer 3T B
Uy 3R R e # foran man 21
¥ eafika IRl W) @Hie & agen &
YT 3T T T &

Jom Yo it & 3ma & el TR
R feame & forar man 21

Fotes iRl ot axgent @ fFe=fafaa
o1 3 Tafafae fooar mar &

(@) FFsie NG g4 & aRE ad
Fifaea st

(@) Terer
(M) @ 99K

2.
A)

REVENUE RECOGNITION
INCOME
i. Interest income including penal

iii.

iv.

Vi.

Vii.

interest is accounted for on accrual
basis, except in the case of non-
performing assets where it is
recognized upon realization.

Income in the Profit and Loss Account
is shown gross i.e. before provisions as

per RBI guidelines and other
provisions as per Bank’s internal
policy.

Discount received in respect of bills
discounted / rediscounted and on
discounted instruments is recognised
over the period of usance of the
instruments.

Commitment charges, service charges
on seed capital / soft loan assistance
and royalty income are accounted for
on accrual basis in respect of standard
(performing) assets.

Dividend on shares held in industrial
concerns and financial institutions is
recognized as income when realized.

Income from Venture Capital funds are
accounted on realization basis.

Recovery in mnon-performing assets
(NPA) is to be appropriated in the
following order :

(@) overdue interest upto the date of
NPA,

(b) principal,
(c) cost & charges,
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(&) =arst ed
(%) cUSIS TS

viil. ol ud A & fad w® yeE
TGS ¥ g aWe & WRdAa
Red d¢ & yafea feenfadelt &
FgaR fewme § foram mn &)

ix. faer & fadr & omw ar st o
f Ao & e o fai & @ o
giv & awae o § @ S T
2| quft ‘uRusear 7@ ek Sof
& e & ot ) o9 & 7§,
TAged T @ Y RfEa @ §
faferifoa ax fear war 21

oY

i. T =g @ Bisax 9w Wl 2™
g IR R few A foe e &
foore @@ @ o IR W) feaw &
Toram man &1

i. I feu e §vel ik afvfsus oA
R §¢¢ @ §ivel 3R afvifsas oAt &t
Hiae & 3ER uRenfta ax fear mn
2| §fvs SR o+ WaEl Tl B §rvet
@ HgR & FER uRenfad &x fear
T &l

e

() wrda Rd §o & dieer feenftee
% IFOR, Wyul fow wfawm @
TN @UR 'g oiRa o At A
fawfoa ax fear mr &1 et &
qeaied WRaa Rad d6 & feenfeei
& FFER foar ™ 8 gAS Ao
et o g FefaRea w0 § offga
oo mar &:

B)

(d) interest and

(e) penal interest.

. Gain/loss on sale of loans and

advances through direct assignment is
recognized in line with the extant RBI
guidelines.

Profit or loss on sale of investment:
Profit or loss on sale of investments in
any category is taken to profit and loss
account. However, in case of profit on
sale of investments under “Held to
Maturity” category an equivalent
amount is appropriated to Capital
Reserves.

EXPENDITURE

ii.

All expenditure are accounted for on
accrual basis except Development
Expenditure which is accounted for on
cash basis.

Discount on Bonds and Commercial
papers issued are amortized over the
tenure of Bonds and Commercial
Paper. The expenses relating to issue of
Bonds are amortized over the tenure of
the Bonds.

INVESTMENTS
(i) In terms of extant guidelines of the

Reserve Bank of India, the entire
investment portfolio is categorized as
“Held to Maturity”, “Available for
Sale” and “Held for Trading”.
Investments are valued in accordance
with RBI guidelines. The investments
under each category are further
classified as:
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@)

148

®) ORI g,

@) 3 Frgtea sfergferr,

M 9RR,

g) fSdwx qur dvs

§) WEUS XYL/ YA 3R

) I (Ivfss uF, =gIe @S
gfvie, ST yHOE 37Te)

yRugaar a6 aia

uRudaar 96 §¢ I@ B RIT A
ot F sicefa @ mar 21 o et
@ IS NG X Ggitar T &, &9
g 3ifea gea ¥ aftre 7 &1 8=
W) Niftaw & oRugaar & 99 3@ty
¥ uRenfa ax fear mar 81 39 3o
& ol FEaD Hul-al/agTh JUHAl
¥ fael & g § & GRRh @
BIgaR) g TS a9 & Fag H FerT-
e rae fosar war 2

R 8q aia

Fearaft Yea/ans-a uRads @ @
oI gP 90 fet § g 9T SRR |
fore e frael @t ‘@R &g ke o
¥ @1 T 81 59 o & A & ey
w0 8 Reu-sgeR Heaied foar
T & AR faw geogfarreage o
FeTT-31erT Repul & FE-ged W AT
IRae aRd ge aTH-aI o # feame
¥ ferar mar 21

(@)

(b)

a) Government Securities,

b) Other approved securities,

c) Shares,

d) Debentures & Bonds,

e) Subsidiaries/ joint ventures and

f) Others (Commercial  Paper,
Mutual Fund Units, Certificate of
Deposits etc.)

Held to Maturity

Investments  acquired with the
intention to hold till maturity are
categorized under Held to Maturity.
Such investments are carried at
acquisition cost unless it is more than
the face value, in which case the
premium is amortized over the period
remaining to maturity. Diminution,
other than temporary, in the value of
investments under this category is
provided for each  investment
individually.

Held for Trading

Investments acquired for resale within
90 days with the intention to take
advantage of the short-term price/
interest ~ rate =~ movements  are
categorized under Held for Trading.
The investments in this category are
revalued  scrip-wise and  net
appreciation /depreciation is
recognized in the profit & loss account,
with corresponding change in the book
value of the individual scrips.
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ot 29 uere

I & APEl & ifa T sFae
el @ fodht &g Suaer Ao #F <@
T | 39 SO & 3t Se-aren
et & gdeaion fear mar & 3k
3 aiaxor § ¥ Tt & Y siorfa ge
frae qrag @ o 3k afy o
Tewme & forar mar &1 foet o afiacor
& it fae geogfa & ToReES
o fea mar &1 srenr-sren fepat & 8-
ed W YTedied & a1 uRade T8l
fesar mar 2|

gt 4 =g 3k foit & ofafe
Troem R’ & aeE aRd g @ T
gl

s fede”famERR A o wgt &
M TE €, 3 O 3R A ) ang
A faaaget aFeEt & e E)

ot & o wika 3itta e uesfa
¥ FefRa & 78 21

Fmeufed & THa 3T o 78 SEer,
Y e @ AW o d awitar
T gl

FO-HAST # YT Wisa aft-anst
@ STl T/ HET AT & R N
emTal/fahr-x1f3T ¥ 31enT 3T 4T 2|

do gt de & siafa sikenfie
sfrer # T ¥ R e & w5y
% qof graen= fosar mam &1

(c)

iii

iv

vi

vii

Available for Sale

Investments which do not fall within
the above two categories are
categorized under Available for Sale.
The individual
category is

depreciation under any of the
classification ~mentioned

scrip under this
revalued and net

above is
recognized in the profit & loss account.
Net appreciation under any
classification is ignored. The book
value of individual scrip
changed after the revaluation.

is not

Recording  purchase and  sale
transactions in Investments is done
following ‘Settlement Date’ accounting.

The debentures / bonds / shares
deemed to be in the nature of
advance, are subject to the wusual
prudential norms applicable to loans
& advances.

Cost of investments is determined on
the weighted average cost method.

Brokerage, commission, etc. paid at the
time of acquisition/ sale are recognized
in the profit & loss account.

Broken period interest paid / received
on debt investment is treated as
interest expenses / income and is
excluded from cost / sale consideration.

In respect of unquoted investments in
industrial concerns under Seed Capital
Scheme, full provision has been made.
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faceh Hu1 HomeER
oo gar Hoaert @ aar-sfedl § ddfta
o=l g # <& fom monm &1 faceh qm
YHGER @ AEid ARG §a) oTEIoR
TR gRT SR argie A9e (Taes)-11 &
FFER fopar ma &1

1. foeht g sl sk Soamsi @
fadeht o1 Siet ewifeeem site $fsan
(YPeT8) BRI gorm-uA @ arE # gl
Ftgfaa sfw fodsht goax &
ufRaffa fesar mar 21

2. Toceh 9w o v g WAl B arEAla®
fehiradie & wreaw ¥ Afve Rl
w® uRafda fear s & 3k =
degaR et @ # feaw F forn
T B

3. fReh gw sifEw & ydem &g feh
el HUT-IaAT R [T AR B
YR WHR & R & @ T wH
ey @ & vt sk Rerd foan
e &

4. YUH! HUGERI & HEY A db ARAT
Rerd ¥ & feen-Frdeit & FwR @@
(&) PrETEH &7 SIEROT ARl & |

|

§o o faeh ger Agamst & suE & foe
T # e e AHERI 19 k-G
R fafma # ZaeR aRar 81 9Rda
Red §o & Renfogor sum & @
¥ foe T 3P oA FHEERT B I
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4.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are recorded
in the books of account in respective
foreign  currencies.  Accounting  for
transactions involving foreign exchange is
done in accordance with Accounting
Standard (AS)-11 issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as per
following provisions;

1. Foreign currency Assets and Liabilities
are translated at the closing exchange
rates notified by Foreign Exchange
Dealers’ Association of India (‘FEDAI’)
as at the Balance sheet date.

2. Foreign currency Income and
Expenditure items are translated at
monthly intervals through actual sale/
purchase and recognized in the profit
and loss account accordingly.

3. The revaluation difference on foreign
currency LoC is adjusted and recorded
in a special account opened and
maintained, in consultation with GOI
for managing exchange risk.

4. The Bank follows hedge accounting in
respect of foreign exchange contracts
and derivative transactions as per RBI
guidelines.

DERIVATIVES

The Bank presently deals in currency
derivatives viz.,, Cross Currency Interest
Rate swaps for hedging its foreign currency
liabilities. Based on RBI guidelines, the
above derivatives undertaken for hedging
purposes are accounted on an accrual basis.
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IR R oo § forr s &1 sREtaa
oo AT W FEAl FHGER IS W
R TS B ger-ud d aRE W
Rearé fomam man 21

o1 3R W

1. snial, s@afq o1 qon 3= wEEdn

dfaumll & wRdg Red 96 & faem-

35id 3R I & W9 H

qili [T AT &1 3T Ml &

fore wRddra Rad do & feen-fdeit &
IR yrae foar mar &

2. gowun ¥ fefea afim, aweie
Ffal & foe foe @ gou=t &
"X & |

3. WH® AGdl & deg § W JIae=
TRag Rad 95 & Renfds &
IR fooe e E|

4. T@ YU 9RO Red 6 & e
Frdergar e 3k 3w # ame e €

S

() &= e =g #§ gdam &= 3R
Ffig &, aF wfye &1 ade9e
G-I D AT G-I AT,
1961 & ATAR IA-GR HGDIRAT BN
T @ FAHae GHfad T B R
W B TR B

(i) 3mefiE FEax, 9§ & FR-ANg AT
dqT EPT FT & W godE aY &b
IR 3R el & gHATaRTE
® JOEa & HE @ @i 2
IR @ @ TOFT gEaad @
IR a6 JTa=aq 3Uar 99T w9 §
Fttfafa eR-eAl 3R R B & B
TR R & T &

Contingent Liabilities on account of
derivative contracts at contracted rupee
amount are reported on the Balance Sheet
date.

LOANS AND ADVANCES

1. Assets representing loan and other
assistance portfolios are classified as
performing and non-performing based
on the RBI guidelines. Provision for
non-performing assets is made in
accordance with the RBI guidelines.

2. Advances stated in the Balance Sheet
are net of provisions made for non-
performing advances, and restructured
assets.

3. General provision on Standard Assets
is made as per RBI guidelines.

4, Floating provision is made and utilized
as per RBI guidelines.

TAXATION

(i) Tax expense comprises both current tax
and deferred taxes. Current income tax
is measured at the amount expected to
be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with Income Tax Act,1961.

(i) Deferred income taxes reflects the
impact of the current year timing
differences between taxable income
and accounting income for the year
and reversal of timing differences of
earlier years. Deferred tax is measured
based on the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.
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a6 Ticaied AR freRor fear mar
g, f5 9w 7% a7 Wi fawaw &
5 wfesn & wfw sx-amg s 8,
o gfer 2= smeafig o) el &
agelt & Haxil &

gfersgeiiasor

do ®fec WEn-gd gen, g IR Aemw
il ¥ Ry yae ¥R gRT AR -
FIAOTH $ FRE TR & T IPR S
gfayiiaRer Yagaer e & w0 § anliga
fooe oma & 3k Fawr & Reg & IR ®
3@ FA ATARYT AR &g aRa/fasa &g
et & w9 F fomar e 21

¥ feusha NS wwRee & saia g,
7Y T4 HegW Il & SviteiRg k-
THE @edl 7 B A FHgeeE HaERl
o ¥ g1 ‘I & wu F awifea fFa
T 81

¢ WY AT R ®OT ' HA B
ot axar 81 Iftrer et § do
HIaER! & Jiaid T T HOT wd O B
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v FH W @Y S & EFER A 2
Ffeal ® e & T & Re &
YR R A TG & Fad qa T
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(iii) Deferred tax assets are recognized only
to the extent that there is reasonable
certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be
realised. Unrecognized deferred assets
of earlier years are re-assessed and
recognized to the extent that it has
become reasonably certain that future
taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets
can be realised.

SECURITISATION

The Bank purchases credit rated Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Asset pools
from Banks / Non Banking Finance
Companies by way of pass- through
certificates issued by the Special Purpose
Vehicle. Such securitisation transactions are
classified as Investments under Held for
Trading / Available for Sale category
depending upon the investment objective.

The Bank purchases credit rated pool of
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
assets under bilateral direct assignment.
Such direct assignment transactions are
accounted for as ‘advances’ by the Bank.

The Bank enters into sale of Loans &
Advances through direct assignment. In
most of the cases, the Bank continues to
service the Loans & Advances sold under
these transactions and is entitled to the
Residual interest on the Loans & Advances
sold. Assets sold under direct assignment
are derecognized in the books of the Bank
based on the principle of surrender of
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His
e
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o g%‘j
EREL
153,

(i) egdr <oar aen Yo dgar Hf¥Ta o
afia € 3R 3= Adaice SHaR!

10.

Al

control over the assets. The Bank also
provides credit enhancement in the form of
letter of commitment.

The residual income on the Loans &
Advances sold is being recognised over the
life of the underlying Loans & Advances.

SALE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS TO
ASSET RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANIES (ARCs)

(i) The sale of NPAs is on cash basis or
investment in Security Receipt (SR)
basis. In case of sale on SR basis, the
sale consideration or part thereof is
treated as investment in the form of
SRs.

(ii) The assets if sold at a price below the
Net Book Value (NBV) (i.e. book value
less provisions held), the shortfall is
debited to the Profit & Loss A/c. In
case the sale value is higher than NBY,
the excess provision held can be
reversed to profit and loss account in
the year the amounts are received.
Reversal of excess provision is limited
to the extent to which cash received
exceeds the NBV of the asset.

PROVISIONING FOR STAFF BENEFITS

Post retirement benefits

(i) Provident Fund is a defined
contribution scheme administered by
the Bank and the contributions are
charged to the Profit & Loss Account.

(ii) Gratuity liability and Pension liability
are defined benefit obligations and
other long term employee benefits like
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Jartgia gear fafecn @™, geer
T Roma anfe & yeam w@da

SHifed Yedidd & AER R o
U7 & aRE R far sar &, S eew
15 (geenfa 2005)- HHTRI @9 &

FIER FHIG §PE ST Ugfd W
3enfRe e &l

(iy =18 dem e FRTa siveE aEr
disT &1 98 3 sHaial | @ g,
3 1 fesex 2011 a1 39S 91 § @ Jar
¥ 3me & §6 yd-HeaiRd ) w Ffvaa
39EH axar & 3R d% & afia 75
THfaa 3ieem o Giftd 81 g8 sivem

compensated absences, post retirement
medical benefits, leave fare concession
etc. are provided based on the
independent actuarial valuation as at
the Balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method as per AS
15 (Revised 2005) - Employee Benefits.

(ili) New Pension Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme and is applicable
to employees who have joined bank on
or after Dec 1, 2011. Bank pays fixed
contribution at pre determined rate
and the obligation of the Bank is
limited to such fixed contribution. The

arg-afe @ 3 9ika 8ar g1 contribution is charged to Profit & Loss
, . Account.
(iv) sSrifes /Rl doe av-ale o
¥ 2f fov o & 3k srafie 98 fae (iv) Actuarial gains/losses are immediately
EIT#'ETI taken to the profit and loss account

(v) wiftss Jar-frhn dom & siafa fee
e e & o 5 af dar @, =0
af & et o & 3 ywiRa fesar
ST &

Q) Jar-oee (Feafaft) e

and are not deferred.

(v) Payments made under the Voluntary
Retirement Scheme are charged to the
Profit & Loss account in the year of
expenses incurred.

Bl Benefits (Short — term) while in service
Jearater @ | 39 agar @ R ik Liability on account of Short term benefits
FETIPKT IR W arar & 3tk 39 Jar 3t are determined on an undiscounted basis
¥ 9eg ¥ aar 2, 5 R R 0 and recognised over the period of service,
FTH B EPSR g1 21 which entitles the employees to such
benefits.
1L 3R g 11. FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
@) i.!!“ ¥t sf¥reor B am # | a) Fixed Assets are stated at cost of
¥iferd IR IR afa @ &) @ acquisition less accumulated
HeIaR &9l % &l depreciation and impairment losses, if
any.
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12,

b) Depreciation for the full year,
irrespective of date of capitalization, is
provided on :

(i) Furniture and fixture : For assets
owned by Bank @ 100 percent

(ii) Computer and Computer Software
@ 100 percent

(iii) Building @ 5 percent on WDV
basis

(iv) Electrical Installations: For assets
owned by Bank @ 50 percent on
WDV basis.

(v) Motor Car - Straight Line Method
@ 50 percent.
c¢) Depreciation on additions is provided
for full year and no depreciation is
provided in the year of sale/disposal.

d) Leasehold land is amortised over the
period of lease.

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT
ASSETS.

In accordance with AS-29 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, the Bank recognizes provisions
involving substantial degree of estimation
in measurement when it has a present
obligation as a result of past event, it is
probable that there will be an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
Contingent Assets are neither recognized
nor disclosed in the financial statements.
Contingent liabilities are not provided for
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and are disclosed in the balance sheet and
details given by way of Schedule to the
Balance Sheet. Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

13. GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES

14,

15.

16.

Grants and subsidies from the Government
and other agencies are accounted as per the
terms and conditions of the agreement.

OPERATING LEASE

Lease rentals are recognized as an expense/
income in the Profit and Loss Account as
they become due for payments.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The carrying amounts of assets are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date, if
there is any indication of impairment based
on internal/external factors, to recognize,

a) the provision for impairment loss, if
any required; or

b) the reversal, if any, required for
impairment loss recognized in the
previous periods.

Impairment loss is recognized when the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds
recoverable amount.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of cash flow statement include cash in
hand, balances with RBI, balances with
other banks and investment in Mutual fund
with an original maturity of three months
or less.
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31 97, 2016
March 31, 2016

31 9T, 2015

March 31, 2015

e / SCHEDULE XVI -
& 3t fewfdrai / NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1

el IV Jenfadl 3 siata divs @ e Prfeaa
e -

'‘Bonds and Debentures' under Borrowings in schedule IV
includes the following :

@) wfirgferf&d 978 / a) Unsecured Bonds

13077,60,00,000

10443,60,00,000

g V # 3Fa dgasit 3R yeasl & sioefa I A
Frafafaa e & -

'Others' under Other Liabilities and Provisions in schedule V
include the following :

@) fesdt srergarweraar it/ a) SIDBI Disability Assistance Fund

56,000

2,54,07,762

@) Tear wareg Ge™ar AsET
b) SIDBI Medical Assistance Scheme

19,87,99,999

19,61,99,634

FgEt X # 3 snf¥edl & siaia ‘=4, FET 9% sge Wit
@ st e # Frfoea wie & -

‘Expenditure to the extent not written off' under Other Assets
in schedule X includes the following:

B) FRAIAE TIAR! (TASI3T) B HRd TROR P §108) J
Fiavor ) Nt

a) Premium on transfer of RBI NIC(LTO) to Gol Bonds

25,38,80,166

45,23,25,904

@) 3 v ¥ s fosar wan s - s A

b) Discount paid in Advance Certificate of Deposit

218,76,87,171

M) 3w w3 s wan e - aftsa v

c) Discount paid in Advance - Commercial Paper

163,84,72,553

275,30,66,324

) iy §ivs IRl &7 W
d) Expenditure on Issuance of Unsecured Bonds

2,72,11,839

3,67,64,035

#0151 a fafa UK / Interest and Financial Charges

®) IRAT O TS / a) Interest on Borrowings

1919,20,07,158

1885,99,73 478

%) ST U &15T / b) Interest on Deposits

1017,89,40,323

974,69,49,906

) faxia 99R / ¢) Financial Charges

564,98,36,601

513,03,10,755

N1/ Total

3502,07,84,082

3373,72,34,139

SR o @ W Frf R ST 6 e S W
) I <R (s 3 Y Brea)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
Capital Account not provided for (net of advance paid)

2,61,30,118

1,62,64,651

157




- aiitfe yferdas 2015-16

AR o7y I faera da
SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA

31 ATe, 2016 & G- B! FYFEAT / Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

6

ofReR # oReR sifinreer @ wefta sfim af¥mr 212,34,009 (Roer o - 29,21,17,009) e witsaredsr dothme o &
wafera 286,61,549 (freer af - 283,76,726) Tnfdrer &1

Premises include advances towards acquisition of Premises ¥12,34,099 (Previous Year - ¥9,21,17,099) and Capital Work
in Progress ¥86,61,549 (Previous Year - ¥83,76,726).

U S PIFRIA okl (F5a) (T uger s § 315 Se-9Fa PIFTRIH -ASTFMSH & 79 & T
ST &) ¥ o7 e V & Faifd ( 31 A 2016 db 14.63 faftram o 39) wma 30 feferae smom 39 & faeeh
g1 FUR & G F HRa WROR b I Wewd 94l &b IR fafma = sar-aga fft ($amewes) gioma & 78 &
vd 3% faeeh qw 3aR e sRfEf it & enfie foson mor 81 faceh g  sar-ge@ & FRT gaes @ # M
%399,25,28,223 & 3iere (frwet o - ¥328,82,93,718) D ARG TRGR B Jiwla & oy fafma & sar-ugma faftr &
wraf S fosar man & | ot wivsy & s/l gam, o fft @ o wRa RoR & FRemeR wemss fear smem | af

Toftr % sy suaia tEar €, O 9@ 3T 9Ra WReR A fosar smem |

In respect of foreign currency borrowings of JPY 30 billion (JPY 14.63 billion as on March 31, 2016) under Line V from
Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) (previously known as Japan Bank of International Cooperation-JBIC),
Exchange Rate Fluctuation Fund (ERFF) has been created as per terms agreed with Government of India (GOI) and
included in Foreign Currency Fluctuation Reserve Fund. The difference on account of exchange fluctuation arising
on principal account amounting to ¥399,25,28,223 (Previous Year - ¥328,82,93,718) has been netted off against ERFF as
permitted by the Government of India. Adjustment to the Fund Account, if necessary, will be made as per directions
of Government of India in future. If the balance in the Fund is insufficient, the claim will be on Government of India.

SIS o7 IV & i R TR W W 348,871,064 (freet af - 392,47,99,946) ot IR @Y gomuA H
S IV - 3Rt # s et wuw gea 7 snit foman man &, aifes avR & siata fusdt & geres gorar
@ Tar BUd § 0T AR 39 FOT & fee @ 0 SHRUGES & A & AT A S B B VT A& DY S 21 59
%01 & fore T $aRewes & 31 A, 2016 @ 9y 3319,50,28,876(frwet af - 7343,87,54,657) &

The borrowing of ¥348,87,11,064 (Previous Year - ¥392,47,99,946) from Govt. of India under the JICA IV loan is carried
forward in the 'schedule IV - Borrowings' to the Balance Sheet at its historic rupee value since SIDBI's liability towards
principal repayment under the agreement, is not expected to exceed the aggregate of rupee borrowings and the balance

in the ERFF maintained for this loan. The balance as on March 31, 2016 in ERFF maintained for this loan is ¥319,50,28,876
(Previous Year - ¥343,87,54,657).

Frpgar Xl 3 & 78 3 - for ad 2015- 16 & "I g § ud 3rafer ot 3m %(49,07,708) [Rreet o - %4,70,78,493)]
enf¥er & e SrgRgEt XIV & 3=a &g Towr af 2016 & uRamerma ot § gd sraftr o @ il 1,80,56,736 [Rser

a§ - ¥72,20,600] et &1

Income in schedule XIII - 'other income' for FY 2015-16 includes Prior Period Income of (%¥49,07,708) [Previous Year
(%4,70,78,493)] and Other expenditure in schedule XIV - 'Operating Expenses' for FY 2016 includes Prior Period
Expenditure of (%1,80,56,736) [Previous Year (372,20,600)].

10

do ¥ fava Fo 2 300 faferas s ot =or-aawen o wida o | 98 Ko AR sRafuey! sefea ok o a8
M R gae & fore 21 gt 65.9 faferam eadiar (100 faferam st arer & qea) o ssdie o feream oft enfirer
B FSEIT FOT-TEwR B AT ARG TROR IUTRSAT & AR IR TR Fsat @ Buar #or &l &, gafy axK o
it & 3y fafema sifem @ ae Rasdt g fosar s siféa 21 59 R gt 9Ra wRaR = Risd o suan
e STRY faa, 3% Rsd) & @l & w8 Rerfar qof &g eodtam Saar & w9 # oot fovar man, arfes af & 3ia & sriwst
# qHEI FaR UG B9 F FaRid & | TegHR 3t FO-awdT & Jaia 31 7 2016 6 88.20 hferas sARat
BTeTY (X584.45 aRIS & avTER) [T ¥ 82.98 fiferam 3RE S1eR (3518.77 a5 & SXTEY)] & HATER0T P URA TBR
&y Twa 2gar & 9 A &t fovar mar & e fafra SiRem o aara fasd gy faeeh wer ammr axr & sifke
ST &1 39 I IV - ‘aRa & IuiRat & Fata wfed o mr g
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The Bank has contracted a line of credit for USD 300 million from World Bank for scaling up Sustainable and Responsible
Micro Finance Project including IDA portion aggregating SDR 65.9 million (equivalent of USD 100 million). Under IDA
line, Govt. of India is the borrower and rupee funds are lent to SIDBI by GOI though the exchange risk on the underlying
is required to be borne by SIDBI as per the terms of the agreement. Thus, though GOI released rupee funds to SIDBI
the same was recorded as SDR liability in the books of SIDBI to depict correct position so that revaluation difference
gets suitably reflected in the year end figures. Accordingly the drawal effected under the above line aggregating USD
88.20 million (equivalent to ¥584.45 cr.) as on March 31, 2016 [Previous Year USD 82.98 million (equivalent to ¥518.77
cr.)] from GOl is recorded as SDR liability and the underlying has been hedged by way of Foreign Exchange Forward
Contract. The same has been grouped under schedule IV - 'Borrowings in India'.

11 | ¥Ra WK - Rrsdt # 2300 axig ot wg it arelt “$fear sgmrwrarw sfaadt At gfom & &1 sa o @
I I Te T aTel! Bl AISMIBR- dui=dl W &4 disd dea ge, feax - Il aar feas - 1l & 3 ik dfdem
forira Sufeat T AsmreE= SRl g iRk 36 g Sefval g weerera= o3t & $frad Termar
3rerar Tt 3= 0 3 Ui e ol ge fasan stem, forma dea TRYa 3= aan <o & srifad iR sreasifae st
# uRenremi & drafaft feasm aftva s @1 g it o aRaemsd e Risdt g s smar &, o gg Resdt o
TS Wi +1eb Zheed U1 &ra & Wy &1, 3w 7 fonfw il o the o efyesnfee fovar smar | s, foder o geax
SMETHSLS e I Y, Jo-ua B "FT STAI3A" b Jiaiia auiige fopan Tl & aan e ars/arai/smalaa g
@1 e & | g 319 2016 b TRy o srersiy T187,16,01,094 RS (e af T191,73,32,174 aR1E) &I

Government of India (GOI) has created “India Microfinance Equity Fund” with SIDBI with a corpus of ¥300 crore. The
Fund shall be utilised for extending equity or any other form of capital to Tier - Il and Tier — IIl NBFC MFIs and all Non-
NBFC MFIs, with a focus on smaller socially oriented MFIs with the objective of poverty alleviation and achieving long
term sustainability of operations in unserved and underserved parts of the country." The fund is operated/managed by
SIDBI for which an administrative fee for managing the fund is received by SIDBI. Further, the inflows and outflows are
debited/credited to the fund. Hence, fund balance of IMEF, net of investment is grouped under "Other Liabilities" in the

Balance Sheet and all gains/losses/income/expenditure are the part of the fund. The balance in the fund is ¥187,16,01,094
as on March 31 2016 (Previous year ¥191,73,32,174).

12 | pHEHEEs HATed, RA oK+ Tt @ it & fore 260 axie & snden i & sndes fasa o oo & e
e Rt o e & | 3% Foiftr o 3w omdor sreferaven 3§ @iy smenfRa werd-am/ == st & 3em gait Forftrat
Trarer aar sa=afvan, safiar, faftmior ed dar & # -0 deg 9= 3 fedsr & sgrar & 7 @Ra w0 & wera
3ueTe o) & fere | g A Frawr fsdt g =i 2Rvaa & fosd e § ara: 59 qormiea 3 s <aansit & wat
¥ wyfea foar mar 2

ASPIRE Fund is a ¥60 Crore Fund of Funds, allocated by Ministry of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises, Government
of India, to be managed by SIDBL The Fund would be utilized to make investment in Venture Capital Funds targeting
Start Ups/ early stage enterprises promoting Innovation, Entrepreneurship, Forward Backward linkage with multiple
value chain of manufacturing and service delivery, Accelerator support, etc. in the Agro based Industry verticals to

galvanize the rural economy. As these investments are held by SIDBI in fiduciary capacity it is grouped under “Other
Liabilities” in the Balance Sheet.

13 | forira Jare fawm, fom damea, 9RT TR ¥ ©E a0 & $fdad) 3 gerar & foe ittt & iy dsmr s i
2| drar & 3iafer 210,000 X5 B Faftral & it s s=enfaa &, o yaem fisdt @t o 1 WReR 3 3%
yaTtaa S i 2500 aRrs Fasdt o e &) gfes & frrarer fvsdt g =t 2fae 3 o e & sra: 59 gomoa
¥ a=a et & et ¥ wgfEa far man

The Department of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance, Government of India has formulated a Scheme for Fund of
Funds for Startups (FFS) with the principal objective of enhancing the equity availability to Startups. Under the Scheme,
an amount of ¥10,000 Crore has been proposed as FFS to be managed by SIDBI. The Government has since released an

amount of ¥500 Crore out of the corpus of FFS to SIDBI. As these investments are held by SIDBI in fiduciary capacity it
is grouped under “Other Liabilities” in the Balance Sheet.

159




- aiitfe yferdas 2015-16

AR o7y I faera da
SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA

31 ATe, 2016 & G- B! FYFeAT / Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

14

HRA FRBR & 23 [ 2015 B TF & FFAR 14 FORK 2015 D HRA TR & IR | & 750 5 & aisl Y T202.80
gfer IR & 98 Yo W uRafia ax, 3% & 36,982,250 $faact I @ AR & ua F uRafdia fosar mam | aegeR
&% o e SR YT Teax 2486,98,22,500 B TR | it Hew 3R S8 gew & 3R @ 3713,01,77,500 R MfEaw
(eRfET) @w & sar fesan wan|

In terms of Gol letter dated June 23, 2015, the Gol Tier-I Bonds aggregating Y750 crore were converted into equity at
book value of ¥202.80 per share by allotting 36,982,250 equity shares of the Bank to the Govt. of India on August 14,

2015. Accordingly, the paid —up share capital of the Bank has increased to ¥486,98,22,500 crore.The difference between
the Face Value and book value aggregating to ¥713,01,77,500 has been credited to Share Premium (Reserve) Account.

15

R WRaR 7 Foedl & 3faad! ot # 2100 axis AiaaRa | 9Ra WRaR & 10 75 2016 & 97 gRT WWe fean
T o TSR & uay # IR FARd A B Jfehar g ax T100 B3 H B IR Y1t A FaRkd dR. AR TR B

IR B TR B Y 7fean & cifea 8 e o ¥ I WY e dgani’ & dea gy wi &

GOI has disbursed Y100 crore towards equity capital of SIDBI. GOI vide its letter dated May 10, 2016 has advised to
initiate the process for issue of shares to GOI and transfer ¥100 crore to MUDRA Ltd towards its share capital. Pending
issuance of shares to GOI, amount has been shown under "Other Liabilities" in the Balance Sheet.

16

& T T642,82,00,000(FEY Hew T640,75,02,234) [t af Z905,00,00,000 (F&Y Hewr 7898,57,35,777] bt WIS WRAIR bt
yfergferal 3R $ort et o wuredfoxr 3o vd 0T areza (Hdteesh) &g Feraika suiReE 3 §iar fa. & o™
fira @ | a &, 53 rdSiaang & & wrr srieiier {of saaven & st 3o aReresr & foe smssidans
& & urer wrafr s it =@ €

The Bank has pledged Government Securities & Treasury Bills aggregating to face value ¥642,82,00,000 (book value
T640,75,02,234) [Previous Year ¥905,00,00,000 (book value ¥898,57,35,777)] with Clearing Corporation of India Ltd. for
Collataralised Borrowings and Lending Obligations (CBLO). The Bank has placed Fixed Deposits with IDBI Bank to
cover its operations under Working Capital arrangement with IDBI Bank.

17

25 2orife & fed & w0 o do 3 Rl =07 ot & st ameRa fadelt g Fftrlt o s aftrsar
dot % < @ 3tk 3= fet & gfer aRda oo # o7 Sraxgre B gy & &1 37 3uRt & sarfa 31 AT, 2016
@ gara T 3733,18,58,503 (a1 Y 2797,79,89,157) At | 3 Tarel wgn Faidt vy ware fafire ot syawermai &

ORI R 29 1o & e @ 2|
As a part of hedging strategy, the Bank has placed foreign currency deposits with scheduled commercial banks out of

the funds drawn under various lines of credit and have availed overdraft facility in INR against these foreign currency
deposits. Outstanding balances under these overdraft facility aggregated to ¥733,18,58,503 as on March 31, 2016
(Previous Year ¥797,79,89,157). As on March 31, 2016, the interest receivable on these foreign currency deposits matches
with the interest payable on borrowings under various lines of credit.

18

3= I # enthe € - foora af 3 age @ e e AR § oy gu 353,19,24,584 (71 @ 332,80,44,756)

Other income includes recoveries on account of advances written off in earlier years ¥53,19,24,584 (previous year
T32,80,44,756).

19

sfua FfteRt wetel & fawa faera faftre amet dfva 8= & oror fenfea & foe me &1 31 7, 2016 @1 31 wotel
@ feraer geasaa gea 28,28,35,519(7a af - 8,71,95,283) 21

Conveyance deed in respect of certain Officer's Flats has not been executed due to pending legal matter, the net W.D.V.
of these flats is ¥8,28,35,519 (Previous year - ¥8,71,95,283 ) as on March 31, 2016.

20

FTSUHES! 3, 18 GRART, 2002 & FOT IRR & AreaH ¥, Fosat @ 16.35 Miferae ewstaR @ fageh qg or fean 21 zon
TR I 91l B TR, FSTHCS! ¥ YO ST § 0T HiAaRoT 60T & 3R sae! govrall THESTR & FHged JUH SR

D ST 21§ 37U oran afedl # TagER oraia (o gl

IFAD had extended a foreign currency loan to SIDBI of SDR 16.35 million, vide loan agreement dated February 18, 2002.
As per the terms of loan agreement, IFAD had disbursed loan in USD and it is to be repaid in USD equivalent to SDR.
The Bank has accounted accordingly in the books of account.
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21 | gdEr) @19 / Employee Benefits

"SHAR! AT’ (TUN 15) (2005 F HeNTHe) W $ICYT 31t TS UHIEeEH 31Tt § 1S3 gIRT SR A%l A & IR
& g1 3 sdaiRal @ & s @ gfaemsit @ e yer & @i fea mr d -

In accordance with the Accounting Standard on "Employee Benefits" (AS 15) (Revised 2005) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the Bank has classified the various benefits provided to the employees as under:

(@) | uRwf¥a 3iea @ / Defined contribution plan

@ | &7 Frrafeiaa il o o e af @ F frefRa fea s -
The Bank has recognized the following amounts in Profit & Loss Account:

féaor | Particulars 31 \rel, 2016 31 \ire, 2015
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

wigsg it & e & 3= 4,37,26,850 4,49,61,077

Employer’s contribution to Provident fund

T4 Y3 dian H R & s 82,59,836 55,70,866

Employer’s contribution to New Pension Scheme

(@) | o B gulRaTa emy ¥em vd Fegeh dromm &, foma yaem gee & siRke fomar s |
(b) | The Bank is having defined benefit Pension Plans and Gratuity Scheme which are managed by the Trust.

TS / Crore
921 / Pension A | Gratuity

fefa| faeim| feflm| facia

af2016 | af2015 | af2016 | af 2015
FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2015

1. | gafg#F / Assumptions
91§ & / Discount Rate 7.76% 7.70% 7.96% 7.95%
ISR STl IR 9fcioet @l X / Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.76% 8.70% 7.96% 8.70%
do Sera’! / Salary Escalation 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Y18 &3 / Attrition rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

2. | o &gan ¥ aRed= @af awdt arftrer
Table showing change in Benefit Obligation

@y & R H AT/ Liability at the beginning of the year 305.51 221.08 7245 62.57
15T T / Interest Cost 2352 20.54 5.76 5.83
A FdT AN / Current Service Cost 12.23 8.73 4.62 4.02
et Jar e (R e o) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Past Service Cost (Non Vested Benefit)

el Jar amma (Fiee ams) / 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Past Service Cost ( Vested Benefit)
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T a8 / Crore
Y% / Pension ¥E | Gratuity
it i forira forira
af2016 | af2015 | af2016 | @ 2015
FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2015
2T 376RUT 3TTH / Liability Transferred in 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(&g 3iaxor fafH) / (Liability Transferred out) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(SreT ©T9) / (Benefit Paid) (8.34) (6.00) (3.45) (3.21)
a3t W St (e / g1t / 11.35 61.16 (6.29) 324
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations
o & 371 ¥ AT / Liability at the end of the year 344.27 305.51 73.09 72.45
3. | AT snfeal & e yea wed aften
Tables of Fair value of Plan Assets
a¥ & RN § drsHna sniadr & 3hud gea 83.39 80.27 101.49 95.21
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
QST el o) Ffér e 7.25 6.98 8.83 8.28
Expected Return on Plan Assets
3916 / Contributions 8.34 0.00 0.00 0.99
30 S | FARUT / Transfer from other company 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(3= BT B =0T ) / (Transfer to other company) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(1<t @1¥1) / (Benefit Paid) (8.34) (2.43) (3.46) (3.21)
AT 3R W it o / (81) (0.17) (1.43) (0.40) 021
Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Assets
T & 37 # AT St @ 3faa gea 90.47 83.39 106.46 101.48
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
4. | difss e (@) vear aiferer
Table of Recognition of Actuarial Gains/ Losses
3rafer & fore afirea Siifess e / (@19) 11.35 61.16 (6.29) 3.24
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on obligation for the period
srafty & fere anfieat w Swifes am / @) 0.17 143 0.40 (0.21)
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on asset for the period
ama 3k 2 @ 3§ fufeea Swifes o/ (@) 11.52 62.59 (5.89) 3.03
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses recognized in Income & Expense Statement
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T aR1g / Crore
U9 / Pension AL | Gratuity
fartta fartra ferit ferita
2016 | af2015 | af2016 | af 2015
FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2015
ST 3Rl o aRafas wfrser
Actual Return on Plan Assets
ArsnTa iRt o= 3 wfemer 7.25 6.98 8.83 8.28
Expected Return on Plan Assets
AT el W Swifes @ / (@) (0.17) (1.43) (0.40) 021
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets
AT 3Rl IR aRatde Tiwbe 7.09 5.55 8.43 8.49
Actual Return on Plan Assets
goraa ¥ Freifa 3t w8
Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
a¥ o 37 # AT / Liability at the end of the year (344.27) 83.39 (73.09) 101.48
a¥ & 3id ¥ drsmma it @ 3faa qea 90.47 (305.51) 106.46 (72.45)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
3¢} / Difference (253.80) | (222.12) 33.37 29.03
o & 3iq § afetRa fam dar ama 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unrecognised Past Service Cost at the end of the year
ad & 3id # FeiRa oRkadl dgar 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unrecognised Transitional Liability at the end of the year
geraa A FraiRa &t 78 e i (253.80) | (222.12) 33.37 29.03
Net Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
ama faaoft 3 FreffRa =
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement
Te] ¥aT NI / Current Service Cost 12.23 8.73 4.62 4.02
151 @I / Interest Cost 16.27 20.54 (3.07) 5.83
ArsmTe et ) gt gfawa 0.00 (6.98) (5.89) (8.28)
Expected Return on Plan Assets
af & <k FefRor # & 78 fama Jar e (R Ffga o) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Past Service Cost (Non Vested Benefit) recognised during the year
a§ & R Freko § & % fom Ja aa Fifga @) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit) recognised during the year
af & SR uRaa aaar @ fefRor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Recognition of Transition Liability during the year
it (%) /&1 / Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 11.52 62.59 0.00 3.03
o SR &+ dren 3 frefRor % fore e = 40.02 84.87 (4.34) 4.60
Expense Recognised in Profit & Loss account
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TFS / Crore

Y% / Pension ¥E | Gratuity

fifm| fefm| frim| el

af2016 | af2015 | af2016 | o 2015
FY2016 | FY2015 | FY2016 | FY2015

8. GEEEES |1 / Balance Sheet Reconciliation

3R f¥a fH1ae 34aT / Opening Net Liability 222.12 140.82 (29.03) (32.64)
T2ITh 30 | Expense as above 40.02 84.87 (4.34) 460
forarent &1 sigeE / Employers' Contribution (8.34) (3.57) 0.00 (0.99)
o 3 PrafRa afy 253.80 22212 (33.37) (29.03)

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

9. | 3= f&@01 Other Details

&% o U & FTAR I TR BN G H W 0 &, N SHANRET D GArETT, 7 G Jgfd b dag § Jan F
yrafere YRURT & SR &l &

Salary escalation is considered as advised by the Bank which is in line with the industry practice considering promotion,
demand and supply of the employees.

e (12 7E) & fore st siera 22.33 20.68 0.00 0.00
Estimated Contribution for next year (12 months)

10. | 3Rl @Y AR / Category of Assets
HRd TSR AT / Government of India Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
®RURC §7U8 / Corporate Bonds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TRy 511 T / Special Deposits Scheme 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Yalas aaf~di & graac! IR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Equity Shares of Listed Companies
w9t / Property 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
el R yafta it (s siae dh fem) 90.47 83.39 106.46 101.49
Insurer Managed Funds (LIC of India)
= / Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
T/ Total 90.47 83.39 106.46 101.49

11. | 3F]Wa W95 | Experience Adjustment:

TSN T (67187 ) /BT x| 2270 | (0.90) | 24.34 | (272) | 35.64 | (620) | (0.56) | (3.72) | (0.11) | 14.18
On Plan Liability (Gain)/Loss

ISR e (81f) /e oR| (0.17) | (143) | 032 | 070 | 578 | (040) | 021 | 062|065 | (0.78)
On Plan Asset (Loss)/Gain
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TS / Crore

() | T SHIED GIRT Faw e Jedie W ARG I+ aratare e Qrsisi & Safed i, 3t o g1 @
¥ ywiiRa ot 78, §9 PR &

(©) | The following are the amount charged to Profit & Loss Account relating to other long term benefits plan based on the
actuarial valuation provided by independent actuary.

D f@=o1 / Particulars 31 \Tef, 2016 Y 31 5, 2015 &t

Sr. No. As on March 31, 2016 As on March 31, 2015
1 | HTENROT G FHEIDBROT/ Ordinary Leave Encashment 479 10.51
2 | gedt fosrar Rarae / Leave Fare Concession (LFC) 2.00 3.26
3 | dr9RY 1@PI / Sick Leave 1.99 0.82
4 UIai¥ &% / Resettlement Expenses 0.02 0.00
5 | Jarfwghy Wi @R drsr * 0.03 8.76

Post Retirement Medical Scheme Facilities*

* Fiftare e qmal & 2% T @ FFAN fosar T B
* Domiciliary claim has been assumed to go up by 2%.

2. 3 6 oo aFe-17 s RAfEn & sienfa siféa 8, §6 3 ‘aew @8 &1 yac grafe @ & ¥ 4
Torar 21 9% ¥o wRa # oRarera &, s@: Rafén drg diifes @ 76 81 86 ¥ zeam @ & siafd saa
Toam, sweaa foaw 3R ¢ard- A &9 Rafén @s feifRa foe €1 3 @ sarl sk Jasi & gpha Fk it
Y, SIS ard T 96 @ HiaRe Rurfen odawn K far & ar fFefa foe mw &) fee af & sifes
@ I o o Ught & TR & & fore gRigfEa @ geditek fown mar 21
As required under Accounting Standard-17 'Segment Reporting' the Bank has disclosed "Business segment" as the
Primary Segment. Since the Bank operates in India, there are no reportable geographical segments. Under Business
Segment, the Bank has identified Direct Finance, Indirect Finance and Treasury as its three reporting segments. These
segments have been identified after considering the nature and risk profile of the products and services, the organization

structure and the internal reporting system of the Bank. Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified to
conform to the current year's methodology.

RIS} @S veaa o Fweas fam gt 4N/ Total
Business Segments Direct Finance Indirect Finance Treasury
faaxur/ Particulars e | el | el | el | i | i | Rl | fia

af2016 | af2015 | af2016 | af2015 | af2016 | af2015 | af2016 | adf 2015
FY2016 | FY2015 | FY2016 | FY2015 | FY2016 | FY2015 | FY2016 | FY2015

1 | =R 1,376 1,554 3,888 3,726 521 461 5,785 5,741
Segment Revenue
STRATETRYT 7 =
Exceptional Items
4N [ Total 5,785 5,741
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TS/ Crore

RIS} @S yeae for Fweas fae ot 4 [ Total

Business Segments Direct Finance Indirect Finance Treasury

f&a%o1/ Particulars il | il | el | fefm | fadle | Rl | feim | feil

af2016 | af2015 | af2016 | af2015 | af2016 | af2015 | af2016 | @ 2015
FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2015

2 | @=qfRkom 75 363 1,474 1,716 204 144 1,753 2,223

Segment Results

STRATEIRUT 7

Exceptional Items

1T/ Total 1,753 2,223

sfafeig 117 108

Unallocable Expenses

aReEneme v 1,636 2,115

Operating profit

IR (JRI P 9E) 459 698

Income Tax (Net of write

back)

oraer o1 / Net profit 1,177 1,417
3 | =g g

Other information

W= snfaar 11,490 11,623 55,987 45,631 7,727 1,820 75,204 59,074

Segment Assets

et gl 1,274 1,781

Unallocated Assets

1 RN  Total Assets 76478 | 60,855

WE 2gan 8,475 8,459 49,274 40,303 5,835 1,345 63,584 50,107

Segment Liabilities

Ffateama Sgane 1,299 968

Unallocated Liabilities

4N / Total 64,883 | 51,075

Ih | afEaferdi 3,024 3,269 6,623 6,012 1,948 499 11,595 9,780

Capital / Reserves

TR/ Total 11595 | 9,780

PeTTNE / Total Liabilities 76478 | 60,855
23 | waft urél WAa@R / Related party transactions

wafta udl yoeT & waa ¥ §Rigge i aits vordeH A §Ean g1 AR A 7He-18 & IER, d5 5

Waftre oe Fraa & -

As per the Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures" (AS-18) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant

of India, the related parties of the Bank are as follows.
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RIS T :
Subsidiaries:

Tt de Pfiea fefice (wdiRiee) / SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL)
et gwdt et frfiies (Twdiviieet) / SIDBI Trustee Company Limited (STCL)
arSe! gfviey Sdauie Us Romera worel feifies (gar fer.)

Micro Units Development & Refinance Agency Ltd. (MUDRA Ltd)

wEanh @S

Associates

ARG 7Y TF Heaw JaH IR QAT a0 (Frseaese) fafies
India SME Asset Reconstruction Company (ISARC) Ltd.

Ry T ferfies (1) / SMERA Ratings Ltd. (SMERA)
R oY Ud 7eam Je STt dar fafies (muwéieses) / India SME Technology Services Ltd. (ISTSL)
Refiawe vovrds 3t sfvsar fafies (SIRUET3TETe) / Receivable Exchange of India Limited (RXIL)

% & q& vey S :

Key Managerial Personnel of the Bank:

&1 e Rramst, seae vd yeg fes

Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman & Managing Director

A FTT FIR DY, 39 Ja¢ e |, (22 ia) 2016)
Shri Ajay Kumar Kapoor, Deputy Managing Director (w.e.f January 22, 2016)

2 TS firrer, 3u yeer fFRere |, (22 Sia 2016)

Shri Manoj Mittal, Deputy Managing Director (w.e.f January 22, 2016)

IR G ToR a3 ofie 78 €, wife 3 §ieye sife ardé verdew i $fEar arr SRy e
HHE-18 & URWE 9 BT B U1 & |

The above list does not include State Controlled Enterprises since the same are exempted vide para 9 of Accounting
Standard - 18 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

Wag va & FHe ¥ walti faawor &1 ysdieor

Disclosures of details pertaining to related party transactions :

¥ & AR §5 & yE Ydesiie) o Jaw e da, fore argemy o e &, e & -
The gross salary including perquisites paid to the Key Managerial Personnel of the Bank during the year is as under :
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®
@) | f & RM I S J@ U HD B ¥ad God dad, o sgemw W wfie €, Freea @
a) | The gross salary including perquisites paid to the Key Managerial Personnel of the Bank during the year is as under :
ot ad ot and
2015-16 2014 -15
FY 2015-16 FY 2014 -15
1) | &f emufa Rrarst, sege vd yee e 20,81,296 1,63,530
Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman & Managing Director
2) | it 375 FAR DX, 39 yaE e, (22 R 2016) 292472 -
Shri Ajay Kumar Kapoor, Deputy Managing Director (w.e.f January 22, 2016)
3) | &Y wevor firrer, 3v yaE e |, (22 SRt 2016) 4,227,342 =
Shri Manoj Mittal, Deputy Managing Director (w.ef January 22, 2016)
@) | Judts ARl B AR Fol B 31 AT B g At = =
b) | Outstanding balances of loans as on March 31st in respect of above persons:
) | ygE yEamHe o faw af & dkm AR fee e ol W @ g N
c) | Interest on loans granted to Key Managerial Personnel during the year:
1) | §@ & yga geaaiHier & daer 3 gur 31 A o wraftn smr S st o 9 -
d) | Outstanding balances under Fixed Deposits as on March 31st in respect of Key Managerial Personnel of the Bank:
fareia ad fordita anf
Tera=or / Particulars 2015-16 2014 -15
FY 2015-16 FY 2014 -15
a¥ & SR WIBR T / Deposits accepted during the year 11,92,823 31,66,431
o & AR ardt 3@ / Repayment during the year 3,00,000 25,12,682
3ifer 919 / Closing Balance 11,92,823 62,76,511
T B R 751 / Interest expended during the year 1,38,315 6,57,611
EXPet Ing the !
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" e U | Related Party WETA® WM | Subsidiaries WEdNT WM / Associates
. wdiies | ewdhem far. S E e S G R S
feraor / Particulars SVCL STCL M‘ﬁrm Ltd | SMERA ISARC ISTSL RXIL

Rl # e
Investment i1_1 Shares

TYHAER - - | 749,95,00,000 - < -| 2000000
Transactions during the Year (=) (-) (5,00,000) =] (@) (@) =)
a¥ & 3d o s 1,00,00,000 500,000 | 7,49,95,00000 | 51000000 | 150000000 | 1,0000,000| 2000000
Outstandj.ng atend Of the Yyear (1;1:0,00;000) (slm!m}) (5,00,0(11} (S;lﬂfm;m) (ls;ﬂofm:wo} (1,00,00,000} ( _)
YT 3T / Income received
& gy g1 iR 3,85,75,327 90,000 | 7632255 | 6046877 | 123769 i 5
Amount received by Bank (4,73,47 446) (60,000) (=) (1,00,10,370) | (12,06,22,669) (=) (-)
a¥ & 3id # yre iR = = - - - -
Receivables at end of the year (-) {(-) (-) (5,06,204) (-) =) (=)
i ot ufegf
gg&%tﬁwm 13,31,899 - 2mam | 7858420 | 6991282 =
Amount claimed by Bank (27,62,961) (<) (607,672 - (49,79,539) (=) (-)
a¥ & 3 ¥ yre it 37,853 -| 2762869 - 5800 | 69,91,282
Receivables at end of the year (7,868) (-) (6,07,672) (<) (5634) |  (39,44,583) (=)
! BT YA
Payment of expenses
& gR1 yew Y
Amount paid by Bank
- 3o | HHIEH - - - - = =
- Fees / Commission (=) (-) (NA) (=) (-) (=) (=)
-= = = 34 - - = =
- Interest _ (=) (=) (NA) (=) (=) (=) (=)
W BITH T
Payables at end of the year
- S[e /A - B = = - .
- Fees/Commission (=) (-) (NA) (-) (= (=) (=)
- =5 = = = - = .
- Interest (=) (-) (NA) (=} (-) (=) (=)
51 / Deposits
a¥ & R aa - . - " - e
Received during the Year (-) (=) (NA) (-) (-) (=) =)
a¥ & 2R aE = - " ] _ _
hpﬁddmmeyw (=) (=) (NA) (=) (=) (=) (=)
a¥ & I A gorET - - 3 J n _
Qutstanding at end of the year (=) (=) (NA) (=) (=) (=) (=

(rost § & 78 ¥t et af ot &) / (Figures in brackets represents previous year’s amount)
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®)

24 | gfyy 9oR 3t (§dtew) (@reies ams 20)*: 31 77el, 2016 31 77, 2015
Earning Per Share (EPS) (AS-20)*: March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015
ufer 9reR 31t uRee & Tore Friaer ey @) 1177,46,64,620 |  1417,13,02,757
Net Profit considered for EPS calculation (%)
sfer IR 210 & 3ifer gra & $feafe Rt & wRa stea s 47,34,05,205 45,00,00,000
Weighted Average Number of equity shares of face value ¥10 each
it ¥R 35 ) / Earning per share ) 24.87 31.49
* eTHd TfreraR 3rete e sratufa wfer g et aum &, a3ife safisoia dmfya $hrad =& € 1
* Basic & Diluted EPS are same as there are no dilutive potential Equity Shares.

25 | SrETeH I 22 3 W X &q oraie o Sena & IER, §& ¥ aafiia o sra/aad o auer o & 3k 81
AT, 2016 B THIG ¥ & @TH &1 o A 280,74,69,989/- B AfYr (e af smeafitg o= Saar 2186,72,66,6072)
arefir @ anfka A &1 @2 31 A7, 2016 SRR @) 3/ (STaT) & SIERT ST Hed et &

As per the Accounting Standard 22, Accounting for Taxes on Income, the Bank has reviewed the Deferred Tax Expenditure
/ Saving and recognised an amount of ¥80,74,69,989 as Deferred Tax Asset (Previous year - Deferred Tax Liability was
¥186,72,66,607) in the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2016. The Break up of Deferred Tax Asset/ (
Liability) as on March 31, 2016 is as follows :
31.03.2016 B | 31.03.2015 Y
Frafia 3% Freafia 3%
WmeimingDiﬁerence WIM) m*"m
As at March 31, 2016 | As at March 31, 2015
Deferred Tax Asset/| Deferred Tax Asset/
(Liability) (Liability)

) | TeugE™ & fore yraa= (1,68,645) 15,58,955

a) | Provision for Depreciation

@) | Imaax st 1961 B €T 36(1)(viii) 3 3rcrta ey sm=fafy (3,97,58,92,976) | (3,63,29,74,887)

b) | Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act 1961

M) | 3rives T A FON aq HEee 2,12,0554201 |  1,27,94,44,842

¢) | Provisions for Bad & Doubtful Debts

H) | YRd WROR & 8108t W) Mg @ aRkenas (8,79,10,650) (15,37,45,575)

d) | Amortisation of Premium on GOI Bonds

) | |l @ QARG 8 Jae 14,02,21,289 16,46,37,417

e) | Provision for Restructuring of Accounts

) | F= 1,38,37,96,609 1,11,42,09,087

f) | Others
Trae srefia o anfe /(@a) (41,94,00,172) | (1,22,68,70,161)
Net deferred tax Asset/(Liability)
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12 iﬁ T ¥ ¥nfHer & : / Provision for Income Tax includes: ®

HHID ) T ad 2015-16 | farehra af 2014-15
Sr. No. faraRo1 / Particulars FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15

(i) | =L TSR J1GE / Current Income Tax Provision 540,51,60,216 512,01,72,759

(i) | 7 ot &g fove e &9 /(9%h) IIER FTAEE (76,33,659) (63,72,742)

Short/(Excess) Income Tax Provision of Earlier Years

27

D ST I241,61,56,475 (T T - X208,80,31,755/-) B &, Fordt Fmaax vd dam@x Ht agar wike &1 Fb
O TeAd el & AR TaRiust o I & AYR R S9N AGIS el G9eT 741 &1 599 T50,66,98,988/- (71 af -
%50,66,98,988/- ) T &, T R fawmT gRT do & faoe e e & wefta 21

Contingent liabilities of ¥241,61,56,475 (Previous Year - ¥208,80,31,755 ) represents income tax, and service tax liability.
This is being disputed by the Bank and based on expert's opinion the provision is not considered necessary. It includes
an amount of ¥50,66,98,988 (Previous Year - ¥50,66,98,988) pertaining to appeals filed by Income Tax Department
against the Bank.

28

JEEE B X, oaEia A® 28 - 3kl @ g1 & Toie ¥, o o e siiadt o o s e ad gf @

In the opinion of the Management, there is no material impairment of the fixed assets of the Bank in terms of Accounting
Standard 28- Impairment of Assets.

29

HHRED 2T S UauE & Fag # Sra@ios A9 - 29 & It ysed

Disclosures under Accounting Standard 29 for provisions in contingencies. ®
o Aa /
gIeE i i
férazor | Particulars - g Other
e R ars Provisions
Incentive
AR B9 / Opening Balance 50,98,62,303 3,75,81,575
gkt : / Additions: 33,53,00,000
394N : / Utilisations: 1,18,60,000
YRI5 / Write back 40,02,303
3ifers 919 / Closing Balance 82,93,00,000 3,75,81,575

F=g 1 ¥ § 2 wnthe & 5 fafte faftre wnrat sik 0= snahers Sganst | weafta € fims foe & srates
WY} IR & 3R A saEr & " ufwar # §o & fog e e s &)

Other Provision represents claims filed against the Bank in the normal course of business relating to various legal cases
and other claims for which Bank is contingently liable.
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30

T & aRM & 3 Tadaui shiew Wit & sifeaor w8 fowa &1

During the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, the Bank has not exceeded the prudential exposure limit.

31

§& 7 I FRfEa faeeh ger ot aeare IEd! & e o1 e & sume & fore ve ugfy &= 1 2. 3mafte sneR
TR 59 JOR & IRIEa TR SATTHRT B FHIET B ST 8. ARG Ra/d 36 & feeid 15/01/2014 & 97 T 81 &1
3 & § & & 2 85/ 21.06.200/2013-14 Td T&i 03/06/2014 & U7 Ay &Y &1 3 & & G & F 116/ 21.06.200/2013-14
o Fgac! IR0l & FRfEr faaeit gar %01 caret TTesi & forw %or Sian & s@ra & forw g2 31 4t 2016 76
%0.21 a8 (T 0.14 Bs) 3 yraen= fpar mar & ol A snfaal & saar o enfie 2. 590 Ferar 31

AT 2016 7@ EbHTs & TaH # JAfai Yol B Jawdsal L' 8. (T faxirg ad)

The Bank has put in place a mechanism to manage credit risk arising out of unhedged foreign currency exposures
(UFCE) of its borrowers. A review of the UFCE across its portfolio is undertaken by the Bank on periodic basis. In terms
of RBI circular DBOD No. BP.BC.85/21.06.200/2013-14 dated 15.01.2014 & subsequent clarification vide circular DBOD
NO.BP.BC. 116/21.06.200 /2013-14 dated 03.06.2014, based on available data, the provision for UFCE works out to 30.21
crore as on March 31, 2016 (Previous year %0.14 crore) which has been included under provisions for standard assets.
Further, the additional capital requirement on account of UFCE works out to “Nil” as on March 31, 2016 (Previous year
Nil).

32

el @t R : / Investor’'s Complaints:
7 1 3T 2015 T S & UG vl o BIg rerd ciied el o, aawm foxira af & 2Rm o8 Rk ye 78t
&% & A 31, 2016 @ B Rwraa Fruer &g dfea & 21

As on 1st April, 2015 the Bank had Nil pending investor’s complaints. During the current financial year "Nil" complaints
were received from Investors and "Nil" complaints were disposed off during the year. Thus,"Nil" complaints are pending
for disposal as on March 31, 2016.

33

WRrg oy FanT e da e fafoam, 2000 & faftam 14 3§ ardra ey 3am faemr wemm i (casmdéoes)
e w4t & sicfa erat & sRgeitaRer 8 e ey e & | i s wRaR 3 e § 31 vaansenes
st 81 e &, r: Fredt 39 78 <t &1

Regulation 14 of Small Industries Development Bank of India General Regulations, 2000 prescribes separate format

for presentation of accounts under Small Industries Development Assistance Fund(SIDAF) and General Fund. As no
separate SIDAF has been notified by the Central Government, the same is not being maintained by SIDBI.

S e < o PR A i &, fr wiia # wia Tewg e el &
e d foar an 21 af & 3 A do 7 U Afifere diaami o wiar o & R wiew § Hwfaa

it & fore @ran-ad # savgadrgaR gaie mae 5 & qen fxdir faazolt # v fewfort & siafa 37a
saeH T 21

The Bank has long term contracts mainly in nature of derivative contracts which are assessed for material foreseeable
losses. At the year end, the Bank has reviewed and recorded adequate provision as required, for material foreseeable
losses on such long term contracts in the books of account and disclosed the same under the relevant notes in the
financial statements.

35

aﬁmgw,mﬁ%ﬁa@wwmmﬁmwé. e 3¢ a1y 3y o JAas | gern-ang
T ST S |

Previous year's figures have been re-grouped and re-classified wherever necessary to make them comparable with the
current years figures.
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R @18 / Crore)
ARara Rard do & faan-Fréengar siftiRes yadiawor/ Additional disclosures as per RBI guidelines
>. R | Capital g af 2015-16 | ot adf 201415
A. . FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
o) sifEm sl & ufer gait su (FaResr) 29.86% 36.69%
a) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio [CRAR]
& AIHARCHAR / Core CRAR 29.86% 35.59%
FYRD HIFRCIAR / Supplementary CRAR 0.00% 1.10%
@) e e Titor ur Bt ¥ e feak-n It & w F awmar afh = gl
b) The amount of subordinated debt raised and outstanding as Tier Nil Nil
II capital
) ifew wiRke snfadi-gem-ua § i 3R 5ot gax @l 8q
9US-9US
¢) Risk weighted assets-separately for on and off-balance sheet items
LERRES T / On Balance sheet 31611.15 27699.05
JE-UA & 3TETaT / Off Balance sheet 559.65 475.92
°) qor-u Bt it Y AR enRen a1 Yol ot R anan a1
d) The share holding pattern as on the date of the Balance sheet WfereTel / Percentage
No. of shares :
of shareholding
HRA IRBR / Govt. of India 3,69,82,250 7.59
=i WP / Finandial Institutions 2,39,00,000 491
AT a1t / Insurance Companies 9,84,50,000 20.20
HIdS1+cb & & a / PSU Banks 32,76,50,000 67.30
4Nt/ Total 48,69,82,250 100.00
. | anfe Toran SR For wHgor fefraad 201516 | farfraad 201415
B. | Asset quality and credit concentration FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
&) foram o sk s & ufer Fae x-Freomes sl o ufiea 0.73% 0.78%
a) Percentage of net NPAs to net loans and advances
@) WaE Daat ST ¢ 79% 76%

b) Provisioning Coverage Ratio (PCR) *

* Floating provision has not been considered while calculating PCR.

* FTGEIT daxat U1 ot 0T 3Rl G0 aet Sraen= @ fewe & =181 forar man |
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R @18 / Crore)

) FrafRa snfta affezo Al & siofa, Frae Rt @t gemn # fFaa k- siftaal 3t o sik e

¢) Amount and percentage of net NPAs to net advances under the prescribed asset classification categories

frha & 2015-16 g adf 2014-15
FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
Soft | Category i gfte X% Amount|  wftrEr
Amount | Percentage Percentage
G-HD AT * / Sub-standard assets* 376.67 0.57 291.05 053
wferer anfRad’ * / Doubtful assets* 104.74 0.16 140.39 0.25
N/ Total 481.41 0.73 431.44 0.78

+ I forearees anfia & v & ifea

Fremres snfar gra &, afe T sraom Tf¥ o 39 e wHrfe faar oo |

* Adjusted provision for diminution in fair value and Balance in Sundries Liabilities Account (Interest Capitalisation)
in respect of restructured accounts classified as NPA. The Net NPA for FY 2014-15 will be NIL if the amount of

floating provision is adjusted against the same.

@l ¥ Gafte st saae. fmha af 2014-15 & Frae ik

THe aniaat, 1R snf¥adt, Fae (0m & wv F foor e Frl ¥ sR) g s Sufaad &

R e e wraEET @ afdr

d) Amount of provisions made during the year towards Standard assets, NPAs, Investments (other than those in the

nature of an advance) and Income Tax

R et forchrr af 2015-16 | el af 201415

FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15

HHS Rl / Standard Assets 3.46 =
R-Fraes snfiadr / NPAs 296.914 (251.55)*
97391 / Investments (75.22)% 54,54
@Il P YRR / Restructuring of Accounts = 5
e (Tt R aar sl sraarE!, afe &, & gRieT afed) 459.01 698.11
Income Tax (including Deferred tax and write back of excess provision, if any)

+ Foae sifaRes iR il seem 2232.42 aRIS
* Net of additional NPA provision of ¥232.42 crore.

# TE FTaU B §FRiSA 9T 6 a8
Net of write back of floating provision.
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R @18 / Crore)
%) I Freares sl # uRad™ / e) Movement of Non Performing Assets (NPAs)
e Pt fantaad 2015-16 | e af 2014-15
REI FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
Toreira o & yRww # o 3R e snfaat 741.11 1153.12
Gross NPA at the beginning of the financial year
FTed : 9 & SR uRaei= / Add : Additions during the year 536.83 478.34
39 5115 (@) / Sub total (A) 1277.94 1631.46
m - | Less:-
i) JEg/ Upgradations 11.94 34.61
i) agferdl (I @l ¥ agferdl @ BrsaN) 59.09 506.39
Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts)
iii) fdd®yof §¢2 @M / Prudential Write-offs 198.73 106.41
iv) 0 (iii) B AR 3 IG¢ @ et T - 242.94
Write-offs other than those under (iii) above
39 3118 (@) / Sub total (B) 269.76 890.35
fortra o @t wifta w woa IR Fraes sl @) 1008.18 74111
Gross NPA at the close of the financial year (A - B)
q) :ﬁtﬁmﬁmﬂaﬁtmﬁqﬁaﬁmmﬁaﬁm&ﬂuﬂm
f) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
Torira o & gea # 37 A9/ Opening Balance at the beginning of the financial year 266.11 867.01
e : af & AR & T J1aeH / Add: Provisions made during the year 442.48 232.42
TeRY : §CC W B TRA/gRIToha Sfaied Hmaen 201.07 833.32
Less: Write-off / write-back of excess provisions
ferita ad @Y wmRa w g9/ Closing balance at the close of the financial year 507.52 266.11
8) fae i} fraes sl 3 akeds
| g Movement in Net NPAs
faeira o ot R0 # 3/ 39/ Opening Balance at the beginning o the financial year 431.44 277.05
SfE : af & iR uRael / Add: Additions during the year 94.35 245.91
HETEY : 9 & SR T4 / Less: Reductions during the year 68.69 57.02
T : iR-Fremes snfia & ww # e {rikfa @l o 3fua e firmee & smaers + 2.89 (6.78)
Less: Provision for dimunition of fair value of restructured accounts classified as NPA*
TCRY : TRIRTIa 1R FH1eTes SR S aTad GexT Saar @l 3 3Tae (ST 1y aiavr) (27.20) 41.28
Less: Balance in Sundries Liabilities Account (Interest Capitalisation) in respect
of Restructured NPA Accounts
férefra o @t wfier o= gR 99/ Closing balance at the close of the financial year 481.41 431.44
* 1R Freares afRa & v # arifga gerifea @l & s gea # firmae o smaam & <if¥ e 31 7, 2016, < 5.17 &3 A,
STafes 31 AT 2015 B AR T 9w A W g & ufepa AR 2.28 Fe, M| dagar faeha af 2015-16 & Fiwe! B 01 B T 1
* Provision for diminution in fair value of restructured accounts classified as NPA as on March 31, 2016 is¥5.17 crore, as against 32.28 crore
already considered in opening as on March 31, 2015. Accordingly the figure has been worked out for FY 2015-16.
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R @18 / Crore)

T
c

. | T TreR

Credit Exposure

o) Frafafea & ar 3 4o fFiftrl stk oo snfRaal & iy 2o vasisR o1 wfewem -
a) Credit exposure as percentage to capital funds and as percentage to total assets, in respect of :

ot adf 2015-16 / FY 2015-16

faher af 2014-15/ FY 201415

F.4. ) oo aieal | doht et | paaRReal | Ooh il
o N féraor/ Particulars Sodwad | Bodwad | Sodwad | dudwad
As % to As % to As % to As % to
Total Assets | Capital funds | Total Assets | Capital funds
1 T §57 UoeT IYREAT 10.25 66.30 8.30 43.57

The largest single borrower

e T8 IURSA THE

The largest borrower group

qfes a3 JuRaal wrafie woerr TR &, a: sRa JgRasd

FE B RN o el &

As large borrowers are Primary Lending Institutions, the concept of
borrower group is not applicable.

2 10 9EY §3 T IURSAAT

The 10 largest single borrowers

53.65

346.92

48.16

252.90

10 e ¥ JURSAT TE
The 10 largest borrower group

Afes a3 3eRax grafie HoErET Tt &, 3 IuRaxd T9g B

JIEROT @1 el &

As large borrowers are Primary Lending Institutions the concept of
borrower group is not applicable.

@) er O IR & ferra & w9 § drg wew 73 Sl A o) yew wor

b) Credit exposure to the five largest industrial sectors as percentage to total loan assets :

forfra af 2015-16 / FY 2015-16

forfta af 2014-15 1 Fy 2014-15

Pl I kAl
3E11 BT A | Name of Industry s | IRl Suft | ssmr ol | sl & uf
Amount % Amount %
Outstanding | %to total loan | Outstanding | % to total loan
assets assets

URaE 3UaRoT / Transport Equipment 1,474.46 225 1,652.02 299
a%3 Ja (5[ WiEa) / Textiles (Including Jute) 1,045.63 1.59 1,325.68 2.40
fareger 3ee / Electricity Generation 1,002.54 153 1,093.53 198
€T 3TE / Metal Products 892.23 1.36 1,324.61 2.39
Fmfor / Constructions 667.94 1.02 793.55 143
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R @18 / Crore)
b, | 37, BM, TR v T ST Hhaor forchtar ad 2015-16 | forcftar ad 2014-15
D. | Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
@) T HDRT
a) Concentration of Deposits
91 HaQ g3 SIS & Gt ST R IRTY) 572.85 922.65
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors (X Crore)
& & e o1 & FieT S T T STHIGIIS &b ST 3T ITrerd / Percentage of 69.43 79.69
deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the bank
@) FRE o1 wHaor
b) Concentration of Advances
99 T 98 JARSA3A B o AT E RB) 48434.65 37536.00
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers (% Crore)
o & oo FW & gfa 9 T 98 JURSATIAT & A @ gherere 73.80 67.82
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the bank
7)) TFEIFR BT HHEol
¢) Concentration of Exposures
I a3 IARGATIATED B Hier Pel TEIFR R TG 52057.56 39744.07
Total Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers (X Crore)
FURSAHT / TTED! # § & HoT 0T TR & icl 81 9™ g5 IURDAT3AN/ 64.06 57.75
TED # Fo1 SEw 1 g
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total
exposures of the bank on borrowers / customers
9) R s snfadl &1 ddhaor - @i ar edie @l #§ o eaulsR G a8) 412.52 319.50
d) Concentration of NPAs - Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts  Crore)
%) &iFar IR-freaes anfRadi / e) Sector wise NPAs
I &3 & P I A IR-
Fcon | Pt Fraes &1 wferera
| Pasticpllars Percentage of NPAs to Total
Advances in that Sector
P FAR wEadt aftaferr = =
Agriculture & allied activities
F4T (Y&, T, 7R 3R §8) / Industry (Micro, small, medium and large) 0.79 0.76
4T / Services 7.21 6.18
dafte 97 / Personal Loans - =
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féa=o1/ Particulars Toreirar o 2015-16 | forefrar & 2014-15
FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15

@) fadeyf g @ ot @l ¥ aRkedw

f) Movement of Prudential Write-off (PWO) Accounts
forira af o gz # fadeqel age @ 1233.02 1210.61
Prudential Written-off Accounts at the beginning of the financial year
e : af & Sk el age an 198.73 106.41
Add : Prudential write-off during the year
34 5iTg (F) / Sub total (A) 1431.75 1317.02
HTTHE : IRAATA® TGS W / Less: Actual write off 0.88 51.20
HeRe : a¥ & aRM Taas! & fadeqel age wn @ @ =i agfei 53.17 32.80
Less: Recoveries made from previously prudential written-off accounts during
the year
39 3113 (@) / Sub total (B) 54,05 84.00
farra o &) waifta = fadeqef aeg @wi (@ - @) 1377.70 1233.02
Prudential Written-off Accounts at the close of the financial year (A-B)

B) fawl #§ snfRaa, ix-Froes snfel aor vere

g) Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue
e FRETAT / Total Assets - -
g IR-Freqes 3Rt / Total NPAs - -
T WS4 / Total Revenue = =

et anf 2015-16 fortra af 2014-15
FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
yritfse el s1 e | o vl 1AW
Name of SPV Sponsored | Name of SPV Sponsored
W i % W] et #
Domestic Overseas Domestic Overseas
) gm 93 ¥ gox arfa vadi (e araios aFe! - - - -
FFER Tifea fan s 2)
h) Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required
to be consolidated as per accounting norms)
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Fram

Investments

®) frel § grogm & fre fve e yaa=

a) Provisions for depreciation in Investments

f&a=m1/ Particulars

forerr ad
2015-16
FY 2015-16

Tercira af
2014-15
FY 2014-15

Torcirar af & sest 7 377 2w
Opening balance as at the beginning of the financial year

65.95

71.87

shfse : af & AR fe e graam

Add : Provisions made during the year

Sse « e IaR-ggra aRf&f coar & fafdm, afe &% &

Add: Appropriations, if any, from Investment Fluctuation Reserve account

HeTgU : af & AR §g¢ Wi A s T Afd
Less : Write off during the year

Herst : oy 3aR-ugE aRfEf o § sioRor, aft & 8

Less: Transfer, if any, to Investment Fluctuation Reserve account*

15.79

5.92

Herse : foxig af & SR Si-3d & eewed ¥ Teed ¥ 3k & &
PRoT fope me fafmm

Less: Appropriations made on account of shifting of G-Sec from AFS to
HTM during FY

forehra ad & wanfia w afer 9w
Closing balance at the close of the financial year

50.16

65.95

+ e saR-ueE FRfEf 7 sioror # ¥ famad 2015-16 & <= fovam mam 211,65 o o fawad 2014-15 B ER=

fopar o 24.51 aRIg & y@E™ ger fear @ &

* Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve is net of provision of ¥11.65 crore made during FY 2015-16 and

¥4.51 crore made during FY 2014-15.
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@) fe e e & wag 3§ siwal AR : / b) Issuer Categories in respect of Investment made:
Fep=ferRac @t TR/ Amount of
Pl emiecd | A afa S et R
STi@al / Issuer Am"n' . siike Frw wfrgfrt . | ez
oun Investment made Below gﬁ‘ﬂ?‘?‘ it
through private Investment sl:cnl::it?es Unlisted
placement Grade Securities held securities
Held €
I aI1® &7 & 39HH / PSUs 1488.72 - - - =
forirar wven® / Fis 183.83 103.83 - - 72.03
&5 | Banks 2668.54 143.00 = - =
oot daferdt / Private Corporates 1132.33 272.64 = 9.42 270.48
UED '\qmﬁr\qg-rs IUFHH 751.04 751.05 - - 251.05
Subsidiaries/Joint ventures
37 | Others 575.65 563.37 - ~-| 57566
311-3&3'! Sub-Total 6,800.11 1,833.89 - 9.42 | 1,169.22
TEagT & HicT ke e (50.16)
Provision held towards depreciation|
an/ Total 6,749.95 1,833.89 - 9.42 | 1,169.22
7) R freare /@29 : / o) Non-performing Investments:
eror . forefra ad 2015-16 | fafta ad 2014-15
| Particulars FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
fomig af & IRY A 9w 529.85 319.99
Opening balance as at the beginning of the financial year
1 3t & a¥ & 2R uR@e / Additions during the year since 1* April 148.55 226.16
3¢ 3@t § @1 / Reductions during the above period 57.26 16.30
ot o ) wnfier o gfer o 621.14 529.85
Closing balance at the close of the financial year
&R Pe1 WA=/ Total Provisions held 497.78 358.35
u) vadien Sl et afgial St fast 3 sz :
d) Sale & transfers of securities to /from HTM category:
#Rara Rerd §& & adam feenfdergar 8@ = o faxia af & 3R 3am G il & Fasl @ eadien 3
venes Aot # siaRa fear| g & semar eadion ot J/@ e o a1 FiaRor =8 g3l
During the current FY, the Bank shifted investments in Venture Capital Funds from HTM to AFS category in accordance
with extant RBI guidelines. Except for the above, there was no shifting of investments to/from HTM category.
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q iR @l @ wwe
F. Discl of Restructured A
erRIRe BT HR — Witam womeh ¥ st mmi"hgm'mnt’ﬁ: = am
= Type of Restructuring — Under CDR Mechanism Mechani Others Total
s1 | i o — = | = | = | = |
Asset Classification — W | v (R (@ | O | wee | wee | dfew (@i | dn | v | oo | Wi (wft | dm | wee | wee | Wi (@R | dm
Standard| Sub- |Doubtful Loss | Tolal [Standard| Sub- |Doubtful| Loss | Total |Standurd | Sub- |Doublfull Loss | Total |Standard | Sub- |Doubtful| Loss | Total
o1 4 Details ¥ Standznd Standand Standard Standard
1| fadft1ste® |omwmtat | 1| 3 s - 9 - - - - - w8 21| 33 - 22/ 169 24| 38 -
el & (iR [
Ha No. of
Restructured Accounts | Borrowers
asonApril1oftheFY  |omote | 96| 13008] 1122| - 32am| - A -] 4| {12872 3626 8396| -{134394123338[ 17030| 26522) -|1,668.71
(opening figures)* ;
outstanding
swyens| | < <] <] <] <] ] - | -] as0| o024 154 - 37| 460 024 134 - 637
Provision
thereon
2 | of & dRm e ki | Foweist - A 1 4 ¥ < < - - - 9 4 - - B 9l 4 1] - u
R uReiE @[S HEn
Erog No. of
Fresh restructuring during [Borrowers
the year T = {1218  -| 12218 - - = [ - 14060| 914| 027| -| 15000 14060 914| 12240 | 27213
Ammt_
FTUR A - - 1es| | 166 - - s - - 1m| om| 48| - 332] 17| oo 312 -] ass
Provision
thereon
3| fasdvm R |suReds! o0 o - - - - A4 - -4 - 3 4 =2 -3 a2 o -
WS &t H FE & T
Upgradations to No. of
Wﬂﬂ?ﬂ!hﬂ;:;? Borrowers
G wa | | - - 4 4 - 4 | A - 2s ean| e s 0| eam| -
Amount
SR FEGH - - - = - - - - = - 006 (0o (0.08) - 00| (on| 5) - -
St
thereon
4&1&%3@.%«3!:1@1&‘? 1 41 - - - 43 4 -
&3 Fee yau | we
3t/ greran sfefes i | No- of
TR # AR g (e
3 e P & IR 3 (TR | (946) 046 - -| o553 (7555)| (8501) ®5.01)
Y i & [Amount
w3 i anf petpenting
Restructured  standard [F79R ST80H - - - - (0:50) (0500 (0.50) (0.50)
advances which cease to |Provision
attract higher provisioning | thereon
and | or additional risk
weight at the end of the
FY and hence need not
be shown as restroctured
standard advances at the
beginning of the next FY
5| fasdmoniim | sowstst 3 3 - - A A A < a8 3] 15 -l a8 o 18 - -
@i @ FETE fT
o ikl o
muummm ts Borrowers
during the FY T 134.04)| 13404 I N L I o I ) - (6935)| @ao)| 15737 - -
Amount
outstanding
TR SEEE ok = = =] - - - -| (LBO)| L1e&4| 016 - (LB0)| 164 0.16 - 0.00
Provii
thereon
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Gl greifere el @ wwe
F. Disclosure of Restructured Accounts
el 31 TR — R someht ¥ sieta mwtm e 2
Type of Restructuring — Under CDR Mechanism o m"“""d““"s Others Total
2
51 | anfe wfifawor — s w= | Eil W |
Asset Classification —> " | W | Ew | wf | dm | v | wee | R (afr | dm | e | v | R (@ | dm | v | o | Wfen | @R | dm
Standasd| Sub- |Doubtful| Loss | Total |Stmdard| Sub- [Doubful| Loss | Tota) |Stndad | Sub- |Doubiful| Loss | Totl |Standard| Sub- |Doobifull Loss | Total
fror 4/ Details 4 Standard Standand Standard |Standard
6 |fmsdRm gkl | soRetEt 2 2 A A A A A w4 6 38 - 4 -8 - 40
i @ aed @ ¥ g |6 e
Write-offs of restructured | No. of
accounts during the FY | Borrowers
mtﬁr i 108.80) 1108.80) - - = - ={(128.79)| (14.29)| (22.81) (165.89) | (128.79)| (14.29)(13L61) -1 (274.69)
Amount
outstanding
FIR FiEEH = = = o = = -| (140)| (036)| (139) (335)| (L40)| (036)| (L39)f | (339)
Prowia
thereon
7 31“&%%‘&@ m - - 7 - 7 - - - - - a n 40 - 154 9 23 47 - 161
REE (@ | Een
m No. of
Restructured Accounts Borrowers
ason March 31 of the FY | gy ifir - -| 32865 -| 328.65 - - - - -[1,09421 7692| 8137| -1125249(1,00421| 7692| 41001 -|158L14
(closing figures)* Amount
| outstanding
FwyEaE| O -| O -| 1e6| -| 1es| - - | -| -| 2m| 14| 172 -| 584 27| 140 338 -| 7s0
Provision
thereon

e [T A & Fiwgl B Brea, i e g ar st s v (af o E)|

*Excluding the figures of Standard Restructured Advances which do not attract higher provisioning or risk weight (if applicable).

fomoht: g 2 & et o Ao SaREI & v ¥ 227,80 Frg o RN AR gfg A .76 B0 @ wrEwr Wi &1 w0 6 & Fiwe § T120.60 Rrg (22 JUREAT auT T2.58 ARG B W@
o il enfiver &, i el & o witager wefom we & /@ o0 /A #

Note:  Figures at Sr. No. 2 includes increase in outstanding of ¥27.80 crore & provision of 4.76 crore in respect of existing borrowers. Figures at Sr. No.6 includes ¥120.80 crore
(32 borrowers & provisions of ¥2.58 crore) which is reduction/recovery from existing restructured accounts by way of recovery.

B. s dogaRiRfor dah 3) aeh T e

G. Assets sold to Securitisation Company / Reconstruction Company

forefrar and it af

féron | Particulars FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15

@Al B §&4T / Number of Accounts* = =
TERI / SRR B S T Gl BT ot God (T gea) - -

Aggregate Value (net of provisions) of Accounts sold to SC /RC

He UTThet / Aggregate Consideration = =

Treer auf #F siafa @l & dae & age st sfawa - -

Additional Consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
Toraer 9 Heu & ufr e @w / &1 / Aggregate Gain / Loss over net Book Value = =

* fomrad 2015-16 & aRM, 7.02 X3 (&1a1 Aied qoud / 30 37 Jferdl) o faaaqef age @@ # e /a7 v IR
@I 35.25 IRIS P FabeT Hietbet U TR 3 @1 7/

* During the FY 2015-16, one prudentially written off borrowal account amounting to ¥7.02 crore (principal with interest/
other dues) was sold to ARC for the aggegrate consideration of ¥5.25 crore.
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3. | 31 AR 2016 T 31 AT 2015 D WA st & R gfergfar el § o e 7@ an
H. | There was no investments in security receipts during year ended March 31, 2016 and during the year ended March
31, 2015.
#. | axeran
I. | Liquidity
oo 3 fakeh gen snfRaal aen 2aansit o1 uRuaaar @ (3t vee grRT S fean man stk e et
3 fora o= frgam
Maturity pattern of rupee and foreign currency assets and liabilities (As compiled by the management and relied
upon by the auditors)
1idew | 1R af | s5ad &
a3y | St sk | afte IR (s akky| 7EdR
7 | Ttems Wk | 3adoe | safaw | adas it a4
Less than or | More than 1 | More than 3 | More than 5 | More than Total
equaltol | year upto3 | years upto 5 | years upto 7 | Seven years
year years years years
BT FRAT / Rupee assets 46,113 28,558 6,231 1,837 4,982 87,721
foaen g anft
(Fged )
Foreign currency assets
(Rupee Equivalent)
8feR / Dollar 1,495 630 1,383 609 1,887 6,004
TR / Euro 1,046 788 211 84 100 2,229
3 / Yen 654 1,003 923 1,033 458 4,071
fafeer uds / P = ~ = = = =
e 3Rl [ Total Assets 49,308 30,979 8,748 3,563 7,427 1,00,025
BT TN / Rupee liabilities 30,447 23,681 4292 5,566 19,709 83,695
foelt Hg agame
(Wged )
Foreign currency liabilities
(Rupee Equivalent)
ek / Dollar 143 300 1,357 592 2,908 5,300
TR / Buro 355 864 424 157 251 2,051
I/ Yen 349 735 852 847 1,252 4,035
fafewr wids / gep - - - - = =
e 2T / Total Liabilities 31,294 25,580 6,925 7,162 24,120 95,081
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51. | uReme™ uRom | Operating results
J. :
®. 9. o ffaad | faciaad
Sr. No. {Parciolans FY 2015-16 | FY 2014-15
) | sita oriha it & aftee & w9 § s sma/ 8.42 8.73
a) Interest income as a percentage to average working funds*
@) | 3ita orfEw it & afaea & wu § dx-amer s/ 0.29 033
b) Non-interest income as a percentage to average working funds
M | st eriee fftr & wftera & w0 & oferes o (e ) 2.80 3.03
c) Operating profit as a percentage to average working funds (before provisions)
u) | site srfReal o sl (s & fore e gd) 2.46 334
d) | Return on average assets (before provisions for taxation)
8 | ufa oiex) faw aw @) 111 134
e) Net Profit per employee (X crore)
*SgToT 3 | e #ON & awen w arer o wnfhe &1
* Interest income includes recoveries out of bad debts
T. | I R R IR e R fafma
K. | Forward Rate Agreements & Interest Rate Swaps
®. 9. Poveor i s fedaad | el ad
Sr. No. puirginss FY 201516 | FY 2014-15
i) fafoma a=RY & 3I'I§T-|'Iﬁ|33 et / The notional principal of swap agreements - =
i) | 39 BRR & T I UET GIRT STal G2 T I I B DIROT B aTelt gt = -
Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations
under the agreements
itf) | 5% fafemra & enfier @ o fore S g qifta wurf¥ds ~ =
Collateral required by the bank upon entering into swaps
iv) | 39 fafenra & 89 arer shfiaw =it @ Hasor - -
Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps
v) | fafma e & sfuaa gea - -
The fair value of the swap book
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2.

15 &R geadl & wae A faxor /

Details in respect of Interest Rate Derivatives:

o af forcfra ok

I Rirts FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15

qY & R Tore 70 vavTd sl § 88 st X ! ol ATHIT-id gt i (feraa-ar) / = =
Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
undertaken during the year (instrument — wise)

131 AT, SPRATUTT 51 g 58 101 & G Dl AT e 119 (ferae-ar) / = -
Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
outstanding as on March 31 (instrument — wise)

ToraT AR 3 JHIET I vaSt 88 SISl &} gE] B AHID qet - -
Y (ferga-ar) /

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
outstanding and not “highly effective” (instrument — wise)

T AR AT TE] Ui aT 48 STt &k el o AR 4ed (feread-ar) - -
Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding
and not “highly effective” (instrument — wise)

el A S BT USESIT | Disclosure of risk exposure in derivatives

]

®. OIS THEIDIVI/ a) Qualitative Disclosures

() @ = il v STarE H e ¥ U TS &) adn fafe Sien & e e s o g
TR el & | § & N g 7 gzrmﬂwﬁrﬁﬁﬁmwai%uﬁ.sﬁmqﬁ%ﬁﬁ;m
uRafda &| §o ogeaal & AR T8 axar g |

The Bank uses Derivatives for hedging of interest rate and exchange risk arising out of mismatch in the assets and
liabilities. All derivatives undertaken by Bank are for hedging purposes with underlying as Foreign Currency
borrowings, which are not MTM, but only translated. The Bank does not undertake trading in Derivatives.

(i) FraRke famor feen-Fder quar ararer Al a8 grr Feffa oa & S | e WA &
FANT |EH SR ¥ Tt B & e & foa s &1 st o wiel wae fyaxon & et sfa
&g yag wiuf/ars o 9 & s &

Internal Control guidelines and accounting policies are framed and approved by the Board. The derivative structure
is undertaken only after approval of the competent authority. The particulars of derivative details undertaken are
also reported to ALCO/Board.

(iii) ¥ Feae Gl F ge Afaw J Fues & ford gonferar FefiRa o &1 @ gae Hiel § 89 am a=-aa1 &
AT YT U & FTAR Tl &
The Bank has put systems in place for mitigating the risk arising out of derivative deals. The Bank follows the
accrual method for accounting the transactions arising out of derivative deals.
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ferira ad
FY 2015-16

g ad
FY 2014-15

Sr.

No.

a1 | Particulars

I e

Currency
Derivatives

&I51 aX
A

Interest rate
Derivatives

o e

Currency
Derivatives

&iel <X
o

Interest rate
Derivatives

G, AETS TSI

b) Quantitative Disclosures

I (ST Ferer re)

Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)

() U@ & AU/ For hedging

7,891.12

7,266.58

(i) IR F AT / For trading

T Teaferal & fere fafesa 1)

Marked to Market Positions [1]

G) 3R (+) [ Asset ()

318.52

(320.76)

(i) &=ar (~) / Liability (-)

9T SR (2) / Credit Exposure [2]

874.20

632.17

1S & H v Jied saed | 8 e 9Ha
(100* 9 01) /

Likely impact of one percentage change in
interest rate (100* PV01)

() 9@ FAH W/ On hedging derivatives

228.39

172.28

(i) MR @A T / On trading derivatives

T & SR gRefer siftraas v =g=aH 100*
drat o1

Maximum and Minimum of 100* PV01
observed during the year

(i) 9| W / On hedging

228.39/161.58

174.74/157.98

(i) @UR W / On trading
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Torcfra anf o ad

féraeon | Particulars FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15

WTGEI B 3BRA@E / Provisions and Contingencies

- g1 @ & g o & 3 <eife e uee vd AeRAaarE B
e faaRor

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure
in Profit and Loss Account

e = grogrr / wdas & fore smaa (75.22)¢ 54.54

Provisions for depreciation/NPI on Investment

iR frenfea anfiaat & foe yee= 296.91# (251.55)*

Provision towards NPA

e (SRRt @ snfedt / eaame & enfie €) & fere gmaers 459.01 698.11
Provision made towards Income tax (Including Deferred Tax Assets/Liability)

30 YTaET Bd FiAaare (Fguf faazor & @) 3.46 _

Other Provision and Contingencies (with details)$

* 3R frreames snfeat & foe wmaem 2252.42 R

* Net of additional NPA provision of ¥232.42 crore

# TCT WTaU™ @1 G 9 o 81 / Net of write back of floating provision.
$ WFIGSTTNGAl & [CT8 FTAe / Provision for standard asset.

e 9TaeT / Floating Provisions

e HTAE N Bl AR ey 2639.91 2639.91
Opening balance in the floating provisions account

gﬁﬂwwﬁaﬁ%m%mﬂﬁmmaﬁaaﬁmﬁﬁmaﬁm - =
A&

The quantum of floating provisions made in the accounting year / transferred
from stressed asset provision

orar-ad & R e e SmeRor & BRor 3ng S o i 306.00 =

Amount of draw down made during the accounting year*

FRER greea= @ # 79 99 2333.91 2639.91

Closing balance in the floating provisions account

* i 21 e 2015 & WReira Rord §& & 7 . SR, ewnsmge). 9. 1164/03.01.11/2015-16 & AIeas | I
FIAGH & FAR

* as per approval received from RBI vide RBI letter No.DBR.FID.N0.1164/03.01.11/2015-16 dated July 21, 2015.

FRfEfal ¥ 3ERe / Draw down from Reserves
Tieer af 3R 39 af & SR aRfEfaal @ o8 If¥ smeRa 78 & =Y

There is no draw down from reserves during the current year and previous year.
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frerEl #1 USE®RUT / Disclosure of Complaints
A. e ¥ / Customer Complaints

f&a%01/ Particulars

g ad
FY 2015-16

farea ad
FY 2014-15

¥ & R § dfed Rrerdl & g

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

a¥ & 2Ry Rierat & g

No. of complaints received during the year

59

32

¥ eRm freaRa Rt & e

No. of complaints redressed during the year

62

q¥ & 3 H cifad Riergar o e
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

B. 71 wreare gy fasan men siftifofa / Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman

a¥ & YR A Prfftad 7 i e sttfeial o e
No. of unimplemented Awards at the beginning of the year

af & SR Sfem elrarer g wiiva sftifoTal @ e

No. of Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman during the year

a¥ & AR Praff-aq sHf-oral o\

No. of Awards implemented during the year

a¥ & AR Praif-aq 7 f&d e HftfHoral St Hen

No. of unimplemented Awards at the end of the year

& a1 SR HBE Tl BT TDADIU
Disclosure of Letters of Comfort (LoCs) issued by banks

9§ & RM IR ¢ qal & faaxor, Fierd foxira gwE 3R ge & IR 750 T ol wEl & alerd

Tt famirg dgamt & faaxor = &

The particulars of Letters of Comfort (LoCs) issued during the year, assessed financial impact, and assessed
cumulative financial obligations under the LoCs issued in the past and outstanding is as under:

@ @8 / Crore)

e 31 9 2015 B
oo 3 & T
LoCs outstanding

as on March 31, 2015

af & 2RM IR
ue 3 W
LoCs issued
during the year

LoCs redeemed
during the year

a1 31 A 2016 B
oA A N > T
LoCs outstanding

as on March 31, 2016

wer 3 <
B T
No of LoC

f¥r

Amount

e 3 =
3 "
No of LoC

it

Amount

e 3 =@

: fdr
B T
NoofLec: | Amount

wa 3 |
3 =
No of LoC

f¥

Amount

2

251

1

0.87

1 0.11

2

3.27
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31 WTel, 2016 & JET-9A B SFIRIAT /| Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016
R @18 / Crore)

S | SoeeaR¥ aHA | Bancassurance Business:

aeg oY (Rreet o - g) & dRm §9 gR1 §9 vedRw &1 o1 sawa @i fosar .

The Bank has not undertaken any bancassurance business during the current year (Previous Year: Nil).

T | 49 vd 39e agai3it &1 suRkenas

Unamortised Pension and Gratuity Liabilities

Y 3R 39a 2gansi & Sifed FTUR ) yds faxiia af 3 JraisHT §078 oTHT STER IR IUAE] SRIaT ST &
Srifess /et @ gRa ey g1 @ § feran s &, 9@ oRkees T8 g .

The pension and gratuity liability are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each
financial year based on the projected unit credit method. The acturial gains/ losses are immediately taken to the profit
and loss account and are not amortized.

U | gfersgefi@<or/ Securitisation
Teet af 3k 39 af & 2Rm I o vadidt g P gemR e TE @

The Bank had no Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored during the current year and previous year.

V | mo1 g 4w | Credit Default Swaps

§& 701 g ol # Hegaer A8l axar
The Bank does not deal in credit default swaps.

Eis] 31%'{1&@” GEERER2] 3iT4a 317 &1 / The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

§1E & HRGHR / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
a9 fémie o gAY ROYE & IR / As per our report of even date
X! SRR US HHER
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR & 3. TIerarr wrs Tt I HAR BYL grrfer Rrarsit
o] S U.J. Lalwani Manoj Mittal Ajay Kumar Kapur  Kshatrapati Shivaji
Chartered Accountants ‘%@ JysafReyes  Jydafres segw vd yeu Free
) Chief General Manager ~ Deputy Managing  Deputy Mana Chairman &
UHIREA : 101569 S& : 4 ging e
FRN. : 101569W (Tt crar aféee) i Director Managing Director
(Corporate Accounts Vertical)

&f¥fa 2% / Darshit Doshi
HINER / Partner
UH. ¥. / M. No. : 133755

UH.®.41. SMfam= / SK.V. Srinivasan #IR. MW / R. Ramachandran
Has, 73 25, 2016 T291® / Director 429® / Director

Mumbai, May 25, 2016
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2016

31 9re, 2016 B THI T FT THal Yare faazor
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2016

®
Tl R i el
1. aRemem nfufaftat | od vaw
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
211523,69380 | EH-gIT W & TR @ gd Feraer e 1636,47,21,187
Net Profit before tax as per P & L Account
FrafafEa & foe TmriIs= / Adjustments for :
13,55,74,500 HeggT¥ / Depreciation 14,03,49,020
54,54,02,483 e & Faa EN® fore yTaem= 115,71,97,341
Provision for net depreciation in investments
(119,30,27,645) foran mar yTeeH (GFRiEA & §19) 170,14,30,345
Provisions made (net of write back)
(159,19,75,700) Frder fsht | @ (F1aet) / Profit on sale of investments (net) | (127,72,09,428)
e anfasit & fat ¥ @9/ Profit on sale of fixed assets 36,54,403
(18,25,59,111) 513l W U FTHIET/ Dividend Received on Investments (13,35,20,358) |  159,19,01,323
1886,57,83,907 uRemer! & Juifsfa 7@} / Cash generated from operations 1795,66,22,510
(aRarer sl @ Sgansi # uRad= § &)
(Prior to changes in operating Assets and Liabilities)
FepafeRea # fraer uRad= &g wwrie=
Adjustments for net changes in :
147,93,48,261 TTe], 3T / Current assets (622,93,43,579)
110,27,14,057 e A0 / Current liabilities 153,56,13,489
775,79,03,839 Tafsma f§@1 / Bills of Exchange 568,94,34,285
5725,68,49,021 UT Ud 30 / Loans & Advances (11074,23 44,445)
(4945,15,86,426) §Sl @ AT 99T 3177 JenRal ¥ Frae mitaar 11683,81,21,162
Net Proceeds of Bonds and Debentures & other borrowings
(3981,44,69,425) YT STAT / Deposits received 2128,30,59,911
(2166,92,40,673) 2837,45,40,823
(280,34,56,766) 4633,11,63,333
(603,28,09,971) G238 m / Payment of Tax (585,00,47,507) | (585,00,47,507)
(883,62,66,737) ufarem nfafaferat & e we< yar 4048,11,15,826
Net Cash flow from operating Activities
Fren nfefaftal @ -od) yae
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
(25,01,81,961) TR s arf+ae () faga/Net (Purchase)/Saleof fixed assets (18,65,60,057)
172,18,72,668 et @ e (Fo)fowareas (4539,91,71,680)
Net (Purchase)/sale/redemption of Investments
18,25,59,111 o3t o= ST ST / Dividend Received on Investments 13,35,20,358
165,42,49,818 T nfefaferat # sges Fraer et (4545,22,11,379)
Net cash used in Investing Activities

190



Annual Report 2015-16 -

WRd 7y e faem &
SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA

31 A, 2016 B FHIG 98 BT Tl YT faavor
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2016

)
31 7, 2015 e | Eastiont 319, 2016 | 317%, 2016
March 31, 2015 / March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2016
3. Toredireor nifaftal @ Fod gaw
Cash flow from Financing Activities
-| IR YEN 7 IR NfH & el @ s 750,00,00,000
Proceeds from issuance of share capital & share premium
(130,98,21,008) Sforact SroRt X ETHIY vd AT W aX (134,63,89,870)
Dividend on Equity Shares & tax on Dividend
(130,98,21,008) Terchra aferfafral # SgTh Fram st 615,36,10,130
Net cash used in Financing Activities
(849,18,37,928) | 4. <l Bd TAbal WGed A fae agrel/(@H) 118,25,14,577
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
1927,72,27801 | 5. 3@ & IR # x| B4 Aaal GHGed 1078,53,89,874
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period
1078,53,89,874 | 6.  3altl &t TN TR Fepal U ebal THGET 1196,79,04 451
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period
7. 3fafe & 3ia A ol v Aaal-ged IR #§ fFrafeRaa enfie &
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period includes
6,89,676 819 # @l / Cash in Hand 6,68,296
39,55,53,877 d% ¥ T1e @Id # 3RS / Current account balance with Bank 28,06,91,058
50,00,00,000 @3]?[ :E !‘ Mutual Funds 12,27,85,059
988,91,46,321 FHRITERT / Deposits 1156,37,60,038
fewoh: Tt yaE faaor R G AETR HN (FEUITHE) ERT K € TE-3 (eiita) Haar gag faaxor #
fafafée sy faftr & saR &R fosar man 21
Note : Cash Flow statement has been prepared as per the Indirect Method prescribed in A5-3 (Revised) ‘Cash Flow Statement’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
HE@YUT orar Afed / Significant Accounting Policies XV
o femmaolt / Notes to Accounts XV1
I ﬂﬂ'ﬁ%’d’f qo-uF & 34 3T €| / The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
&18 & HRYTIAR / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
|9 faid @ gARI RUIE & 3R / As per our report of even date
F SIRax U8 H[HER
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR g 3, wfieramiI e et FoT QAR PYX &t FRr@rsi
TG TR UlJ. Lalwani Manoj Mittal Ajay Kumar Kapur  Kshatrapati Shivaji
Chmed_ﬁggﬂgms TR WydafRee  JyeufRve e vd gew FRve
EWSRE : 101569 S Chief General Manager ~ Deputy Managing  Deputy Managing Chairman &
FRN. : 101569W (Frfira erar aféae) Director Director Managing Director
2f¥fa 2reh / Darshit Doshi (Corporate Accounts Vertical)
WA / Partner
BH. 9. / M. No. : 133755
_ 9. &.41. MTaT / SK.V. Srinivasan HIR. IS / R. Ramachandran
&g, 7 25, 2016 feeres / Director =1 / Director

Mumbai, May 25, 2016
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wWad aE-gias! ot Rued

yfa
Freer® dea
R o7y, JaT faar §&

wAfera forehta faawolt @ wafta Raid

1 WRarg oy A faew do (@) aor sue
TEUs v Gea sl (d, 396 98ue v
HEan ges fHees g’ & &) 35 31 AT 2016 O
& W it ol stk em-aif+ & e feamor
a1 31 AT 2016 B TG o B TR Tl JaTE
faazor sk wEayet aar-ifodl aar 37 s
g (wfed faxira faawor) o arar-adten & &1

wifea fadlla faavol & ddg & us=m &1
IREa™

e @ wAfea fxfa Rafa, wfea foxia o d-
e 3k e it yae & wRa § s alk
W ARG AEieA gl iR 9RO 996l aEeR
HIH gRT SR @R AGie- AFd & AR qet
3k e ferfa o™ ot oeat & aR o -
e faeitar faavolt e s facita gaar & aner
R 34 fadiia ool & dar &= & foe & @
Yeu IR 2| 39 IuRadd § a0 o anfaal
@ RET & fore e & yata sifera @ o,
arEest 9 3= AAtaasi @ A AR 3@
AT T, JUTH ST il @ gae 3R 393,
3itfacagoef aur faasawa fofa qen sgam @
aan v IR faxira feaaT daR e, fearfaa
q yraeT=ia ST | A §, S oo SifHerar
o wiraar AR dyofar @ g & gumaygef adie @
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Independent Auditors” Report

To
The Board of Directors of
Small Industries Development Bank of India

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Small Industries Development
Bank of India (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries and
associates (the Bank, its subsidiaries and associates
constitute “the Group”) as on March 31, 2016 which
comprises the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2016, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss and consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information
(“the consolidated financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Bank’s Management is responsible for the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
on the basis of separate financial statements and other
financial information regarding components that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the applicable Accounting Standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records for safeguarding of the
assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of internal
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® @R & 3R 3 ¥ fariiar faasol & R ==
7 ygfaasur & gfe & grifie &, s st 3k
3faa TReafa zafa & qon graes & R a7 gieaw
Hurfaa marme fheaess ¥ g &, 3k stfe
yget et T, fae 3ua d@ & yeee 3 e
faria faavor doR &3 & ReT @ fEn 2

AaEr-ia®] o1 ITRaie

BART JTRalUcE 34 gHfod fanrg faazon w® =
I<h BT & 51 BRI CTET-URI &7 UR 3Tenie &

T 3O CrET-URIET SR Sl TEThR
BRI 3R T ET-RIET-AH & FTHT 699 o &1 37
@ # il @ o an dfoe samst & e
= AR oErwiEr o areEr 9 e 39 geR
o= o5 Jmeaw gan o1 9o o fawira faamor qeows
e & g E|

AT & Fiia T fera faritar faaxon & wf¥mat
quT ydeAl & R A AR favas g g
TR B Wieansi & Eae IEa 8| g T8 Hiwan
aarrer & frofa w ek ot €1 3o e
forira foazolt & drar-ag ¥ serar Feaw caEs
frear-gom & Sfaw & geaie ot e &1 5=
SfE! & qeaied aRa T9d AE-RIES I6 gRT
e farita faavor o o o sfaa yegfaasor
@ gite | urifiie siafke friaor ) faar axar 2,
e Bt Aran-gfesam dur & s 5t 3w uRkfeifaat
& fore 3uges & | forg s Sewr wven & SiaRke
a0 &t guEcESdr ) @IS 9 T BT el
2| e ¥ gges aEie Aiaal af 3ugenar
IR ¥ & yeod g1 fove e dEieT FgEET &
sitfaca ik wfea farita faaxont & ge=f= &
Hedia o1 Wt e &

#rar-gdiam @1 ROl / Auditors’ Report

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Bank’s management, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Bank’s management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.
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&ART fawar & o & 3t arar-utan ymor g fone
& 3k 3= erETlteet 3 A i e s A
i ulkede # sfeafaa st Rae & sguR aar-
e & 3 yamoT g foee €, @ vt € stk wfea
Torirar faazor & wea & rar-udian daet g9RY gRon
& fere 3ugs IR yem axa E|

Hasd

AR A # 3R gt aftreew o @ &W fae
T WEH & IFER R sfe A fiw
‘I A 9ve uRkade ¥ Sftefea §, 9eoe v
wedn et & faftm faxitg fyavolt qar s=
foeira goem & g § 3= aaradas & Rard
& Hee-soR, Hfed faciia faavor ¥Ra # dm=ge:
"= erare fagral & gy frfafad @ awdht
iRk e Reafer e @:

) THE & FE-IS D TAT 31HRE 2016 &5 AR I
JeIa & T A,

ii) 3P ARIE B TG a¥ & o TE B AW &
fore wafena emyr-aif+ @rar faavor & e =)

iii)y 3 akrE @ wAa o & foe g & T
yarg & fere wfea el gare faaxor & A
A

Forel| fawa

&n Frafefad & 3 o g axa &-

1) 6 FEan e & IR-Ge & e #§ wafea
ot & e | o fewoft W 4w Sk 4g, o
yee & IR frdet & ¥ ol dra = @
3R 3% fere gof sraen fesar mar 1
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We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their report referred to in the ‘Other Matters’
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statement.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and on
consideration of the report of the other auditor on
separate financial statements and on other financial
information of the subsidiaries and associates, as
mentioned in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph below, the
Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair

view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

i)  in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31* March
2016,

ii) in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit
& Loss Account, of the profits of the Group for
the year ended on that date,

iii) Inthe case of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,
of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended
on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to:

a) Notenos4B and 4D of Annexure I to Consolidated
Accounts with regard to non-consolidation of 6
associates wherein as per the management the
carrying amount of the investments are not
realisable and are fully provided for.
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2) 7 wEant Swens & R & gae ¥ gufed
ol & Igay | o fewoh e 4 sk 4 9,
Ja=E % 3ER Heeaqel ges el & 3R gufee
o & fore 37 R foar =@ fasar mar &1

39 I & G- H g9 A @l g Falei el 2|
I AR

EH 3 WETI® HeenEt & fasita faaron/fasdia gemr
TIET-URY & STE) @t | 31 A 2016 P THIG a¥ & Fb
farira faaxor # 58,73,33,04,600/- @ et FnfRerl,
%3,80,35,46,426/- T Pt o1 IR 224,30,89,18,783/-
@1 TH1aer o YT e &, S aifea faxiia faavor
& forar mar @1 &9 1 TEAT G & faxia faaRon
foria guem & f srarodien 98 &, e 31
et 2016 B A a¥ & wgE 3§ Fraer af @ T
43,12,120/- &1 T, Y AT 2015 B TH 3TP A @T-
Wi fare femira faaxor R smenfa an, 3k 5 anfea
Terirar faawor & forar wan @1 3 faxiig faaxor wd 3=
forira o= 3 arErTEs g1 arEr-wifE
foma Rui yewe= 3 & ya= ot &, 3R 7 9%
39 9EOs U4 Wedlil 9widl & ey ¥ wHfed
feral 3k et o Heg &, wfed foxdia faawor
» gag ¥ gt w7 3R ey Rl gqofaar @R
araE-wres o R w & smenfa &1

TRt foxira faaxor & 31 9= 2016 & ToTa a9 &
e wgg @1 22,00,08,894/- @1 Triae ey ot e ot
enfirer fosan man &, 3 4 wEanh dwenst & dag o
wfea foxita faaror & faar mn 2, o= fosfta
fa=vi/ferita a=n o & aar-wiE T8 & 81 I
fordita faavorfaria gemm R-arar-wifia € stk e
y§=e g1 9 fove e 2 3R ST a6 39 TEas e

#rar-gdiam @1 ROl / Auditors’ Report

b) Notenos4C and 4D of Annexure I to Consolidated
Accounts with regard to non-consolidation of 7
associates, as in view of the management these
are not significant components and hence not
considered for consolidation.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements/financial
information of the 3 subsidiaries, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of ¥58,73,33,04,600/- as
at March 31, 2016, total revenue of ¥3,80,35,46,426/- and
net cash flows amounting to ¥24,30,89,18,783/- for the
year then ended, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. We also did not audit the financial
statements/financial information of the 1 associate in
whose Group’s share of net loss amounting to
34,312,120/- for the year ended March 31, 2016, based
on its audited financial statement for the year ended
March 2015, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements and other
financial information have been audited by other
auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the
Management, and our opinion and our report on the
consolidated financial statement, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries and associate, is based solely on the
report of the other auditors.

The Consolidated financial statement also includes the
Group's share of net profit of ¥2,00,08,894/- for the year
ended March 31, 2016, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of 4 associates, whose
financial statements/ financial information has not been
audited by us. The financial statements/ financial
information are unaudited and have been furnished to

195




- aiitfe yferdas 2015-16

AR o7y I faera da

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA

arar-udias! @t RalE / Auditors’ Report

Tt sl & wa g § waiea et 3R g@wel
@ Hag &, Fafed foxia faazor & dag # et I
3R et Rt gofaar 0 -drar-wifea faxdta
faaruiffaita g = smenfRa 21 afe sud weas
vd HEanN Heemai ot erar-ulte o 7 g o 36D
URUTHRE®Y JT 31 ATE 2016 WHE & @79 & ey )
T YUTE UST 8raT, B9 39 W fewoh ax= & e
&1 R T ¥ 3R g g1 & YaH @ TE aeT
T WEaRvn & FgeR A forita faro/farita @
e & fore srefnfa =& &)

wafed foira fdavor R aaR 33, R aEr sl
R e e orf e 39 Rovef ik g g=r
yarioTe foeitar faaxonfarta o w aarty fsfzar
@ gfc I 59 dag § yrifie = 21

= fafts vd fafsrame sdanat @ wefta Rad

&4 Raré axa & foe

1. d% & geu= 3 gafed foxfta faaxor wreda
TEl EER M R SR aEied AFS
(osr)21, “w@fea faxita faawor, aaios a9s
(eew)23, “Heras St # faer & fore e fea
Torcirar faor & oo o saTeT aer 8,
IS WEIS R TEant S & yAS-yaD
i faaott & smoR ) dar foe €1

2. THN 9E WA GO R TR0 An 3R e
fooe &, ot &Y wataw seRT 3t favara &
FER g Fafea foadra fawor & o
e & RIT W IS F AR TH IR
Iy araT 2 |
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us by the Management and our opinion and our report
on the consolidated financial statement, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiary and associates, is based
solely on such unaudited financial statement / financial
information. We are unable to comment upon resultant
impact, if any, on the Group’s share of profit as at
March 31, 2016, had the aforesaid associates been
audited. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us by the Management, these
financial statements /financial information are not
material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement is
not qualified in respect of this matter with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the

other auditors and the financial statements / financial
information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We report that:

1. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared by the Bank’s Management in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards
(AS) 21, “Consolidated Financial Statements”,
Accounting Standards (AS) 23, “Accounting for
Investments in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements” issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and on basis of
the separate financial statements of the Bank, its
subsidiaries and associates.

2.  Wehave sought and obtained all the information
and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements and have found them to be
satisfactory.
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3. BUR! I H, &l 9o mzi?ﬁ wAfea o In our opinion, proper books of account as
RraRon R a3 & e ¥ s -t reqited by law.sslging fo prepéraiocsof fhe
% : o8 RaYet aforesaid consolidate ancial statement have
B i & AR I e & been kept so far as it appears from our examination
T &, 3b QIAT-e! dIR aR Ha el DA & of those books and the reports of the other
IR rfdr Jugs Era-aa @ 18 # | AN
4. 79 RuE & wafa wifea qoew, fea The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
aify 5 3R ' 5 Statement of Profit and Loss Account and the
Gy il S Ll Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
Taaxor wifea Taeita faaxor R a9 & 3899 this Report are in agreement with Books of
¥ @ TS @ar-afeal & ST = Account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.
5. E'Fnﬁ g ﬁ' 3'3@\‘-5 wafed faeha faavor SILN In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated
dEi AFD B K15 R3] gl financial statements comply with the applicable
Accounting Standards.
X! SRS US ASFER For Borkar & Muzumdar
-‘qqa m Chartered Accountants
o <. 1101569 Firm Registration No.101569W
Rf Darshit Doshi
ard Partner

Membership No. 133755
HEgdT 4. 133755

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2016

: T
femre: 25 WS 2016
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gRR¥E - |1/ Appendix - 1T

31 A, 2016 BT TAfHa Je-UF / Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016

®
Y30 ed 3T / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 31 A, 2016 31 9, 2015
SCHEDULES | March31,2016 | March 31,2015
g3t / Capital I 486,98,22,500 450,00,00,000
&, sty sk fft@i / Reserves, Surplus and Funds 11 11230,06,69,051 9381,13,60,325
ST / Deposits I 20575,12,27,905|  13446,81,67,994
JUR / Borrowings \Y 42356,68,51,125|  30672,87,29,963
3I=J YUCU Td YTGUH / Other Liabilities and Provisions \ 6925,96,89,195 6836,06,06,711
it @ T /Deferred Tax Liability 41,74,30,482 122,51,33,111
4N /Total 81616,56,90,258 |  60909,39,98,104
i /ASSETS
Faal Ud §o TR / Cash and Bank Balances VI 3285,38,58,558 1046,44,60,399
391 / Investments viI 7126,29,58,093 2962,78,33,463
VT U4 313 / Loans & Advances VIII 68873,79,41,265|  55342,59,38,200
ReR 3R / Fixed Assets IX 210,57,37,391 206,21,60,820
33 Rt / Other Assets X 2120,51,94,951 1351,36,05,222
AN /Total 81616,56,90,258 |  60909,39,98,104
FSHHEAE 2IaTE / Contingent Liabilities X1 10410,76,98,369 7640,76,79,911
e Hitadl quT ora-fewuiit (FEe 1)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Annexure I)
I W qer1-97 @ 314 3 &1 / The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
§1€ & FSYHR / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
¥ f&mie o MW$Mf As per our report of even date
g e 3. A e
ForBORKAR & MUZUMDAR & 3. : LR 3T TR T ERICANGIE]
3 . Lalwa}m Manoj Mittal Ajay Kumar Kapur  Kshatrapati Shivaji
Chartered Accountants il b WMﬁ?:ﬂﬁ 3 yee e eay ud yey e
; er. ager puty Managing  Deputy Managing Chairman &
FRN. : 101 5]5{9)1369 1 (ﬁmﬁa‘ QLI aﬁfa;a} Director Director Managing Director
N (Corporate Accounts Vertical)
af¥fa a9l / Darshit Doshi
WRIER / Partner

UH. 9. / M. No. : 133755

3R, XWTe / R. Ramachandran
f¥e91® / Director

v9.%. 41, MfHa/= / S.K.V. Srinivasan

&g, WS 25, 2016 29 / Director

Mumbai, May 25, 2016
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31 |, 2016 B GHIE a9 BT GAfba ary-zi @@

Consolidated Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2016

wifafee sRf&fT & saxor
Transfer to Statutory Reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934

®

313 | INCOME 31 =, 2016 31 #re, 2015
SCHEDULES | March 31,2016 | March 31,2015

751 U4 ST / Interest and Discount XII 5879,07,90,854 5498,92,61,930
= A / Other Income X 281,25,34,352 254,64,25,750
N/ Total 6160,33,25,206 5753,56,87,680
Y | EXPENDITURE
o757 vd faxita YHR / Interest & Financial charges 3745,39,10,605 3373,72,34,139
URee™ & / Operating Expenses X1V 431,90,42,570 455,94,83,423
WTaE Ud PRHS 309 / Provisions & Contingencies 234,87,18,729 (197,01,25,162)
R/ Total 4412,16,71,904 3632,65,92,400
X-gd T4 / Profit before Tax 1748,16,53,302 2120,90,95,280
Fmaax & fore wraem (@ fewoft &, 26) 582,33,90,333 514,51,20,017
Provision for Income Tax (Refer note no. 26)
AT SR-HIATS [(3nTe)/aaa (80,77,02,628) 186,54,43,928
Deferred Tax Adjustment [(Asset) / Liability]
Hednit weenst & srst=/(@) o fewn 1,57,86,774 2,19,54,949
Share of earning/(loss) in associates
TR-UZGIT 9 / Profit after Tax 1248,17,52,371 1422,04,86,284
3T T / Profit brought forward 61,30,43,673 53,92,84,228
oot emH/(&TF) / Total Profit / (Loss) 1309,47,96,044 1475,97,70,512
fafrs | Appropriations
| it # o/ 1011,66,00,000 1190,60,49,385
Transfer to General Reserve
Fra-aR AT~ 1961 B €RT36(1) (vili) S 3entar ferey amféaferd gma=or 80,00,00,000 80,00,00,000
Transfer to Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of The Income Tax Act, 1961
wrarg Rerd do aiftrferng 1934 & ey 45 - I S iaa 13,18,69,340 -
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31 |, 2016 D) GHIG a9 BT FHfda ary-gi @@

Consolidated Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2016 ®

31 wref, 2016 31 5iref, 2015
SCHEDULES March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

34 [ Others

Fdwr 3aR-TgE aRfERT # FaRor 15,78,97,722 5,91,56,175
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve

w1 Fearor f4fé # 31=aR0T / Transfer to Staff Welfare Fund 1,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
SIIRT UR FATHIET / Dividend on Shares 94,68,10,409 112,50,00,000
STHIST WX &% / Tax on Dividend 20,50,44,472 23,65,21,279
FUTT -8+ Era F ey 72,65,74,101 61,30,43,673
Surplus in Profit & Loss account carried forward

AN/ Total 1309,47,96,044 1475,97,70,512
wfer SR Her/faafie 315 / Basic/Diluted Earning Per Share 26.37 31.60

Hevayuf crare et aan oot (srEe 1)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Annexure I)

I SOl TH-B o &1 3T FAE | / The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.

1€ & MERHR / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
w9 f&mie @ gAY ROl & AR/ As per our report of even date
P SIRaK U8 A5HER
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR & 3. TIerart wrat fier H HAR YL grafer Rrarsit
9 A = UlJ. La.lwa?m Manoj Mittal Ajay Kumar Kapur  Kshatrapati Shivaji
Chartered Accountarits 1%@:{31;13% wysafRes  JwywwafRye segw vd yeg FRee
UEERE : 101569 3G Chief General Manager  Deputy Managing  Deputy Managing Chairman &
FRN. : 101569W tﬁmﬁa’ o T aﬁ;—dﬁ) Director Director Managing Director
(Corporate Accounts Vertical)
&f3fa 29l / Darshit Doshi
THER / Partner
UH. 9. / M. No. : 133755
U9, .41, MHamE / SK.V. Srinivasan AR, IFAET / R. Ramachandran
Has, 7§ 25, 2016 f&ees / Director f&915 / Director

Mumbai, May 25, 2016
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®

Y31t e 3T / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

31 Arel, 2016
March 31, 2016

31 \rel, 2015
March 31, 2015

FIYA | SCHEDULE

Y3h / Capital

(@) wiftigse G3M / (a) Authorized Capital

- $ferae) TR T (210/- Hfcr ¥R vt &X ;¥ 75,00,00,000 $act 2RR)
- Equity Share Capital (75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each)

750,00,00,000

750,00,00,000

- T B g (210/- wfer SroR &t &= & 25,00,00,000 Te AR 9R)

- Preference Share Capital (25,00,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥10/- each)

250,00,00,000

250,00,00,000

(@) =Y, i 3R gPar g5t / (b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

- $feract IR Yo (210/- wfer droR bt X ¥ 48,60,82,250 Ffaact 9R)
- Equity Share Capital (48,69,82,250 Equity Shares of T10/- each)

486,98,22,500

450,00,00,000

- AT 9R UM / Preference Share Capital

i/ Total

486,98,22,500

450,00,00,000

Al | SCHEDULE II

FiRfafem, sty iR Mt / Reserves, Surplus and Funds

@) AIRT@RET / A) Reserves

i)\ ARTERAT [ General Reserve

- 3797 919 / Opening Balance

7658,27,79,622

6468,17,73,193

- @Y & &R URAEH /Additions during the year

1012,44,85,755

1190,10,06,429

- ¥ & @R 398N / Utilisations during the year

- f%1 919 /Closing Balance

8670,72,65,377

7658,27,79,622

ii) 3roR NTaT / Share Premium

- 31 99 / Opening Balance

-a¥ % 2R uRae /Additions during the year

713,01,77,500

- ¥ & &R 39T / Utilisations during the year

- 3t 919/ Closing Balance

713,01,77,500
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®
Y3t g9 3TamE / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 31 97ef, 2016 | 31 W, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31,2015
i) Ty siRf&fRrai / specific Reserves
o) = aIRf&fi/ a) Investment Reserve
- 31 919 / Opening Balance 55,19,63,645 55,19,63,645
- g4 & R uRk@efs /Additions during the year = =
-g¥ & &R 3941 / Utilisations during the year = =
- gfer 99 /Closing Balance 55,19,63,645 55,19,63,645
W) s siftifeom, 196135t e 36 (1)(vili) & SR ff¥fa vd il Ry axfifema
b) Special Reserve created and maintained u/s 36 (1) (viii) of The Income Tax Act, 1961
- 31 99 / Opening Balance 1277,00,00,000  1197,00,00,000
- & R URae /Additions during the year 80,00,00,000 80,00,00,000
-@§ & SR 3941 / Utilisations during the year - -
- 8% 919 /Closing Balance 1357,00,00,000|  1277,00,00,000
) wRera Rard do st 1934 @Y ar 45 - IR & sierta ghom wifafte
aRfafy
c) Statutory Reserve created u/s 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act.
- 319 919 / Opening Balance =
-a¥ & &R uRael /Additions during the year 13,18,69,340
-3 & dR 39N / Utilisations during the year
- 31 919 /Closing Balance 13,18,69,340
H) 370 AR/ d) Other Reserves
i) a9 3aR-gga ARFERT /investment Fluctuation Reserve
- 317 99 / Opening Balance 52,56,48,130 46,64,91,955
- & <R ufRkaef /Additions during the year 15,78,97,722 5,91,56,175
- @ & SR 9T / Utilisations during the year
- §fd1 99 /Closing Balance 68,35,45,852 52,56,48,130
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®
Y30 €9 3T / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 319, 2016 | 31 W, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31,2015
(@) @rH - g1+ @ 3 S/ B) Surplus in Profit and Loss account 72,65,74,101 61,30,43,673
() fAf¥i / ) Funds
®) T gfaact Fftr / a) National Equity Fund
- 3 Y / Opening Balance 254,08,68,273|  247,11,20,023
-a¥ & 2R uRaef= /Additions / Write back during the year 1,31,93,218 6,97,48,250
-a¥ & SR 39T / Utilisations during the year = =
- §R1 919 / Closing Balance 255,40,61491|  254,08,68,273
@) TG BT T8 / b) Staff Welfare Fund
- 3 99 / Opening Balance 22,70,56,982 22,07,97,120
-3 & 2R uRaefs /Additions during the year 3,36,40,020 2,00,00,000
- g% & 3 394N / Utilisations during the year 1,54,85,257 1,37,40,138
- §fe1 919 /Closing Balance 24,52,11,745 22,70,56,982
) 34 / ¢) Others - -
ar | Total 11230,06,69,051|  9381,13,60,325
et | SCHEDULE 111
JH1 | Deposits
®) WaEfti ST/ A) Fixed Deposits 825,12,27,905 1157,69,17,994
@) &1 ¥/ B) From Banks
®) Y&, oY Ud Weaw 3aW gt e & siaia / 10000,00,00,000|  10289,12,50,000
a) Under MSME Refinance Fund
@) &, T Ud Heaw Ja Shiaw Yan i & St / 1750,00,00,000|  1500,00,00,000
b) Under MSME Risk Capital Fund
M - faedh IR S &3 B FB ¥/ o) Others -From Foreign & Private Sector Banks s =
H) UHUHUAS YR Aqrmian e & st 500,00,00,000 500,00,00,000
d) Under MSME India Aspiration Fund
q) THEHERs & B W S fft 2014-15 & sieia 2500,00,00,000 =
e) Under Fund for Venture Capital in MSME sector 2014-15
f)  yrerfie &7 ¥ Heftd siaxie & Jata 5000,00,00,000 -
f)  Under Priority Sector Shortfall
39-TNT (W) / Subtotal (B) 19750,00,00,000 | 12289,12,50,000
N1/ Total 20575,12,27,905 | 13446,81,67,994
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®
Y3t g9 3TEmE / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 31 97ef, 2016 | 31 W, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015
e / SCHEDULE IV
3a1RRAi / Borrowings
) 4R # 34T / Borrowings in India
®) WRaa Raid §5 ¥ / a) From Reserve Bank of India - -
W) URT WHR ¥ (WRT TRBR gR1 e &fvs wfee) / 2356,12,00,839  3084,04,85,859
b) From Government of India (including Bonds subscribed by GOI )
) @fvg ud f&8TR/ ) Bonds & Debentures 13077,60,00,000|  10443,60,00,000
") 3 Tl ¥ / d) From Other Sources
- aTTfa® 93 / Commercial Paper 9090,00,00,000  6625,00,00,000
- 31T JH19T U / Certificate of Deposits 3081,00,00,000 -
- & A Traftr 707 / Term Loans from Banks 760,73,58,503 887,79,89,157
- rafer g 3eTRAT / Term Money Borrowings - =
- 310 | Others 2149,42,56,515|  398,77,06,490
39-3171 / Subtotal () 30514,88,15,857 | 21439,21,81,506
ID 9Re | 91E% ITRET / Borrowings outside India
(@) FewETY, FTHAI / (a) KFW, Germany 1714,36,44,616  1207,58,56,266
(@) UM SIS D-3TIRIH T (SIS / 4832,53,51,698|  4264,85,08,020
(b) Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)
(m smEeEes, A9/ (¢) [FAD, Rome 131,44,98429|  128,75,19,696
(&) faea §&/ (d) World Bank 4661,92,78563|  3160,27,74,690
(8) 3 /(e) Others 501,52,61,962 472,18,89,785
39-TNT / Subtotal (I1) 11841,80,35,268 |  9233,65,48,457
4N/ Total (1 & I) 42356,68,51,125 30672,87,29,963
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®

Y3t ed 2T / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 319ref, 2016 | 31 %, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015

FTA / SCHEDULE V
=g AU WG / Other Liabilities and Provisions:
3ufed &15T / Interest Accrued 266,45,52,527|  301,45,42,566
31 (JTaen fed) / Others (including provisions) 4817,06,23,603|  4639,93,01,378
=it 7a1 & 3aR-Te1@ &g S / 1398,70,64,312|  1443,14,85,860
Provisions for Exchange Rate Fluctuation
T Rt & fere e e sl waar / 328,5593,872|  315,37,55,628
Contingent provisions against standard assets
SRATTeI @THIST (GTHTeT X @R &) / Proposed Dividend (including tax on dividend) 115,18,54,881|  136,15,21,279
Nt/ Total 6925,96,89,195|  6836,06,06,711
Fnfedi / ASSETS
Al / SCHEDULE VI
) 3 d P / Cash & Bank Balances
1. & ¥ Fedr 3R wera Rerd d 3 aferey 6,74,499 6,92,473

Cash in Hand & Balances with Reserve Bank of India

2. 30 d@! # a2y / Balances with Other Banks

(@) IRAH/ (@) In India

i) de @@l A /in current accounts 27,90,41,457 18,00,04,333
i)y 3 f989 @l #F /in other deposit accounts 2408,75,33,062  121,77,07,232
(@) ¥R & GER/ (b) Outside India
i) @] @l ¥ /in current accounts 20,48,368 21,61,73,877
i) 3 989 @Il # /in other deposit accounts 848,45,61,172|  884,98,82,484
4Nt/ Total 32853858558 1046,44,60,399
e / SCHEDULE VII

@91/ Investments [YT@EI B BB / net of provisions]

@) TP IEI URETE / A) Treasury operations

1. % 3R U5 TSRI B Frgferdi / Securities of Central and State Governments | 685,91,44,458|  917,02,67,984
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®
¥l /| ASSETS 3197, 2016 | 319w, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015
2. @ iR forirg Twem3it & 919R / Shares of Banks & Financial Institutions 23,95,12,137 23,95,12,137
3. dot AR faxirg Hwensit & dfvgw ik fEdasf / 2359,82,58,840(  531,10,90,288
Bonds & Debentures of Banks & Financial Institutions
4. 3 gioF! & wie, 3R, divgw 3k fda / 248,80,48,275|  247,81,38,842
Stocks, Shares, bonds & Debentures of Industrial Concerns
5. Frearafy faer Eﬁ"fﬂg AT / Short Term Bills Rediscounting Scheme - -
6. 34/ Others 2505,70,59,819|  325,00,00,000
39-TNT () / Subtotal (A) 5824,20,23,529  2044,90,09,251
W) G UREe™ / B) Business Operations
1. &t 3k T Gvens3it & 9 / Shares of Banks & Financial Institutions 61,12,61,440 60,92,61,440
2. @i vd foeira e & dfvgw iR fedasi / 592,10,312 5,26,77,312
Bonds & Debentures of Banks & Financial Institutions
3. S afoomr & ©ie, 3R, dvgw AR e 369,79,19,478|  502,26,43,504
Stocks, Shares, bonds & Debentures of Industrial Concerns
4, e GGAT # 9997 / Investment in Subsidiaries - -
5. 3/ Others 865,25,43,334 349,42,41,956
39-TNT (W) / Subtotal (B) 1302,0934,564|  917,88,24,212
NI (@+) | Total (A+B) 7126,29,58,093|  2962,78,33,463
FIYA! | SCHEDULE VIII
Y1 B4 A0 | Loans & Advances [T & €& / Net of Provisions]
o) FrafeReaa o gafdw/ A) Refinance to
- & g Ta<ia T / Banks and Financial Institutions 49209,31,38,280| 38098,83,05,725
- 3109 fére I / Micro Finance Institutions 2589,54,57,707 |  1602,98,74,150
- i & fadry aafardf / NBEC 5677,54,89,100|  4054,29,66,100
-faar mm% / Bills Rediscounted - -
- 3 (§TE FeTddn) / Others ( Resource Support) = -
39-TNT (&) / Subtotal (A) 57476,40,85,087 | 43756,11,45,975
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®
i | ASSETS 31 9ref, 2016 | 319w, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31,2015
W) UcU& Y1/ B) Direct Loans
- 01 Bd 31T / Loans and Advances 9884,06,90,456|  9501,86,05,887
- 317 T& D51 / Receivable Finance Scheme 1512,59,23,439|  2082,89,98,468
- 9-Te 7T e / Bills Discounted 72,42,283 1,71,87,870
39-3N (@) / Subtotal (B) 11397,38,56,178 | 11586,47,92,225
NI (@5+) | Total (A+B) 68873,79,41,265| 55342,59,38,200
et | SCHEDULE IX
fRer i / Fixed Assets
O "USIaR | Net of Depreciation]
1. URER / Premises 208,64,41,065|  204,62,60,684
2. 3/ Others 1,92,96,326 1,59,00,136
a1/ Total 210,57,37,391|  206,21,60,820
FIYE / SCHEDULE X
3 i | Other Assets:
JufRrd & / Accrued Interest 1040,51,91,079|  675,30,55,345
3 IR (FT9E & §18) / 238,17,96,704|  193,41,63,275
Advance Tax (Net of provision)
3T / Others 4280798454  158,36,22,667
o o ¥ o aee @ 8§ 78 sen mar d / 413,7408714|  324,27,63935
Expenditure to the extent not written off
TN/ Total 2120,51,94951| 1351,36,05,222
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®)

et | ASSETS

31 A, 2016
March 31, 2016

31 AR, 2015
March 31, 2015

FIEt | SCHEDULE X1

S RAD 2418 / CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

i)

do R q T@, 52 =or =8 A

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts

245,79,68,602

212,99,95,882

ii)

TREAT / 9ra-ual & Bevaey

On account of Guarantees / Letters of Credit

128,47,53,531

134,78,28,441

iii)

e Wfaer3l & Beaey

On account of Forward Contracts

2145,38,16,573

26,40,40,369

iv) Erfer) sftagas & Baaey

On account of Underwriting Commitments

v)

3T B0 goar A, AT R 7 7 75 IR & Berawa
On account of uncalled monies on partly paid shares, debentures

vi)

F=g 7, o fore §o ot srehes aaar ¢

Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable (derivative contracts etc.)

7891,11,59,663

7266,58,15,219

TN/ Total

10410,76,98,369

7640,76,79,911
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319, 2016 | 315w, 2015
March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015

Y31t € 3T / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

FIE | SCHEDULE XII

151 3R €21/ Interest and Discount
1. %o, 3 AR f¥clt o= 1T U4 §eeT / Interest and Discount on Loans, Advances and Bills | 5178,93,84,941|  5157,85,57,270

2. w1/ & 3§99 R 3 / Income on Investments / Bank balances 700,14,05913|  341,07,04,660
TN/ Total 5879,07,90,854| 5498,92,61,930

Al | SCHEDULE XIII

3 A | Other Income:
1. 3mie 3R eRag e / Upfront and Processing Fees 37.77,29,724 31,29,45,422
2. ®HIYH 3R TN / Commission and Brokerage 2,32,35,996 2,48,91,574
3. fasii &t fabl & o9 / Profit on sale of Investments 151,32,42,701|  159,32,46,600
4SS GRUIH /AN AR § A, FE S FARA Hard I = =
Income earned by way of dividends etc. from Subsidiaries / Associates
5. fiect auf & q=Ri®T & U@ / Provision of Earlier Years written Back 92,953 28,304
6. = (Hew : fomoft &, 18) / Others (Refer note no.18) 89,82,32,978 61,53,13,850
a1/ Total 281,25,34,352|  254,64,25,750
RN / SCHEDULE X1V
9RETe™ &34 | Operating Expenses:
THaIRal & fore fove e g 3R WTaee / Payments to and provisions for employees|  287,83,26,650 326,07,32,434
forar, @ 3R f9STell / Rent Taxes and Lighting 21,43,44,291 20,51,06,885
HEOT U4 SEH-HT / Printing & Stationery 1,14,83,935 87,39,538
Tarsmoe 3R JAR / Advertisement and Publicity 4,35,60,584 3,63,71,339
§® &t Huf # Yeag /afReNE / Depreciation / Amortisation on Bank's Property 14,10,29,220 13,65,39,000
et & BI¥, 9T T &G / Directors’ fees allowances and expenses 83,41,739 55,15,034
TETRI&®! Bl B / Auditor’s Fees 86,71,009 60,95,360
faftr 99R / Law Charges 1,94,18,324 1,83,61,648
3P, @ﬁ?ﬁ, I, 31f& / Postage, Courier, Telephones etc 34,43,438 37,45,400
TRE 3R TE@E1G / Repairs and maintenance 9,59,02,333 9,23,38,098
& / Insurance 52,68,564 50,13,041
HISICIPAENTS PN YA /Contribution to CGTMSE 17,74,75000|  18,74,75,000
= &Y Other Expenditure 71,17,77,483 59,34,50,646
TN/ Total 431,90,42,570|  455,94,83,423
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wifera o & fere siftRes féwfomil / Additional Notes to Consolidated Accounts
F[Y - HEeaqol & ffRrl / Annexure - I - Significant Accounting Policies

1 | e faeir faemoll &t szl xv 3 3fcafaa w4t Aewagel aar Al &1 uee wfed foxira faazor dar
o A 9 osar mar 21
All the significant accounting policies as mentioned in Schedule XV of the standalone financial statements have also
been followed in the preparation of consolidated financial statements.

2 |eeg2i wfed facda fawor & sou siasae iR ag & 37 P 9%,
FTl, Saasi, 39 v @ SR Jal & gwmsﬁm Easﬂa%‘rﬁ:masasqﬁu’raiﬁiﬁw
ﬁmwﬁﬁwqﬁﬁmwuﬁﬁﬁmm | 5 vrw-23 "wafe foia faaon & weamh et &
Trdw sae o A fafafde 2, weanht wweel @ i gioact uaha @ s o faan man 21
The financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line to line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses after fully eliminating intra group
balances and inter group transactions in accordance with AS-21" Consolidated Financial Statements". The Associates
are accounted for using the equity method as prescribed by AS-23 " Accounting for Investments in Associates in
Consolidated Financial Statements".

3 | wifed faritg foavor 3 enfier weanlt Hwesii & faavor fmaa & -

Details of Subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements are:
®
HHIG | AR W o1 A R &1 39 i &1 I emsfEf
Sr. No. | Name of the subsidiary Country of Incorporation | Proportion of ownership Profit/Loss

1 | foed doR Hhea fa R 100% 6,56,47,894
(eHdrTen) hidin
SIDBI Venture Capital Ltd.

(SVCL)

2 | fyeal gt dot o aRd 100% 38,06,384
(vHEITHT) India
SIDBI Trustee Company Ltd.

(STCL)
3 ISP qm TR 100% 65,93,46,699
. _(ga 1% India
(18 mT—.T 2015 J gHG)
Micro Units Development &
Refinance Agency (Mudra
Ltd.) (w.e.f. March 18, 2015)*
%e | Total 72,88,00,977
Wes HE & it faazor sramifem 21
* O FfafaE 2013 & FGER, 39 D8 oo a1 At e fen af @ 01 swelt & e ar 39 e w@nfta
& &, d 39 wey # fawad sme af ot 31 W 9% foan Sar @1 degeR, g fa. & veen faxia faxor 18
ard, 2015 ¥ 31 A, 2016 7 A T war 1
Financial statements of the subsidiaries except Mudra Ltd. are audited.
* As per Companies Act -2013, any company or body corporate, when incorporated on or after the 1st day of January of a
year, the financial year will be taken on the 31st day of March of the following year. Accordingly, the first financial statement
of Mudra Ltd has been prepared from March 18, 2015 to March 31, 2016,
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9]
43 wafaa faxira faamor # enfier weani wwensi & faaxor faa &
4.A Details of Associates included in consolidated financial statements are as follows :

o | g
HHIG ™ (%) enfar fera=or fraw ¥ forem
Sr. No. Name of the (%) Holding Description Investment Share of Share in

Associate Profit/(loss) | reserves*
1 || 3429 | gHuHg @ dise T worn
SMERA Credit Rating Agency for SME's | 5,10,00,000 941,813 | 1,00,66,348
2 | FEvadeaea 2.73 vaens o Sianfiet weraar
ISTSL Technology Support to SME's 1,00,00,000 5,31,510 27,44,736
3 | FETHEARE 2600* | 3l C gl
ISARC Asset Reconstruction Company | 26,00,00,000 | 1,86,25571 | 4,54,34,574
4 | Sepe 23.76 5y Tamira form
DFEC State Financial Corporation 6,27,75,000 | (43,12,120) | 11,19,43,204
5 | IRuEEsmSTA 26.00¢ | R ey ¥
RAL Shaefar / o & fore aifemger | 2000000 = =
# (GE¥)
Online platform for factoring
/ discounting of Trade Receiv-
ables (TReDS)
an / Total 38,57,75,000 | 1,57,86,774 | 17,01,88,862

* gH pHarTee (Rasel &t

Includes 11% holding by SVCL (100% subsidiary of SIDBI)

# 29 URaXI 2016 @ T8 I+t Jrata Refidae eawdal 3% $fear for. (AIRvawsngve) & v & foe skfhe geh & afa Reed arr

wew 320 T BT Fa9T| ARvAEIETA & [T Fidbe T B o1 U el & | SHIee thaet Tyaer 31 RAE & 37 38 21
Investment of Y20 lakh towards infusion of initial capital by SIDBI for incorporation of new company viz., Receivables

Exchange of India Litd. (RXIL) on February 29, 2016. The financial data of RXIL was not available for consolidation, hence

only the investment amount is reported.

FHfa goraa o IR 1 @ (i) § 286,707,265,377 (376,582,779,622) o aRfé&fer fftr & enfie
Included in Reserve Fund of ¥86,707,265,377 (Previous year ¥76,582,779,622) in Schedule IT A(i) of the Consolidated Balance sheet.
100% WETde Tel) B 11% enfar gnfie &

& . (%) mfgg @1
Sr. wEdA w1 T Rrazoy fre
Nn- Name of the Associate (%) Description Investment Share of
* Holding Profit/(loss)
1 | SeHus / BSFC 4843 | 3759 fawita 7 / State Financial Corporation | 18,84,88,500 | (18,84,88,500)
2 | SHEHEEHT / GSEC 2841 | 159 faiia 1 / State Financial Corporation | 12,66,00,000 | (12,66,00,000)
3 | APTTUGRT / JKSFC 2865 | 15y fawira 7 / State Financial Corporation | 10,46,20,000 | (10,46,20,000)
4 | CHEHUGR / MSFC 39.99 | 3754 fawirar 77 / State Financial Corporation | 12,52/41,750 | (12,52,41,750)
5 | ol / PFC 2592 | <rsa fawita f#mm / State Financial Corporation 523,551,850 | (5,23,51,850)
6 | gfteueRd / UPSFC | 2418 | 750 faxirg fem / State Financial Corporation | 21,67,59,000 | (21,67,59,000)
Nt/ Total 81,40,61,100 | (81,40,61,100)
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w) | e o faaxen & FrafoRea e e & aRom afiafaa =8 €1 qenfy, fxfly faavol § afmr
& fewr & Tore qof yraem fosan e 21

B) The results of the following associates are not included in the consolidated financial statements. However, full
provision has been made in the financial statements for share of the losses.

n  frafafea Freri & 7w §, aeifs §6 & T 20% ¥ e o FaiueR 8, Jei, = T 23 wiea fada
faarolt # wednlt wwms & Fow & foe daien & siorfa weant wwmst § Fow 38 @ w8, wife
$% b wecayul Fder 78 wwen man 2, T whe o el

C  In case of following entities, though the bank holds more than 20% of voting power, they are not treated as
investment in associate under AS 23 'Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements', because they are not considered as material investments requiring consolidation.

®. Hednft wwen 19 (=) enfRar faazor faw

Sr. No. Name of the Associate (%) Holding Description Investment

1 |ediamgerish for. / APITCO Lid. 4129 | qaio wel e 54,70,975

Technical Consultancy Organisation
2 | FEmEENE fr. / KITCo Lid. 4977  |qEre TRl WIS 24,95,296
Technical Consultancy Organisation

3 |feEr 3k vd aefe wme we fa. 4925  |ga-iral G | 1
Bihar Industrial and Techinical Consultancy Technical Consultancy Organisation
Organisation Ltd.

4 |ydfwr sitenfie qon aorer Wt e for. | 4344 |aaie wmel wied 1
North Eastern Industrial and Technical Technical Consultancy Organisation
Consultancy Organisation Ltd.

5 |38 et aur aa-er Rmel e e 4942 |ga-ra R oA 1
Orissa Industrial and Technical Consultancy Technical Consultancy Organisation
Organisation Ltd.

6 |3ax wewr sitafie wnrefarar for. 4899  |Gae wRwel TIeT 15,33,472
U.P Industrial Consultants Ltd. Technical Consultancy Organisation

7 | of¥em dme wmel ded o 21.67  |qera GRS oA 4,86,783
West Bengal Consultancy Organisation Ltd. Technical Consultancy Organisation
T / Total 99,86,529

. 465Eii4?§ﬁ3ﬁ'ﬁﬁ§lﬁ $a¥ HEdnlt W3 & 31 "™, 2016 B W a¥ & fawia

foa=ont & amuﬂmaéra?rné% | qﬂmcmfi‘r@rsm F=T 50 farg Fomet & it 31 A 2015 B TAN
aﬁ%%ﬁmﬂma Frenid & | gaeHusH & AEer A, 31 AR 2013 & wAE @ & Fifaw oo
ﬂtﬁﬁrm4wua4nﬁ3ﬁaﬁ§aﬂazﬂ1ﬁwmﬁaﬁ‘rm gaﬁﬁa@rﬁm% | m‘hq'c?ra%r#

T A1 € WA Hvensit g fohe T JHaE & AR # 36 aggﬁ

FYaT FAESN DI 2 |

D  Financial statements of the associates other than State Financial Corporations's (SFC) mentioned in 4A and 4B are unaudited
for the year ended March 31,2016. The figures for SFC's other than UPSFC are based on audited results for the year ended
March 31,2015. In respect of UPSFC, provisional results are available for the year ended March 31,2013.

The Bank has not incurred any obligation or made payment on behalf of associates mentioned in 4B and 4C above or
otherwise provided guarantee or commitment for the losses made by the associates in excess of its investment value in the
associates.
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FEAN T3 B A1 Hgwaqol ai-a+ ol faavor ffaa & |

Details of significant transactions with associates are as under:

HEGR 1 BT AN PN Pkt %ifaeRo1 / Dis- ot /
Name of the Associate I Particulars bursements Repayments
S / DFC Qe WETa / Refinance assistance = 4,33,33,340
ARAT

mﬁmﬁmaﬁg@'ﬂ%ﬁaﬁaﬁw el X gef/geagIiG 4od el
iR &t & foar sman &, 5@ Wﬂﬂﬁm‘\?ﬂﬁuﬁg&% a’a’rmaﬂ:ﬁsaﬁlm,zma
1 & IR TEagld Jed Ugfa | &%l & | gRfee anfed T 3 et 214,10,29,220/-

%13,65,39,000/-) & et ¥ ¥ 680,200 30 Bt 0.71% (Freer af 29,64,500 - 0.56%) ¥ o=t i
2013 & oK fovr e groEw S R W PEiRa Hr mg # |
As against depreciation policy of SIDBI whereby assets are depreciated on SLM / WDV at pre-determined rates, the sub-
sidiaries and associates compute depreciation on SLM/ WDV basis as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus out of
the total depreciation of ¥14,10,29,220 (Previous Year ¥13,65,39,000) included in Consolidated Financial Statements, ¥680,200
being 0.48% (Previous Year ¥9,64,500 being 0.71%) of the amount is determined based on Depreciation provided as per the
Companies Act, 2013.

e wETas TR & A IR yea a1 Feas 0 ¥ Fasdt & wfia # 2, 3 sreuier draveRa & fa & dd
# 37T & DI Hae el fooar T |

As all shares of the subsidiaries are owned by SIDBI directly or indirectly, no separate disclosure relating to minority
interest is reflected.

vHdiTee vd o for. & yofarfes et o swrr e wikafie saen: 252,90,989 (Rrea ad 250,08,647) aar
%37,15,637 (freet a¥ =)

Aggregate remuneration paid to whole time director of SVICL is ¥52,90,989 (Previous Year ¥50,08,647) and Mudra Ltd. is
337,15,637 (Previous Year Nil).

e araf (de) : 31 9T, 2015 31 W, 2014
i ( (Bt Pexi S () March 31,2016 @) | March 31,2015 @)
$ueH & uRee o fere ferar mar frae amw 1248,17,52,371 1422,04,86,284
Net Profit considered for EPS calculation

gfer 9o 210 & 3ifee Peg & $foafe ARt & wiRka sita wear 47,34,05,205 45,00,00,000
Weighted Average Number of equity shares of face value ¥10 each

5fet 91ER 3151 / Earning per share 26.37 31.60
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10 ol dgaw
Contingent Liabilities

TRUTTeTeT BRI b Hidl THaIee o faarfea eaar &, fiar fdr & fFrafxor =2 fisar snwwar 2 |

SVCL has disputed liability towards municipal taxes, the amount of which cannot be determined.

; xmmﬂ%“% e ﬁ“é“imwm UG Sl Sl ol R
'l 10} 3B TS TP
3T 32T (FFHITIHE) BRI SR HHIRT TICEHROT H%ﬁﬁmw#mﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ?l )

Additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial statements of the parentand the subsidiaries have
no bearing on the true and fair view of the Consolidated Financial Statments and also the information pertaining
to the items which are not material have not been disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements in view of the
general clarification issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

a1 & HRWER / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
WW%MW%W!MWr our report of even date

gBORKEAgR& UZUMDAR & . er@rt TSt firerer I AR B gt frarsi
R N S — UJ. Lalwani Manoj Mittal Ajay Kumar Kapur ~ Kshatrapati Shivaji
SRAEIed Sccouios Chie Genma er 3l Hﬁﬂg{fﬁ% [)3:-r ngl\d?na‘a% ma&ujimgﬁaaniﬁam
u
m{ségﬁsg =1 o e [tinrector i pu[t)yirector e Managing Director
(Corporate Accounts Vertical)

&f3fa 28l / Darshit Doshi
WIBIER / Partner
©H. . / M. No. : 133755

v9.®.41. MfEr / SK.V. Srinivasan HR. TS / R. Ramachandran
Has, 7S 25, 2016 w1 / Director féer® / Director

Mumbai, May 25, 2016
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2016

31 Hrel, 2016 B THI IY BT Tdd Aol UarE faazon

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2016

®
vieidp R/ Particulars ki, e | usme e
1. aReEnem nfafafteat | wodt gaw
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
2120,90,92,073 TH-BI WY & FTER R qd +aer e 17,48,16,53,301
Net Profit before tax as per P & L Account
FrafafEa & fore TmrIs= / Adjustments for :
13,65,39,000 HeIgT™ / Depreciation 14,10,29,220
54,54,02,483 ECEIR: ] ﬁaﬁﬁmﬂs%ﬁmﬂﬁ 115,71,97,341
Provision for net depreciation in investments
(119,07,49,629) foran mar yTee (GFRiEH & §19) 184,36,74,056
Provisions made (net of write back)
(159,19,75,700) o faeht & @ (F/aet) / Profit on sale of investments (net) | (127,72,09,428)
e anfasit & fat ¥ @/ Profit on sale of fixed assets 36,54,403
(16,37,08,548) Tl W YTt ATHIE/ Dividend Received on Investments (11,39,38,261) | 175,44,07,331
1894,45,99,679 uRemer! & Jufsfa 7@} / Cash generated from operations 1923,60,60,632
(aRarem snf¥al a s # uRad | uge)
(Prior to changes in operating Assets and Liabilities)
FpafeRea # fraer uRad= &g wwrie=
Adjustments for net changes in :
150,63,57,500 TTe], 3T / Current assets (720,61,65,968)
107,84,43,959 TIe] QT / Current liabilities 153,84,62,354
775,79,03,839 fafrra & / Bills of Exchange 568,94,34,285
5725,68,49,021 ROT U9 3 / Loans & Advances (14315,93,09,845)
(4945,15,86,426) | aist @ oAl aun 3 IRt ¥ Frae mitat 11683,81,21,162
Net Proceeds of Bonds and Debentures & other borrowings
(3981,44,69,425) YT 3THT / Deposits received 7128,30,59,911
(2166,65,01,532) 4498,36,01,899
(272,19,01,853) 6421,96,62,531
(606,53,12,713) @Y JERAT / Payment of Tax (628,34,52,472)
(878,72,14,566) ufares nfafaftmat & e @< yae 5793,62,10,059
Net Cash flow from operating Activities
e nffaferd @ a5dl ware
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
(2510,76,650) | feRamRedi @ iac (53)/faea/Net (Purchase)/Saleof fixedassets | (18,82,60,796)
171,96,50,081 et & e (5o)fasaree=s (4591,65,51,476)
Net (Purchase)/sale/redemption of Investments
16,29,23,125 ol o= UTe @1979T / Dividend Received on Investments 11,44,81,179
163,14,96,556 T nfafaferat # s Fae Fat (4599,03,31,093)
Net cash used in Investing Activities
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®
31 e, 2015 S 31w, 2016 | 317, 2016
March 31, 2015 f March 31,2016 | March 31, 2016
3. iy nfefaftral % ol yaw
Cash flow from Financing Activities
0| SRR Ysh 7 IR Siftgm & e § ama 1499,95,00,000
Proceeds from issuance of share capital & share premium
(131,68,18,758) Sferaer STORT & FTHIT v ATHIS W 3R (139,92,95,746)
Dividend on Equity Shares & tax on Dividend
(131,68,18,758) Torefta nfefaftral % g Fae ol 1360,02,04,254
Net cash used in Financing Activities
(847,25,36,768) | 4, @al Td B! WHGed A Frae agral/(@) 2554,60,83,220
Net mcreasea‘(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
1943,69,97,167 | 5. 3faft & YRH ¥ Adal vd Fabal 1096,44,60,399
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period
1096,44,60,399 | 6. 37afes ot THING UR ol Bd Aol THed 3651,05,43,619
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period
7. 3¥aTY 37 | o) Ud Al ﬂﬁm’fﬁﬁnﬁrﬁmsﬂﬁﬁ%‘
Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the period includes
11,92473 | g% # @l / Cash in Hand 6,74,499
39,56,78,210 §% ¥ Tre] @Y F HARAY / Current account balance with Bank 28,10,89,825
50,00,00,000 RO B8 / Mutual Funds 365,66,85,061
1006,75,89,716 SRR / Deposits 3257,20,94,234
femoh: 1. YR T GRS (FEHICAE) gRT IR U 089-3 (ftre) ot warg faawor &
ﬁﬁrﬁsgg & FIER AR foar 2|
Note: 1. Cash Flow statement has been prepared as per the Indirect Method prescribed in AS-3 (Revised) 'Cash Flow
Statement'issued by the Institute of Chartered Accou.ntants of India %
2.a1f$34§aﬁ=|a?c."r Ud e TAGed W &1 H Adal, ol QT | 3Ry, | STHRIRRT qer RIg3e b
onfia 2|
2. Cash and cash Equivalents at the end of the year consists of Cash in hand, Current Account Balance with Banks,
Fixed Deposit and Mutual funds,
qFﬁTﬁ orEie Hifadr ae aar-femfort (3 |) / Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Annexure )

1$ & FMERER / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
T femie ot gAY RUIE & 3R / As per our report of even date

1 SR U8 HHER
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR & 3. Tierarr 1S Tt FTA AR BY &t st

33 ulJ. Lalwam Manoj Mittal Ajay Kumar Kapur  Kshatrapati Shivaji
Chartered Accountants wysafRes  umeufRye sege vd wea PR
THITRU ¢ 101569 Chief General Manager Deputy Managing  Deputy Managing Chairman &
FRN. : 101569W Director Director Managing Director

h (Corporate Accounts Vertical)
&3 ar9M / Darshit Doshi
TIHER / Partner
UH. 3. / M. No. : 133755
UH.®.41. Sar / SK.V. Srinivasan 3R, IHEET / R. Ramachandran

&g, 7% 25, 2016 1291 / Director 91 / Director

Mumbai, May 25, 2016
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Regional Offices Branches

Ahmedabad Ahmedabad, Vadodara,
Gandhidham, Jamnagar,
Morbi, Rajkot, Surat, Vatva

Bengaluru Bengaluru, Hosur, Hubli,
Mysuru, Peenya

Chandigarh Chandigarh, Jalandhar,
Jammu, Ludhiana, Shimla

Chennai Ambattur, Chennai,
Puducherry

Coimbatore Coimbatore, Erode, Kochi,
Madurai, Tirupur, Trichy

Faridabad Faridabad, Gurgaon

Guwahati Agartala, Aizawl, Dimapur,

Gangtok, Guwahati, Imphal,
[tanagar, Shillong

Hyderabad Balanagar, Hyderabad,
Vijayawada,
Visakhapatnam

Indore Bhopal, Bilaspur,
Nagpur, Raipur

Jaipur Alwar, Jaipur, Jodhpur,
Kishangarh, Udaipur

Kolkata Bhubaneshwar, Jamshedpur,
Kolkata, Patna, Ranchi,
Rourkela

Lucknow Agra, Kanpur, Lucknow,
Varanasi

Mumbai Andheri, BKC,

Panaji, Thane

New Delhi Bahadurgarh, Dehradun,
Ghaziabad, Greater Noida,
Kundli, New Delhi, New Delhi
RFS, Noida, Okhla, Rudrapur,

Pune Ahmednagar, Aurangabad,
Chinchwad, Kolhapur, Nasik,
Pune
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